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Northern Trust COpr@ration, whose business began in <1889,
is a multibank holding company headquartered in Chicago with a
growing network Qf offices in 12 states, international offices in five
countries and more than 9,500 employees worldwide. At the end of
2001, Northern Trust had assets of $39.7 billion. Trust assets under
administration were nearly $1.7 triilion, including $330.1 billion
under our investment management.

Northern Trust has earned distinction as a leadmg provider
of personal fiduciary, asset management, personal and private
banking, and master trust/custody, global custody and treasury
management services. A H.z—‘year tradition of combining high-touch
service and expertise with industry-leading technology distinguishes
Northern Trust in its two primary businesses, Personal Financial

Services and Corporate and Institutional Services.




CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL

HIGHLIGHTS

2001 2000 PERCENT CHANGE

For the Year ($ In Millions)
Net Income $ 4875 $ 485.1 5%
Net Income Applicable to Common Stock 483.4 479.4 .8
Dividends Declared on Common Stock 141.% 124.3 135
Per Commeon Share
Net Income — Basic $ 2.18 $ 2.17 5%

— Diluted 2.11 2.08 - 1.4
Dividends Declared 635 56 13.4
Book Value — End of Period 11.97 10.54 13.6
Market Price—End of Period 60.22 81.56 (26.2)
Averages ($ In Millions)
Total Assets $35,624.0 $34,043.3 4.6%
Total Earning Assets 32,041.8 30,748.7 4.2
Securities 8,533.7 9,687.0 (11.9)
Loans and Leases 17,850.5 16,548.6 7.9
Deposits 22,609.9 21,046.9 7.4
Stockholders’ Equity 2,620.2 2,289.7 14.4
Common Stockholders’ Equity 2,500.2 2,169.7 £5.2
At Year-End (% In Millions)
Total Assets $39,664.5 $36,022.3 19.1%
Total Earning Assets 34,857.0 31,279.1 11.4
Securities 6,331.1 7,269.6 (12.9)
Loans and Leases 17,979.9 18,144.6 {9)
Reserve for Credit Losses 161.6 162.9 {.8)
Deposits 25,019.3 22,8279 9.6
Stockholders’ Equity 2,773.5 2,462.2 12.6
Common Stockholders” Equity 2,653.5 23422 - 13.3
Ratios
Return on Average Assets 1.37% 1.43%
Return on Average Common Equity 19.34 22.09
Productivity Ratio 162 160
Tier 1 Capital to Risk—Adjusted Assets 10.88 9.79
Total Capital to Risk— Adjusted Assets 14.25 12.85
Leverage Ratio 7.93 6.91
At Year-End ($ [n Billions)
Total Managed Trust Assets $ 3361 “$ 3380 2.3)%
Total Trust Assets Under Administration 1,684.6 1,683.8 —_

“NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION
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MANAGEMENT’'S LETTER TC SHARIZTEZOCL2E2RS

In 2001, sharo declines in woridwice ecuity markets and 2
s.owing domestic econormy creztec one of t1e most cralienging
environments the financizl services incustry has exseriencec in
decaces. Despite ”::es*-“ cifficult concitions, INorthern T st resortec
record earnings for the 14t consecutive year witz net income 2er

share of $2.11, an increase of 1 percent from per share
earnings in 2000. Net income increased to $487.5 million
from $485.1 million earned last year and resulted in a
return on average common equity of 19.3 percent,
reaching our target range of 18 to 20 percent for the
sixth consecutive year.

Trust assets under administration equaled $1.68 trillion
at year-end 2001, unchanged from December 2000, and
managed assets of $330 billion were only 2 percent
below last year’s levels despite the 13 percent decline in
the S&P 500 equity index during 2001 and a 21 per-
cent decline in Nasdag. Northern Trust remains one of
the nation’s largest asset management firms.

Revenue growth moderated during the year,
increasing 3 percent from 2000 levels to $2.2 billion.
Net new annualized trust business sold during the year
represented 11 percent of trust fees. Although net new
business was below the level of a year ago, the results
represent good momentum and success in the marketplace
given all the challenges the year presented. Our revenue
mix continues to be an attractive one, with 71 percent
of revenues generated by trust and other fees and net
interest income contributing 29 percent. Northern has a
well-balanced revenue stream, with our personal and
corporate and institutional businesses each contributing
approximately one-half of the Corporation’s revenues.

Aggressive expense management was particularly
effective in 2001. Expense growth of only 2 percent in
2001 contributed to the record productivity ratio of
162 percent, which exceeded our corporate target of

160 percent.

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

The Corporation raised the quarterly cash divi-
dend to 17 cents per share, an increase of 9.7 percent,
marking the 105th year of consecutive dividends paid
and the 15th consecutive year of increases.

During 2001, the performance of Northern Trust
stock was a disappointment with a decrease of
26 percent. However, the compound annual growth
rate of Northern stock for the five years ended
December 31, 2001, remained an impressive 27 percent,
compared to 9 percent for both the S&P 500 and the
KBW 50 Bank Index.

Despite the challenging economic environment
and the volatile equity markets, which were made even
more difficult by the tragic events of September 11, the
long-term fundamentals of our business are extremely
positive. We have an exceptionally focused, proven busi-
ness strategy and are well positioned competitively to
grow and attract new business as worldwide equity mar-

kets improve and the economy recovers from recession.

A PROVEN BUSINESS STRATEGY

During 2001, Northern Trust continued to focus on
our two core businesses—Personal Financial Services
(PFS) and Corporate and Institutional Services
(C&IS), which are effectively supported by our world-
class investment organization, Northern Trust Global
Investments (NTGI), and our leading-edge Worldwide
Operations and Technology (WWOT) unit. This
strategy allows us to leverage our investment and tech-

nology capabilities across both core businesses.
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We have an exceptionally focused,
proven business strategy and are well
positioned competitively to grow

and attract new business as worldwide
equity markets improve and the
economy recovers from recession.

BARRY G. HASTINGS WILLIAM A. OSBORN
President and Chairman and

Chief Operating Officer Chief Executive Officer




MANAGEMENT'S

Personal Financial Services trust fees totaled
$615 million, compared to $613.4 million a year ago.
This performance is the result of lower equity markets
offset by growth in new business. Personal trust assets
under administration totaled $166.8 billion, compared
to $168.8 billion the previous year end. Of the total
assets under administration, $94 billion was managed
by Northern Trust. Net new recurring PFS trust
business sold during the year totaled $63 million in
annualized fees.

The longevity of our PFES staft, combined with the
high-touch service that is the hallmark of Northern
Trust, served us well during this turbulent year as
individuals sought the stability and expertise of a
financial services institution with more than 112 years
of experience to help deal with volatile markets and an
unpredictable economy. Our reputation for exceptional
personal focus is widely recognized and has resulted in
client relationships that frequently span generations
of families who look to us as trusted advisors. A full
range of trust, investment management, banking and
brokerage services is available to clients in our local
markets, thus distinguishing Northern from our com-
petitors who often have a more centralized approach to
client service.

We are well positioned in attractive growth mar-
kets to serve our clients. Our national franchise of 82
PFS offices in 12 states is a one-of-a-kind distribution
capability for private banking services. In 2001, we
opened our 26th and 27th offices in Florida in Weston
and Belleair Bluffs. In addition, we moved to new
locations offering greater visibility, expanded space and
greater convenience for clients in Barrington, lllinois;
Denver, Colorado; Newport Beach, California; North

Palm Beach, Florida; St. Louis, Missouri; and Houston,
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Texas. From our current locations, we are within a
30-minute drive of 30 percent of the nation’s millionaire
population. Our goal is to be in proximity to 40 percent
of this target market with approximately 100 PES
offices by 2005. We plan to expand to attractive areas
near our existing locations where we already have
strong brand recognition and to move into new states
where the market growth and competitive dynamics
favor our style of private banking. We believe that the
consolidation and realignment of competitors continue
to create opportunities for us in vireually all of our
local markets.

The opportunity for the continued growth of
Northern’s PES franchise remains strong as the afflu-
ent market grows. The U.S. population is expected to
grow at 1 percent annually, but the high-net-worth
segment—individuals with more than $1 muillion in
investable assets—is expected to grow at over nine
times that rate. That equates to more than 1.4 million
households entering our target market over the next
five years—a growth of 56 percent.

Northern’s sophisticated technology platform
supports the PFS tradition of client focus and per-
sonal service. In 2001, our Web-based Private Passport™
offered clients a compléte suite of financial informa-
tion, transaction and account aggregation services.
Private Passport now provides access to banking, trust,
investment management, mutual fund and brokerage
accounts. Improved design and navigation have been
combined with new features such as online brokerage,
stock quotes, news feeds and watch lists. Another
enhancement introduced during the vear provided
Private Passport users access to Northern Trust
Securities, Inc’s (NTSI) online brokerage service

without any additional sign-on required. The full




James J. Mitchell, Stephen B. Timbers, Kelly R. Welsh and Peter L. Rossiter.

7




MANAGEMENT'S

trading, real-time functionality available through
NTSI means investors can manage their assets anytime
from anywhere using the telephone, a wireless device
or the Web. The service provides fast, accurate order
execution and convenient access to account and invest-
ment information.

Serving 265 high-net-worth families worldwide,
Northern Trust is a recognized leader in wealth
management. The Wealth Management Group in PFS
serves both individuals and family offices with typically
$100 million or more in investable assets. These
clients have complex global investment structures with
multiple money managers. Northern offers these
families a wide array of services, including private
banking, fiduciary, asset custody and the related trans-
actional and reporting services, and a number of
unique products tailored to these clients’ specific
needs. Trust assets administered by Wealth Management
increased 5.7 percent to $65 billion despite the decline
in the equity markets.

In C&IS we provide trust, custody, investment
and banking services to corporations and institutions
around the globe. Our clients include public and pri-
vate retirement plans, endowments and foundations,
mnsurance companies, global fund managers and other
asset pools such as government entities.

In 2001, C&IS trust fees were $616.3 million,
compared to $587.8 million the previous year. Fees
from securities lending, an important component of
Northern’s custody business, increased 16 percent and
were the principal contributor to the overall increase in
C&IS fees. Based on an industry survey, Northern
is the eighth-largest custodian in the world. With
$1.52 trillion in.assets under administration at year

end, 97 countries in our subcustodian network, and
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clients in 37 countries, we continue to be a market
leader with a strong and growing global presence.

Northern has earned a reputation for using inno-
vative technology to offer clients sophisticated risk
management and comprehensive reporting services.
Because of Northern’s expertise, focus on this business
and broad range of innovative products available to
clients, we are able to continue to compete effectively
with significantly larger custodians.

In C&IS, our partnership approach to business
begins with experienced professionals who work with
clients to find solutions to their complex business
needs. High-touch client servicing and a willingness
to custornize products to meet specific client needs
differentiate Northern in the marketplace. To this we
add our industry-leading technology and wide array of
products ranging from core products such as custody,
treasury management and recordkeeping to our key
value-added services, including investment manage-
ment, foreign exchange and securities lending.

Providing trust and custody services to institu-
tional investors outside the U.S. 15 the fastest—growing
segment of the C&IS business. We have a strong presence
in the United Kingdom, are well established in the
Asia/Pacific region and see substantial growth oppor-
tunities for this business. In the last few years, our custody
client base has grown substahtially in the United
Kingdom and Europe. C&IS clients use a wide range
of our core custodial services, and an increasing number
are using our asset management services. Over the last
two years, global custody assets have grown over
45 percent. The C&IS international client base has
increased by almost 50 percent over the last five
years, and we have strong momentum in the interna-

tional market.




In November 2001, Northern Trust signed a
Cooperation Agreement with Bank of Communications
in China to share knowledge about custody and
investment management businesses. The demographics
of the China market are very attractive for our market
niche, and this agreement will enable Northern to gain
valuable insights into the rapidly developing pension,
insurance, mutual fund and wealth management
markets in China.

Northern’s investment organization, NTGI, offers
global, multi-asset class investment capabilities to per-
sonal and institutional clients worldwide. NTGI is one
of the country’s largest and fastest-growing investment
managers, with managed assets at year-end totaling
$330.1 billion. Assets under management have grown
at a compound annual rate of over 20 percent since
1996. NTGI is one of the largest active equity man-
agers for high-net~worth clients and is the 15th-largest
U.S. money manager overall according to Pensions and
Investments.

During the year, NTGI continued to emphasize
client service, product innovation and the addition of
new capabilities in all product categories. NTGI
added new investment capabilities through a build,
buy and partner approach. NTGIs equity product
array proved to be particularly important during the
difficult financial market environment of 2001. In
2000, Northern’s traditional U.S. growth style was
complemented by the acquisition of a value manager,
while the international equity program was signifi-
cantly enhanced by the addition of a new portfolio
management team in London. In1997, the acquisition of

a leading index manager expanded NTGI’s quantitative

offerings. As a result, in the challenging investment
environment last year, Northern clients were able to
achieve valuable diversification benefits from this wide
range of investment products and styles.

As the market has evolved, investors have
become increasingly sophisticated and knowledgeable
in managing their assets. In response, NTGI continu-
ally evaluates the needs of personal and institutional
clients and prospects, and we add to our product
offerings to meet those needs. NTGI added two new
alternative investment programs during the year—
private equity and hedge funds.

Worldwide Operations and Technology supports
the business efforts of both C&IS and PFS by
developing and implementing innovative technologies
and systems and product enhancements to meet the
rapidly changing needs of our clients worldwide. The
substantial investments we have made in leading-edge
technology enable Northern to deliver highly effective
products and services with competitive cost structures
to an increasingly demanding global marketplace. In
the 1999 to 2001 period, Northern spent $800 million
on technology, including $315 million 1n 2001. We
estimate an expenditure of $950 million for the years
2002 to 2004.

The Internet continues to play an increasingly
important role in our relationships with clients. At
Northern, we view technology as an enabler in help-
ing us build even stronger relationships with clients.
The Internet gives clients an additional way to access
our expertise, obtain information or transact their
business without geographical or time constraints. The
rapidity with which technology advances are being
made demands that we respond quickly to the changing

economy and needs of clients. Our intention is to

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION
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launch new products and client servicing tools on an
ongoing basis. One example in 2001 was the intro-
duction of an online brokerage account by NTSI. This
product was made available to Northern Trust
Retirement Consulting (NTRC) clients for their pen-
sion plan participants. This self-directed account
includes access to stocks, options and mutual funds,
including Northern Trust’s own family of funds, and it
not only allows NTRC to expand capabilities for its
clients but also opens a new distribution channel for

Northern products.

RECOGNITION RECEIVED

Northern has received recognition for our perform-
ance, programs and services from a number of diverse
publications and organizations. In early January 2002,
Northern Trust was named to the Forbes Platinum
400—The Best Big Companies in America list, and
Northern Trust Global Securities Lending, in concert
with Worldwide Operations and Technology, was
ranked the No. 1 securities lending provider in the
world by the International Securities Finance (ISF)
magazine’s Fall 2001 survey.

Northern’s overall commitment to people, tech-
nology and the financial industry was recognized by
Information Week magazine, which ranked us No. 34
in its listing of the top 500 information technology
organizations nationwide and second among the
10 banks on the list. Another industry publication,
Treasury & Risk Management magazine, in its 2001
survey, placed Northern Trust in the country’s top
10 banks for domestic treasury management services
by overall reputation. It is especially gratifying to be

honored by a long-time client as occurred when Sears,
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Roebuck & Co. in April 2001 awarded Northern the
prestigious Partner in Progress Award.

Some of the awards received were related to our
programs for employees. The success of our work/life
services, designed to meet the needs of employees and
their families for a healthy balance at the different
stages of their lives, was recognized by Working Mother
magazine, which for the 10th year named Northern
Trust Corporation as one of the “100 Best Companies

for Working Mothers.”

SERVING THE COMMUNITY

Traditionally, Northern has supported the communities
we serve with both financial contributions and the
volunteer efforts of our staff. Although last year can-
not be described as a typical year, it was no exception.
After the terrorist attacks of September 11, Northern
made a direct corporate contribution of $500,000 to
the September 1178 Fund, the NY Firefighters 9-11
Disaster Relief Fund, and The New York Police and
Fire Widows’ and Children’s Benefit Fund. Through a
matching gift program, the Corporation matched dollar
for dollar Northern employee and retiree donations to
these funds so that Northern and our people added
$338,000 to our direct corporate contribution.

In 2001, Northern Trust’s charitable giving totaled
$9.5 million, including nearly $4 million that was
donated by Northern’s Charitable Trust. The trust con-
tributed to educational, community development,
human service and cultural programs in our local
communities. Another important area of charitable
giving is Northern’s involvement with the United Way.
Last year, with 77 percent of Chicago-area employees

participating, more than $1.6 million was raised for




the United Way/Crusade of Mercy. With Northern’s
corporate gift of $800,000, the total raised was more
than $2.4 million.

Northern people across the Corporation offered
their time and expertise to hundreds of not-for-profit
organizations last year—organizations that often could
not continue their important work without the efforts of
dedicated volunteers. Our people and offices across the
country find ways to make a positive difference in liter-
ally hundreds of organizations and programs. Additional
details about Northern’s involvement in the commu-

nities we serve appear on pages 32 - 34 of this report.

MANAGEMENT CHANGES

A number of management changes occurred last year.
William N. Setterstrom, head of Human Resources,
retired at year-end after a 17-year career at Northern.
He was succeeded by Timothy P. Moen, an experienced
Human Resources professional.

Other retiring executives were Terry Murray,
Deputy Head of Personal Financial Services; Jeffrey H.
Wessel, head of Investment Services in Corporate and
[nstitutional Services; and James M. Snyder, Vice
Chairman, Northern Trust Global Investments. Each
of these individuals served Northern with distinction,
and we are grateful to them for all of their etforts.
We are fortunate that when retirements occur, the
Corporation has the size and depth of talent to allow
the smooth transition of responsibilities to other
experienced professionals in the organization without

disruption of service to our clients.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Bide L. Thomas has announced that he will retire as a
director, effective April 2002. Bide joined the Board

in 1984 and has served as Chairman of the Audit and

Business Risk Committees and as a member of the
Compensation and Benefits Committee. We appreciate
his long and able service to the Board. We are gratetul
to all of the members of our exceptional Board of
Directors, who once again offered their insights and
wise counsel during a turbulent time.

Northern people across the Corporation were at
their best in 2001 as they worked in partnership to
serve our clients both here and abroad. They rose to the
challenge of delivering exceptional service amid the
uncertainties of volatile market conditions, a difficult
economic environment and the stressful effects of
unprecedented terrorist acts in our country. Whenever
they were called upon, Northern people exhibited the
dedication and spirit that have been the hallmark of
our employees throughout our history. To each of
them, we say thank you and well done.

To our loyal clients, we express our gratitude for
their choosing Northern Trust. We renew our commit-
ment to them to do our best in the year ahead to
warrant their continued confidence in us.

The future is, of course, impossible to predict;
however, given the strong support of our clients, staff
and directors, we look forward to the next year with

confidence in both our company and our country.

ﬂ'ﬂ /. oA L 5,

WILLIAM A. OSBORN BARRY G. HASTINGS
President and
Chief Operating Officer

Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

February 19, 2002
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PERSONAL FINANCIAL SERVICES (PFS),
a premier provider of financial services to the affluent
market, is anchored by our unrivaled high-touch client
service and innovative products and services. Our
full array of financial services spans the life cycle
and cross-generational needs of clients, including
trust, investment management and banking services.
Exceptional client focus, coupled with the unquestioned
integrity and dedication of experienced professionals,
clearly distinguishes Northern Trust as an industry leader.

PFS’ trust assets under administration in 2001
were $166.8 billion, compared with $168.8 billion a
year earlier, and managed assets were $94 billion.
Personal trust fees were $615 million, compared with
$613.4 million in 2000. The results were impacted by
the softening economy and sharply lower equity mar-
kets throughout 2001, partially offset by new business
growth. PFS average loan volume increased to
$13.5 billion, 10 percent higher than in 2000, and our
deposits averaged $9.1 billion, up 8 percent from the

previous year.

GROWING A NATIONAL PRESENCE

The century-long principles that have guided our
business are sound, and our expansion strategies posi-

tion us well to capitalize on the changing trends of the
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affluent market. While the U.S. population is expected
to grow 1 percent annually over the next five years, the
segment of that population with more than $1 million
in investable assets is expected to grow at more than
nine times that rate—offering attractive growth
opportunities for PES services. Northern Trust currently
has 82 offices in 12 states, which place us in proximity
to 30 percent of the U.S. millionaire population,
including retirees, corporate executives and entrepre-
neurs. We have entered seven new states since 1997, and
in 2001 we opened two new Florida offices—Weston,
west of Fort Lauderdale, and Belleair Bluffs in the
Tampa-St. Petersburg area. Our goal is to have a
national network of 100 offices by the end of 2005 in
selected affluent markets that have the strongest
growth potential.

In addition to entering new markets in 2001, we
also strengthened existing markets with the relocation of
several offices to more spacious and more conveniently
located facilities to better accommodate our ever-
expanding business. PFS’ growth strategies are based
on a strong relationship-driven culture, with clients
at each of our upscale locations having access to
Northern Trust’s full array of world-class financial
services from our professionals.

In March 2001, Northern Trust invested in
myCFO, Inc., a leading wealth advisory firm for high-
net-worth individuals, to further reach key affluent

markets and to add product capabilities.




Northern Trust provides the Levy family with a wide  flagship Spiaggia restaurant in Chicago. Larry is
avray of banking and financial services. Here, chaivman and CEC of Levy Restaurants,

Northern Trust Seniov Vice President Lyle Logan and Eadie provides the dirvection for Mrs. Levy’s

(far left) and Vice President Christina Ksoll Delicatessen. Northern Trust also provides private
(standing right) meet with Cayol (seated, second from  banking services for Carol’s Material Possessions home

left), Larry and Eadie Levy at Levy Restaurants’  furnishings and accessories store in Chicago.
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Our consistent and focused growth strategies have
proved highly successful, and PFS continues to proac-
tively capitalize on the evolviﬂg affluent market trends.
These dynamic trends include industry consolidation,
escalating demand for retirement planning services
and increased intergenerational wealth transfer. Also
spurring business growth are the first-generation,
younger affluent who seek financial advice and
investment management at an earlier stage of their life
cycles, and an increasing number of retirement-age
business owners who seek retirement planning. As
individuals become more sophisticated and knowl-
edgeable in managing their finances, PFS’ continual
development of innovative and specialized products and
services, coupled with a steadfast commitment to

high-touch service, helps ensure our competitive edge.

UNIQUE STRATEGIC PHILANTHROPY
AND EVENT MARKETING

Throughout each year, PES hosts a wide array of
national marketing events tailored to clients’ interests
and provides strategic philanthropic support in those
communities where we are located. Our unique event
marketing and strategic philanthropy activities generate
stronger ties with local communities, while strengthening
client and prospective relationships.

More than 1,000 strategic marketing events were
held across our network of offices in 2001 ranging
from financial seminars, literary societies and events
teaturing prominent speakers, to a private viewing of
the exhibit, “Jackie Kennedy: The First Lady.” The

traveling exhibit, a selection of Jacques Lowe’s photos
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of John F Kennedy’s senatorial and presidential years,
will travel to 28 Northern Trust offices by mid-2002.

Inspired by the success of our DreamMakers’
Forum, which established a network for a select
group of African-American entrepreneurs, executives
and leading financiers, Northern Trust introduced
VisionKeepers in 2001. This two-day forum was
designed to bring together women business owners
with women venture capitalists, investment bankers and
angel investors to explore financial opportunities and

to seek ways to take their businesses to the next level.

COMPREHENSIVE PRODUCT OFFERINGS

To meet our clients’ specialized needs, PFS offers a full
array of products and services that complement our
high-touch approach. Our Internet-based Private
Passport 1s a highly customized service that allows clients
24-hour access to a complete suite of financial infor-
mation, transaction and account aggregation services.
Early in 2001, Private Passport introduced a new
design and better navigation tools that were combined
with expanded capabilities, including online broker-
age, stock quotes, alert systems, news feeds and watch
lists. Private Passport enhancements planned for 2002
include enhanced bill payment for banking accounts,
online statements for trust accounts and direct access
to Northern Funds data using Quicken® and Microsoft®
Money. Early in 2002, PFS plans to introduce
Northern Trust’s Passportfolio™ service, an aggregation
service that allows clients to view their non-Northern

Trust online accounts through Private Passport.
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The North Palm Beach office relocated to a new, three-  Executive of the Boca Raton office, meet with clients
story building to accommodate Northern Trust’s Roger and Louise Neuhoff at the North Palm

expanding business, while vaising our visibility in Beach office to discuss their personal financial goals.

one of Florida’s largest and fastest-growing markets. The Neuhoffs rely on Northern Trust for sevvices that
Doug Regan (far right), President of the Palm Beach  include private banking, fiduciary, commercial lending,

Region, and Liska Langston (far left), Managing  investment management and estate planning.
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Personal Finzncizl Services

In 2001, Northern Trust launched private equity
fund and hedge fund programs—two new alternative
investment programs that allow our PFS clients to fur-
ther diversify their portfolios. With a new mutual fund
added to Northern Funds, our mutual fund family
now comprises 32 funds for individual investors. PFS
increasingly seeks synergies with Northern Trust’s
investment management and corporate and institutional
businesses to leverage existing client relationships and
to attract new business, as evidenced by our innovative
linkage between PFS and Northern Trust Retirement
Consulting (NTRC) to tap into that group’s large base
of 401(k) plan participants.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT

The Wealth Management Group, one of the fastest-
growing segments of PFS, serves the complex financial
needs of individuals and families who generally have
more than $100 million in investable assets and who
often invest globally and employ multiple investment
managers. Wealth Management currently serves 265
families in 40 states and nine non-U.S. countries and
provides an array of customized services, including
global custody, asset management, investment consult-
ing, private banking, trust, fiduciary and other specialty
services tailored to the sophisticated needs of this market.

Wealth Management’s assets under administration
in 2001 were $65 billion, compared with $61 billion
in 2000, and assets under management totaled
$14 billion. While the group experienced strong

growth in its core custody business in 2001, much of
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the new business derived from investment-related
services. As a result of this increase in new business and
expanded client relationships, Wealth Management’s
investment consulting business significantly grew in
2001, with more people seeking expert advice in man-
aging their wealth utilizing a multimanager approach.

With increasing client demand for technology-
based tools, Wealth Management enhanced features on
its core Family Passport™ product, a highly customized
Web-based tool that helps clients effectively manage
their families’ finances. These features include improved
financial reporting, data integration tools, online bro-

kerage and links to external tools and content.

COMMITMENT TO CLIENT SERVICE

Despite 2001 challenging economic environment, our
experienced professionals and their unwavering commit-
ment to serving our clients have clearly distinguished PFS
in the marketplace. We go beyond financial management
by delivering innovative products and services with
exceptionally high-touch client care—listening to and
responding effectively to our clients’ individual needs.
We remain committed to attracting, retaining and
developing outstanding professionals who are strong
members of the local communities in which we do
business and to developing and bringing to clients a
full array of products and services that meet their

increasingly complex financial needs.




n 4

Northern Trust hosted its first VisionKeepers’ (second from left), Executive Vice President

Forum in March 2001, which brought together PFS-1llinois, and Vice President Allegra Biery

women business owners with women venture (standing) exchange ideas with forum attendees

capitalists, investment bankers and angel Sona Wang (far left), General Partner of

investors to explore financial opportunities and ~ INROADS Capital Pariners, and Robin Brooks,

build velationships. Heve, Alison Winter ~ Chairman and CEQC of Brooks Food Group, Inc.
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Corporate and institutional Services

mission Dellvering superior dom

-

estic anc global custedy, financial,

investment znd 2Cvisory services to corsorations and nsHutions Worc-

wide with innovative tecano-ogy and a strong relstionship emphasis.

WITH A LONG HISTORY of focused client
service and expertise in the trust and custody industry,
Northern Trust’s Corporate and Institutional Services
{C&IS) business unit 1s a global leader in helping
manage the sophisticated financial needs of corporate
pension funds, foundations and endowments, public
and Taft-Hartley funds, financial institutions, fund
managers and governments. Serving clients in 37 coun-
tries, Northern Trust has built a comprehensive,
global custody network covering 97 countries, up from
70 countries in 1996.

C&IS’ experienced professionals and unrivaled
consultative approach to client service are supported
by innovative technology and value-added products
and services to provide trust and custody, investment,
retirement and treasury management services to
clients worldwide. C&IS also provides credit services
to support select, fee-based client relationships.

C&IS’ success derives from the relentless pursuit
of an unchanging goal: delivering excellence in
service and client satisfaction. We remain committed to
a disciplined process for focusing on clients—listening
to, understanding and serving their changing needs.
Our reputation, coupled with a strong risk manage-
ment culture, provides the platform to capitalize on
future growth opportunities from expanding existing
client relationships with value-added services and
gaining new business from referrals.

Although the industry faced a challenging market
and an adverse economic climate in 2001, C&IS’
diverse revenue streams and robust new business helped

offset these difficult conditions. The international,
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foundations and endowments and insurance segments
contributed especially strongly to the $71 million in
net recurring trust fee new business achieved by
C&IS. In 2001, C&IS reported $1.5 trillion in total
trust assets under administration, with $236.1 billion
under management.

Our unique client focus and proven strategies
gave us the competitive edge to successtully grow our
business in 2001 by winning new business and expand-

ing our global network into key markets.

UNRIVALED CLIENT FOCUS

A consultative, partnership approach to client relation-
ships, coupled with industry-leading technology and
value-added products and services, differentiates us
from our competitors. Our solution-oriented, expert
professionals build and strengthen partnerships by
closely listening to our clients and surrounding them
with the customized products and services they
require. C&IS strives for client satisfaction by exceed-
ing client expectations. To measure our performance,
C&IS continually conducts client surveys, focus
groups and relationship reviews and works closely
with client advisory boards. The information gathered
trom these sources helps shape C&IS’ strategic initia-
tives to add value to client relationships. In 2001,
we hosted more than 60 corporate client events that
were attended by more than 3,000 people. Events
included client advisory board meetings, client confer-
ences, training sessions and Web-based seminars, such
as the Plan Sponsor Knowledge Network, which helps

keep clients apprised of regulatory changes and other




At the London headquarters of Unilever, growing multinational needs. Novthern Trust

a global leader of food, home and personal provides Unilever with a range of services for

)

v v

care brands, Philip Lambert (center), Head of six pension plans in five countries, including

Unilever’s Corporate Pensions, meets with trust and global custody, risk and performance,
Northern Trust Vice Presidents Steve Hayward  financial accounting, cash management, securities

and Aida Molineux to discuss Unilever’s  lending and benefit administration.
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developments in the retirement industry. We remain
close to our clients and value their feedback, which
helps us maintain our sharp focus on developing and
delivering innovative products and services that meet

their needs.

WORLDWIDE GROWTH

Despite market challenges, the C&IS U.S. and global
expansion strategy gained significant momentum in
2001. New business growth and further penetration in
key niche markets reflect Northern Trusts excellent
long-term growth opportunities. New business in 2001
came both from expanding existing client relation-
ships and from new clients. Our success reflected our
experience and leadership in providing large corpora-
tions and targeted segments—such as health care and
not-for-profit organizations, insurance companies,
toundations, Taft-Hartley plans and public funds—
with superior domestic and global custody, trust, benefit
payments, risk and performance, treasury management
and investment management services. Texas Instruments,
Inc., was one of the many clients that broadened their
trust and custody relationships with us, expanding
services such as trust and investment management. We
welcomed new clients such as USAA, for which we
provide trust, custody and credit services, and Kellogg
Company, which appointed Northern Trust for a range
of services that include domestic and global custody,
risk and performance reporting, benefit payments and
commercial banking. Currently, Northern Trust serves
25 percent of the 200 largest pension fund and plan
sponsors in the U.S.

Northern Trust’s solid reputation in the foundations
and endowments segment led to dramatic growth in
this area. We currently serve more than 170 foundation

and endowment clients worldwide and work with
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24 percent of the top 50 of each type of institution in
the U.S. C&IS added several significant new clients in
2001—among them the Andrew W. Mellon Foundation,
which makes grants on a selective basis to institutions
in higher education, museums and art conservation,
performing arts, population, conservation and the
environment and public affairs. As with many of our
foundations and endowments clients, Northern Trust
provides a range of services that include domestic and
global custody, securities lending, risk and performance
and online reporting.

Northern Trust Retirement Consulting (NTRC),
our retirement services arm that provides services for
both defined benefit and defined contribution plans,
currently serves more than 1.8 million plan participants.
A key C&IS strategy is to capture new market share
through synergies among Northern Trust’s businesses,
which provides clients with added value services and
creates growth opportunities. In 2001, NTRC continued
to work closely with NTGI to offer clients a broad
range of investment products and, increasingly, with
PES to leverage existing relationships for expansion of
personal wealth management and client services.

Treasury management revenues grew 8 percent to
$115.3 million, compared with $107.2 million in 2000,
and Treasury and Risk Management magazine ranked
Northern Trust among the top 10 banks for domestic
treasury management services in 2001,

The international group continues to be one
of C&IS’ fastest-growing areas, providing leading-
edge trust and custody services to both international
chients and U.S. clients investing in foreign markets.
Our strong presence in the UK., Europe and the
Asia/Pacific region further expanded in 2001,
with increasingly successtul business development

efforts in the Netherlands, Denmark, Sweden, Norway
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Northern Trust'’s move than 40-year velationship ~ William Preece (left), Director of Retivement Funds,
with Abbott Laboratories, a global, broad-based and Michael Hodges, Divector of Capital

health care company, has grown to include trust Markets and Domestic Treasury Operations,

and custody, risk and performance reporting, and Novthern Trust Vice Presidents Amy Sixel
benefit payments, investment management, credit  (second from left) and Michelle Teteak observe as
and treasury management services. Northern also  an Abbott scientist uses the company’s innovative

maintains private banking relationships with many  X-ray crystallography technology to determine the

Abbott employees. Here, Abbott Laboratories’  molecular structuve of a drug target.
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and Finland. Our efforts included winning several new
mandates in 2001, including Tredje AP-fonden (AP 3),
one of the largest pension funds in the world.
Since the 1969 opening of our London branch,
Northern Trust’s international team has grown to
more than 800 partners based outside the U.S. Our
client base in the UK. and European markets has
increased sharply over the years, with assets under cus-
tody from these clients growing 31 percent in 2001.
Today, we serve clients in 37 countries, compared with
19 countries in 1995, and we have 277 clients based
outside the U.S., compared with 117 five years ago. In
the UK., Northern Trust has a strong market position,
with a 16 percent market share of the top 200 funds in
the UK. pension market and with a 20 percent share
of the local authority market, representing 22 clients.
Our full suite of client-focused services sets us
apart as a leader in meeting cross-border, multicur-
rency reporting and investment support needs of
multinational clients. In 2001, Global Investor ranked
Northern Trust No.1 for both Internet service and for
customers using one custodian and ranked us at the top
of our peers in worldwide custody. The industry pub-
lication also ranked Northern Trust No. 1 in foreign
exchange pricing among global custodians. With our
strong global custody position and trading coverage in
71 currencies, Northern Trust ranks as one of the top
10 U.S. banks in terms of foreign exchange revenues.
Several factors helped drive new and expanded
client relationship business in the U.S. and abroad in
2001, including retirement demographics, increased
privatization of pension plans, rising cross-border
investments, the continuing shift by investors to use
multiple investment managers, outsourcing trends and
financial industry consolidation. Northern Trust’s

unique approach to our targeted markets positions us
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well to capitalize on these trends and continue captur-
ing new and expanded business around the world.
Reflecting our commitment to the UK. and
European markets, Northern Trust began construction
on a new office in the U.Ks burgeoning Canary Wharf
district, one of Europe’s largest financial centers. C&IS
and Worldwide Operations and Technology profes-
sionals will be located at the Canary Wharf office,
collaborating with our people worldwide to bring excep-
tional client services to the UK. and European markets.
Our 2000 acquisition of Dublin-based fund
accounting, administration and transfer agent capabil-
ities, which were fully integrated and strengthened in
2001, helped increase our competitive edge and prod-
uct offering in fund manager outsourcing services.
Northern Trust’s focus on the Asia/Pacific region
was underscored by several key initiatives that resulted
in important advances. In December 2001, Northern
Trust was awarded wholesale banking privileges in
Singapore, which will allow us to broaden our cus-
tody-related services in that country. In November,
Northern Trust and the Bank of Communications
in China, China’s fifth-largest bank ranked by assets,
signed a cooperation agreement that promotes
knowledge-sharing and enables Northern to gain valu-
able insight into China’s developing pension, insur-

ance, mutual fund and wealth management markets.

INNOVATION IN TECHNOLOGY AND SERVICE

Supporting NorthernTrust’s high-touch client focus is
the Northern Trust Passport® suite of browser-based
Web products, including retirement, custody, foreign
exchange, securities lending and risk and performance
application tools. As technology rapidly evolves, C&IS
distinguishes itself among competitors by continuously

integrating industry-leading technology to facilitate




creative solutions, enhance collaboration and empower
client decision making.

In Spring 2001, C&IS announced the development
of Northern Trust Global Investor Passport™ a next-
generation information tool for corporate and institu-
tional clients that combines proprietary technology
with Northern Trust’s high-touch service to keep clients
informed of relevant market news tied to their portfolio
and to facilitate quicker, more powerful decision mak-
ing. Global Investor Passport is a highly customized,
easy-to-use resource designed for all levels of employees,
including senior management. The personalized features,
including real-time market information and news
from Reuters and NewsEdge, allow clients more in-
depth daily reporting, analysis, tracking and monitoring
of their portfolios. Users of the tool also have access
to Northern Trust Alerts$ a system that immediately
signals clients about developing events that could
impact their portfolios and that arms clients with the
information and tools they need to effectively manage
their portfolio risk. Global Investor Passport was beta-
tested with several clients beginning in 2001 and will
roll out on a larger scale in 2002,

Northern Trust in 2001 further developed and
enhanced our Custody Passport™ product with more
secure, Web-based technologies and customized tools,
including Trade Input, which provides institutional
fund managers with a Web-based tool to enter trade
instructions directly into Northern Trust’s trade system.

A new generation of Retirement Passport® also
launched early in 2001, including educational, advisory
and decision-making tools, as well as Retirement
Investment Link, a service that combines Northern
Trust’s funds, brokerage and personal trust capabilities
to help educate employees about the rollover process

when leaving a retirement plan.

Treasury Passport™ a Web-based suite of infor-
mation reporting, transaction initiation and image
delivery services, added the Alerts event reporting fea-
ture, which proactively notifies clients of time-sensitive
positive pay exception activity. Automated Clearing
House (ACH) payments also launched on Treasury
Passport, enabling users immediate access to compre-
hensive reporting capabilities. In 2001, C&IS completed
the migration of all basic treasury management
products to the Web.

Northern Trust and Fiserv, Inc., a leading provider
of integrated data processing and information man-
agement systems, formed a joint venture in 2001 that
provides Northern Trust with receivables management
services. The joint venture ‘combines our top-quality
expertise with Fiserv’s national presence and will allow
us to deepen our position as a leader in innovative
products and services and to provide clients with a
more comprehensive lockbox service that leverages
state-of-the-art technology, seamless information

delivery and additional attractive locations.

COMMITMENT TO CLIENT SATISFACTION

Ours is a reputation business. The trust and confidence
our clients have placed in us are critical to our success.
‘We maintain and build trust and confidence through
our consultative, partnership approach to client service
and our unwavering adherence to principles that endure.
We are proud of what our team of talented professionals
accomplished with and for our clients in 2001. That the
strength of our commitment was tested and proven so
clearly in a vear of unprecedented difficulties simply

reinforces our confidence in our ability to thrive in the

challenges ahead.

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION
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Northern Trust Global Investents

mission Providing investment managemen: srocucts znd services

to institutional and oserscnal ciens

NORTHERN TRUST GLOBAL INVESTMENTS (NTGI)
is a global, multi-asset class investment manager serv-
ing personal and institutional clients. In addition to a
broad array of internally managed active and passive
investment capabilities, NTGI offers alternative
investments and total investment program outsourcing
through our well-established manager-of-managers
program and provides comprehensive portfolio
services, including securities lending, brokerage and
transition management, to help clients cost-effectively
manage their investment programs.

As one of the largest investment managers in the
world, NTGI follows a highly focused business strategy
that continued to contribute to our success in 2001,
This approach is based on our five key principles:
generating superior investment results, developing
innovative investment products to anticipate and meet
client needs, expanding distribution channels domesti-
cally and globally, supporting client relationships
through high-quality client servicing and promoting
the brand name.

Despite the very challenging investment environ-
ment in 2001, NTGI’s asset base declined only slight-
ly to $330 billion from $338 billion a year earlier. This
compares favorably to the asset changes experienced by
many major competitors, where declines in assets
uﬁder management of 20 percent or more during the

year were not uncommon. NTGI’s asset base stability
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was due in part to its significant cash and fixed income
components that served to buffer the negative impact
of the difficult stock market environment on the equity
assets. Since 1996, assets under management have
grown at a compound annual rate of 20.4 percent,
despite the slight decline in 2001. Our mutual fund
assets in 2001 were $44 billion, compared with
$37.7 billion a year earlier. According to industry pub-
lication FRC Monitor, NTGI ranks as the fifth-largest
bank-run mutual fund family. Pensions & Investments
ranks Northern Trust the 15th-largest investment
manager in the U.S., the seventh-largest manager of
index-based assets and the fifth-largest manager of

fax-exempt assets.

WORLD-CLASS PRODUCT MIX AND
LEADING TECHNOLOGY

The difficult equity markets in 2001 highlighted the
importance of NTGIs commitment to offering a
broad range of investment capabilities to clients.
NTGIs primary equity investment style has been
quality growth, which has produced strong long-term
results but was out of favor in 2001. However, NTGI’s
newer value equity management team, introduced in
2000, produced a strong investment performance dur-
ing 2001. Because the equity market tends to move in
cycles where value and growth styles move in and out
of favor, diversifying across investment styles is an
important way investors can reduce overall investment

risk. NTGI now offers both growth and value styles




In vesponse to a growing client demand,  investment programs are administered

NTGI added two alternative investment by a highly experienced group of investment

programs in 2001—rprivate equity and hedge professionals, including (from left to right)

Sunds, which offer private and institutional Vice Presidents Lori Runquist and Christopher

clients a more diversified portfolio with a manager-  Walvoord, NTGA Executive Vice President Maigaret

of-managers approach. The alternative  Towle and Vice President Robert Morgan.
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Nortzern Trus: Global Investments
across a range of capitalizations for broad diversification.
Other new products added in 2001 include a hedge fund
program and a private equity fund program—both
designed to provide lower correlation to the equity
markets and greater diversification than traditional
equity approaches. Northern’s high yield capability,
which completed its third full year in 2001, produced
strong results during the year, as did the short dura-
tion, municipal and European fixed income products.
NTGI launched three new mutual funds in 2001 and
now offers 54 mutual funds through two fund families,
Northern Funds and Northern Institutional Funds.

Through our manager-of-managers subsidiary,
Northern Trust Global Advisors, Inc. (NTGA), we
offer total investment program management for insti-
tutional clients. This program provides customized
investment management solutions that integrate plan
design, asset allocation, manager selection, evaluation
and ongoing monitoring and performance reporting. -
Total investment program outsourcing continued to
accelerate in 2001, with 18 new clients with assets
totaling $2.8 billion selecting NTGA for total invest-
ment program management. At the end of 2001,
NTGA had 254 clients and $15.2 billion in assets
under management in multimanager programs,
including clients using partial and total investment
program outsourcing.

Securities lending revenues in 2001 grew
16 percent to $135.6 million, with average volume
increases of 23 percent over the past five years. In 2001,
Northern Trust was named the top securities lending
provider in the world by International Securities

Finance magazine and received top ratings in five
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service categories illustrating global presence, market
expertise and product and technology innovation,
on an unweighted basis. In May, Northern Trust
announced its participation in Equilend, a consortium
of 10 leading financial institutions dedicated to deliv-
ering a new standard of efficiency and client service in
the equity securities lending industry. EquiLend plans to
begin initial operations in 2002. Another key develop-
ment in Northern’s securities lending business during
the year was the expansion of its program to include
mutual funds.

Transition services also gained momentum in
2001. At an increasing pace, plan sponsors are hiring
Northern Trust to act as an independent transition
manager to transition their assets between asset classes
and among multiple investment managers. Northern’s
role as a leading investment manager and a leading
custodian provides a market-leading platform to offer
a premier transition service. The assets transitioned by
NTGI grew 22 percent in 2001.

Our mutual fund business continued to grow
rapidly despite the challenging market environment, with
assets increasing nearly 17 percent to $44 billion
during the year. Twenty-five out of 40 eligible mutual
funds received high rankings in 2001 for investment
performance from Morningstar or Lipper Analytical
Services. The Northern Funds Web site was redesigned
to improve online account access and functionality and
to incorporate new features, such as news feeds and

stock quotes.
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NTGPs diversified product offerings include a broad

approaches. Here, Senior Vice President David McHugh

range of high-quality value equity capabilities, (from left), Executive Vice President and Chie
24 gn-q quity cap

Investment Officer Orie Dudley and Carl

which complement our historical emphasis on

growth investing and provide clients with a Domino, Head of Northern Trust Value Investors,

more complete range of active equity  collaborate on investment strategies.
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Northern Trust Global Investments

Northern Trust Securities, Inc. (NTSI), Northern
Trust’s brokerage arm, offers a full array of brokerage
products and services, including stocks, bonds, mutual
funds and annuities to Northern’s private and institu-
tional clients. In 2001, NTSI introduced a new suite of
highly competitive brokerage products, each specifi-
cally tailored to address the unique needs of the
affluent market. The Investor’s Select Account is a fee-
based transaction account that combines traditional
advisory-based brokerage services with online and
wireless access and asset management account features.
The Century Managed Account provides Northern
clients with professional separate account management
in the growth or value style. Mutual fund asset alloca-
tion is available to clients through the managed
Meridian Account.

Expanding Internet capabilities have played a
significant part in NTGI’s market leadership position.

Northern Trust’s securities lending group has been

‘providing an automated lending system since 1992

and has grown that platform to include securities in
the U.S., UK., France, Germany and Japan. In 1999,
Northern Trust converted this system to the Internet
and became the first securities lender to provide
Internet-based lending capabilities to borrowers.
At the end of 2001, 75 percent of all trades completed
worldwide by Northern Trust were executed via
this platform.

In 2001, NTSI introduced an online brokerage
service that allows investors easy and convenient access

to managing their assets anytime and from anywhere
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via phone, wireless device or the Web. The service offers
full real-time trading functions for accurate order exe-~
cution and immediate access to account and investment
information. In addition, the service provides research
from leading industry sources, news and screening
tools for stocks and mutual funds.

INTSI partnered with Northern Trust Retirement
Consulting (NTRC) to deliver several new capabilities
to corporate retirement plan clients, including a self-
directed option for 401(k) plan participants. The
February 2001 launch of Northern Trust Select
Retirement Account, a tool linking Retirement
Passport to N'TSI’s brokerage window, allows retirement
plan participants of NTRC corporate clients to access
investment vehicles outside their company’s plan and
to directly transact equity, fixed income and mutual
fund trades through N'TSI. This initiative was followed
midyear by the introduction of Private Passport and
Family Passport features that provide access to NTSI's
online brokerage services without any additional sign-
on. To support these new initiatives, NTSI established
an investment services center, integrating customer
service from all market segments to provide clients

with seamless retirement plan support and services.

STRENGTHENING U.S. AND
INTERNATIONAL DISTRIBUTION

Cross-selling and third-party distribution initiatives
continued to be strong drivers of our success in selling
our investment products and services in high-growth
markets worldwide. Qur cross-selling initiatives
leverage existing client relationships in C&IS and

PES to identify additional investment management




opportunities. Third-party distribution of our invest-

ment management products significantly broadened
through outside channels, including wrap programs
offered by major brokerages, an institutional consultant
calling program, joint ventures and subadvisory
alliances.

NTGI also significantly expanded its distribution
networks in the growing European market. In August,
NTGI and the asset management division of Helaba,
a leading bank in Germany, announced the creation
of a joint venture company, Helaba NorthernTrust
GmbH, which combines the expertise of the two
organizations to offer institutional investment
management services to the German market. The
first jointly developed product is a European corpo-
rate bond fund, created to meet the growing
demand for expertise in euro-denominated securities.
NTGI entered the Italian market in October with
a $112.8 million mandate from Mediolanum, an Italian
banking group, to manage four Mediolanum mutual
tunds. In the Japanese market, NTGI expanded its
existing relationship with a leading banking organiza-

tion to provide hedge fund subadvisory services.

COMMITMENT TO CLIENT SERVICING
AND BRANDING INITIATIVES

During 2001, NTGI’s successful client servicing
model was further refined to provide enhanced support
for the selling and servicing of investment products
and services. These efforts included the addition
of dedicated sales staff for new distribution channels, the
expansion of the client servicing teams and increased

resources for the Fund Center, which handles mutual

fund inquiries from current and prospective sharehold-
ers. Internet-based account reporting was introduced in
2001 for institutional clients, oftering around-the-clock
access to performance and other account information.
Web conterencing also became an increasingly impor-
tant tool for client communications, particularly after
the September 11 attacks.

NTGI professionals continued to be increasingly
recognized by the media tor their investment expert-
ise, as overall media coverage rose significantly during
the year. NTGI was covered in more than 1,000 invest-
ment articles or broadcast programs during 2001, up
from 450 in 2000. NTGI also launched an authored
article program in the U.K. market, providing expert
opinion pieces throughout the year for several key
industry publications.

Conference sponsorships continued to play an
important role in reinforcing NTGIs position in the
institutional marketplace in 2001, while client events
provided a forum for introducing key new products,
including hedge fund and private equity fund programs.

Our continued success stems from the extraor-
dinary efforts and teamwork of our experienced
professionals who are fully dedicated to finding cost-
effective solutions for clients’ investment management
needs and who continue to seek sound investment
strategies to broaden our product mix, provide cus-
tomized investment choices and increase our product

and service distribution worldwide.

NOCRTHERN TRUST CORPORATION
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NORTHERN TRUST'S WORLDWIDE OPERATIONS
AND TECHNOLOGY (WWOT) group works closely
with our personal, corporate, institutional and invest-
ment businesses to integrate technology with our con-
sultative approach, which further deepens client rela-
tionships and better serves clients’ needs. Our strategy
of a single technology platform has enabled Northern
Trust to effectively leverage capabilities across our
businesses—distinguishing us as a cost-effective tech-
nology leader in the financial industry. Information Week
magazine in 2001 ranked Northern Trust among the
top 500 companies that are the largest and most inno-
vative users of information technology and ranked us
second among our financial industry peers. Northern
Trust also ranked among e WEEK magazine’s top 500
e-business innovators.

As the technology landscape swiftly evolves,
Northern Trust holds its competitive edge by further
developing our highly skilled people and by investing
in technology that helps us anticipate and proactively
deliver client-focused products and services. From
1999 to 2001, Northern Trust spent $800 million on

technology and estimates an additional $950 million
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for the years 2002 to 2004. Our cutting-edge technology
1s complemented by more than a century of experience
in protecting our clients’ privacy and in safeguarding
financial transactions through advanced security
methods. Following the September 11 terrorist attacks,
Northern Trust’s nearby Lower Manhattan offices were
closed—thankfully, all of our employees were safely
evacuated—and business relocated to an alternate New
Jersey site. Our pre-established, company-wide busi-
ness continuity plans, coupled with the extraordinary
efforts of Northern partners, successfully ensured that
systems were secure and that clients’ needs continued
to be met.

‘With operations in the UK., Europe, the Asia-
Pacific region and North America, our leading-edge
technology supports the seamless and timely process-
ing of client transactions worldwide.

As cross-border investing and global trading
activities accelerate, Northern Trust has taken a lead-
ership role in developing technologies that address
two critical global initiatives for the securities industry,
Global Straight Through Processing (GSTP) and trade
date plus one (T+1). GSTP is an industry utility for
cross-border trade communication that will enable
rapid interconnectivity among investment managers,
broker-dealers and global custodians, with the goal of

improving the accuracy, completeness and timeliness



of trade information. T+1 will reduce the time
allowed to settle trades from the current three days
to one—improving the settlement process, reducing
costs of processing trades and reducing exposure and
operational risks by ensuring more accurate informa-
tion matching and settlement. The U.S. launch of
T+1 has been rescheduled from 2004 to mid-2003,
allowing organizations more time to upgrade their
business continuity plans following the events of
September 11. Northern Trust is well on track to be
fully compliant before the deadline. We continue to
plan, manage and implement our T+1 and GSTP
efforts and actively participate in related groups to
ensure input into industry solutions and to build a
deeper knowledge base.

With our unwavering commitment to accuracy,
speed, efficiency and standardization in all of our client
transactions, Northern Trust continued enhancing
products and services in 2001 to facilitate che transi-
tion of straight-through processing and T+1. The
February 2001 launch of Trade Input, a Web-based

trade input facility, allows institutional fund managers

to securely send electronic trade instructions directly -

into Northern Trust’s trade system. We also enhanced
settlement capabilities in the global foreign exchange
area and completed the migration of our Passport suite

of products to a Web-browser platform.

INNOVATIVE E-BUSINESS

As our clients have become more sophisticated and
technologically savvy in managing their financial

matters, Northern Trust remains ahead of this booming

e-business trend by developing and enhancing related
products and services. An intense client focus drives
our e-business initiatives, with our skilled professionals
working from task plans that specifically address
client-driven needs. We do not believe technology
defines service; rather, we view the Internet as a valu-
able tool to help us build even stronger relationships
with our clients. Northern Trust’s Web-based technology
complements our high-touch client relationships—
providing clients with an easy and convenient resource
to manage their assets anytime and from anywhere via
phone, wireless device or the Internet.

Northern Trust’s Web site provides a gateway to
our Northern Trust Passport suite of online financial
services for institutional and personal clients.
From one financial solutions portal, clients can conve-
niently access a broad array of products and services.
In 2001, our e-business team introduced several
additions and enhancements to our specialized Web
sites, including the redesign of our public Web site,
www.northerntrust.com, which provides easier navi-
gation and offers more search capabilities and easier
access to accounts, quotes, news and calculators. We
launched online brokerage services in early 2001, offering
full real-time trading functions and immediate access to
account and investment information, and we introduced
a redesigned Private Passport, which has improved

navigation and more specialized features such as news
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feeds and watch lists. A new generation of Retirement
Passport also launched to leverage the latest Web tech-
nologies for 24-hour access to comprehensive plan
inquiry and investment advice tools.

Following successful concept-testing in 2001,
we continue rolling out Global Investor Passport, our
dynamic new Web-based product for our corporate and
institutional clients. This highly customized tool helps
keep clients apprised of relevant market news and infor-
mation related to their portfolios and facilitates
quicker, more powerful decision making to effectively

manage risk.

CLIENT-DRIVEN FOCUS

Northern Trust’s success heavily relies on attracting
and retaining outstanding professionals to further our
technology endeavors. We will continue to focus
attention on developing our talented staff, and we
will continue taking a leadership role in technologies
that impact our industry.

As the demand for immediacy accelerates,
Northern Trust is strongly committed to staying
ahead of the technology curve by creating and
enhancing innovative products and services that
complement our unrivaled high-touch client service

and fully meet clients’ needs.

NORTHERN TRUST CCRPORATION
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C@mmuniw Imvoivernen
HELPING TO IMPROVE quality of life by
investing in the communities where we do business
has been a long-standing mission of Northern Trust.
Through community lending programs, grants,
development investments, charitable giving and vol-
unteer activities, we participate in a range of worthy
causes in the educational, civic, cultural and human
services areas.

Throughout 2001, The Northern Trust Company
continued to develop and expand community partner-
ships in Chicago with total Community Reinvestment
Act (CRA) grants and investments of more than
$10.5 million. Our ongoing relationship with the
DuPage Homeownership Center, which works to find
affordable housing options for qualified homebuyers
in suburban Illinois DuPage County, included a com-
mitment to an additional $1 million purchase of second
mortgages to help reduce families” home-buying costs.
This investment allowed the center to double the
number of families who completed home purchases in
2001. Our commitment to the funding of Individual
Development Accounts (IDA) expanded with the
funding of matching grants to participants in Chicago’s
North of Howard program, which combines financial
literacy training with a savings account to help partic-
ipants achieve long-term goals of homeownership and
financial stability.

Furthering our Chicago-area initiatives,
Northern Trust in 2001 invested $9.4 million in the
City of Chicago’s Qualified Zone Academy Bond, the
proceeds of which were used to fund needed capital
improvements in low-income Chicago community

schools, and we were instrumental in the opening of




Northern Trust continues its long-standing relationship ~ Loop that Northern Trust helped finance. Gregg’s
with Lakefront Single Room Occupancy (SRO) dedication has taken Northern Trust’s involvement

Corp., a nonprofit developer of affordable supportive with the organization from a charitable trust

housing. Northern Trust Executive Vice President grant recipient fo a multifaceted community
Gregg Behrens, who served as the organization’s  partnership. The 207-unit building provides formerly
board chairman, and Lakefront SRO President  homeless and low-income adults with housing and

Jean Butzen stand outside the single room occupancy — supportive services, including an employment training

apartment building in Chicago’s South  center, a literacy program and computer classes.
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Community involverent
two new childcare centers in Chicago’s Lawndale and
Little Village neighborhoods.

Northern Trust’s community investment and
development activities also are conducted across our
national network of offices. In 2001, Northern Trust
Bank of California was a founding partner of the
newly created California Investment Pool, which will
help retain affordable housing units that risk being
converted to a more costly rent structure. Our
Milwaukee office furthered its efforts with the Local
Initiatives Support Corporation (LISC) and the City
of Milwaukee by assisting in the creation of an invest-
ment pool that will provide grants to encourage
homeownership in a specific development area.
Northern Trust Bank of Florida in 2001 originated
26 community development loans totaling more than
$9.2 million—addressing affordable housing and
social services needs in targeted Florida communities.

Deeply rooted in our community commitment is
the dedication of Northern people who generously
donate their time and money to numerous causes.
From mentoring, tutoring and classroom teaching
to walk-a-thons and fundraisers, employee volun-
teerism—along with our matching gift program—
is a proud tradition throughout Northern Trust.

In 2001, Northern Trust was honored with the
Greater Ilinois Chapter of the National Multiple
Sclerosis Society’s corporate philanthropic award, rec-

ognizing our 20-year relationship with the organization,
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during which we have provided financial and leader-
ship support. Northern Trust again served as a corpo-
rate sponsor in Chicago’s 2001 Juvenile Diabetes
Foundation’s Walk to Cure Diabetes, and many
Chicago-area employees mentored and tutored
children from city and suburban schools. We also
continued our financial and volunteer support at many
local community centers that serve minority neigh-
borhoods, including the Erie Neighborhood House on
Chicago’s West Side, whose services include social,
health and education.

Corporate contributions are a key initiative in
our nationwide community commitment. In 2001,
Northern Trust’s charitable giving totaled $9.5 mil-
lion. Of that amount, nearly $4 million was donated by
Northern’s ‘Charitable Trust and included $800,000 to
support the United Way/Crusade of Mercy. Grants
totaling $3 million were made to a broad range of wor-
thy organizations. Through our matching gift program,
corporate contributions were more than $860,000.

We feel that it is our responsibility to help grow
strong, vibrant communities in which we do business
and to be good corporate citizens. As Northern Trust
continues to build and expand a national network, we
will continue to reinforce our mission through active

community involvement.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

Northern Trust Corporation (Corporation) is a
bank holding company organized in 1971 to hold all
of the outstanding capital stock of The Northern
Trust Company (Bank), an Illinois banking corpo-
ration with its headquarters located in the Chicago
financial district. The Corporation also owns banks
with offices in Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida
and Texas, a federal savings bank with offices in

($ In Millions Except Per Share Information) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Noninterest Income
Trust Fees $1,231.3 $1,201.2 $ 9742 $ 8163 $ 689.2
Foreign Exchange Trading Profits 139.8 152.7 107.7 103.5 104.8
Treasury Management Fees 84.1 71.5 67.9 69.9 60.2
Security Commissions and Trading Income 35.5 343 30.2 28.0 26.1
Other Noninterest Income 89.3 77.3 55.2 53.9 54.2
Total Noninterest Income 1,580.0 1,537.0 1,235.2 1,071.6 934.5
Net Interest Income 595.3 568.6 518.8 477.2 438.2
Provision for Credit Losses 66.5 24.0 12.5 9.0 9.0
Income before Noninterest Expenses 2,108.8 2,081.6 1,741.5 1,539.8 1,363.7
Noninterest Expenses
Compensation 685.8 689.1 582.6 518.1 448.3
Employee Benefits 122.2 109.3 98.5 91.3 79.0
Occupancy Expense 100.2 87.3 74.3 67.9 66.7
Equipment Expense 85.7 73.1 63.6 62.2 62.2
Other Operating Expenses 383.0 392.7 306.0 257.6 235.6
Total Noninterest Expenses 1,376.9 1,351.5 1,125.0 997.1 8901.8
Income before Income Taxes 731.9 730.1 616.5 542.7 471.9
Provision for Income Taxes 244.4 245.0 211.5 188.8 162.5
Net Income 487.5 $ 485.1 $ 405.0 $ 3539 $ 3094
38 Net Income Applicable to Common Stock $ 483.4 $ 4794 $ 400.2 $ 3490 $ 3044
Per Common Share
Net Income
Basic $ 2.18 $ 217 $ 181 $§ 1.58 $ 1.37
Diluted 2.11 2.08 1.74 1.52 1.33
Dividends Declared .635 .56 495 .435 375
Book Value—End of Period (EOP) 11.97 10.54 9.25 8.19 7.27
Market Price—-EQP 60.22 81.56 53.00 43.66 34.88
Average Total Assets $ 35,624 $ 34,043 $ 30,177 $ 27,191 $ 24,052
Senior Notes—EQOP 450 500 500 700 785
Long-Term Debt—-EOP 767 638 659 458 440
Debt-Floating Rate Capital Securities—EOP 268 268 268 267 267
Ratios
Dividend Payout Ratio 29.2% 25.9% 27.6% 27.7% 27.5%
Return on Average Assets 1.37 1.43 1.34 1.30 1.29
Return on Average Common Equity 19.34 22.09 20.67 20.47 20.17
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets—EOP 10.88 9.79 9.92 9.78 9.61
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets—EOP 14.25 12.85 13.60 13.06 12.78
Leverage Ratio 7.93 6.91 7.14 6.90 6.87
Average Stockholders’ Equity to Average Assets 7.36 6.73 6.81 6.71 6.78
Average Loans and Leases Times Average
Stockholders’ Equity 6.8x 7.2x 7.1x 7.3x 7.2x
Stockholders—EOP 3,183 3,194 3,251 3,373 3,380
Staff-EOP (full-time equivalent) 9,453 9,466 8,583 8,156 7,553

Michigan, Missouri1, Nevada, Ohio, Washington and
Wisconsin, a trust company in New York and vari-
ous other nonbank subsidiaries, including a securities
brokerage firm, an international investment consult-
ing firm and a retirement services company. The
Bank has global custody operations in London, of-
fices in the Chicago metropolitan area and various
subsidiaries including an investment management
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company, a leasing company, a Canadian trust com-
pany, a New York Edge Act company and a global
fund services provider. Although the operations of
other subsidiaries will be of increasing significance to
the Corporation, it is expected that the Bank will, in
the foreseeable future continue to be the major
source of the consolidated assets, revenues and net
income. Northern Trust has not utilized uncon-
solidated special purpose entities in order to provide
financing, improve liquidity, transfer assets or man-
age credit risk.

All references to “Northern Trust” refer to
Northern Trust Corporation and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. :

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations
should be read in conjunction with Northern Trust’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and Consolidated
Financial Stadstics included herein. Certain critical
accounting policies involve estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and li-
abilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements; and, the reported amounts of revenues
and expense during the reporting period. Actual re-
sults could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
judgments regarding the administration of the reserve
for credit losses, as described in Management’s Dis-
cussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, is of particular significance to
Northern Trust.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview. Net income for 2001 totaled a record
$487.5 million, up from $485.1 million earned
in 2000 which was 20% greater than the $405.0
million earned in 1999. Diluted net income per
common share increased 1% to $2.11 from $2.08 in
2000, which was up 20% from $1.74 in 1999. The
2001 results were achieved notwithstanding a $66.5
million provision for credit losses compared to $24.0
million in 2000. The record net income performance
produced a return on average common stockholders’
equity of 19.34% compared with 22.09% in 2000 and
20.67% in 1999. The return on average assets was
1.37% 1n 2001 compared with 1.43% in 2000 and
1.34% in 1999.

2001 marks the fourteenth consecutive year of
record earnings. Trust fees, net interest income and
treasury management fees were all at record levels.
Trust assets under administration of $1.68 trillion at

OPERATIONS

December 31, 2001 were unchanged from the prior
year, despite declines in worldwide equity markets,
as evidenced by the 13% yearly decline in the S&P
500 equity index and 21% fall in the Nasdaq Com-
posite Index. Northern Trust’s diversified revenue
sources produced a 3% increase in revenues while
operating expenses increased by just 2%, resulting in
a 162% productivity ratio, an all-time high.

Stockholders’ equity grew to $2.77 billion, as
compared to $2.46 billion at December 31, 2000 and
$2.17 billion at December 31, 1999, primarily
through the retention of earnings, offset in part by
the repurchase of common stock pursuant to the
Corporation’s share buyback program.

The Board of Directors increased the quarterly
dividend per common share 9.7% in November 2001,
to $.17 from $.155, for a new annual rate of $.68.
This is the fifteenth consecutive year in which the
dividend rate has been increased. The Board’s action
reflects a policy of increasing the dividend rate with
increased profitability while retaining sufficient earn-
ings to allow for strategic expansion and the main-
tenance of a strong balance sheet and capital ratios.

Northern Trust’s strategy will continue to focus
on growing its two principal business units: Corpo-
rate and Institutional Services (C&IS) and Personal
Financial Services (PFS). C&IS provides master trust,
master custody and related services to retirement
plans, institutional clients and international clients; a
comprehensive array of retirement consulting, actuar-
ial and recordkeeping services; and a full range of
commercial banking services. PES provides financial
services to individuals and closely held businesses
through a unique office network in twelve states. An
important element in this strategy is increasing the
penetration of the C&IS and PFS target markets with
investment management and related services and
products provided by a third business unit, Northern
Trust Global Investments (NTGI). In executing this
strategy, Northern Trust emphasizes service quality
through a high level of personal service com-
plemented by the effective use of technology.
Operating support for these business units is pro-
vided through the Worldwide Operations and Tech-
nology business unit (WWOT). Expense growth and
capital expenditures are closely monitored to ensure
that short- and long-term business strategies and per-
formance objectives are effectively balanced.

Nonrinterest Income. Noninterest income represented
71% of total taxable equivalent revenue in both 2001
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and 2000, compared with 69% in 1999. Noninterest
income totaled $1.58 billion in 2001, $1.54 billion in
2000, and $1.24 billion in 1999.

Trust Fees. Trust fees accounted for 78% of total
noninterest income and 55% of total taxable equiv-
alent revenue in 2001. Trust fees for 2001 increased
3% to $1.23 billion from $1.20 billion in 2000, which
was up 23% from $974.2 million in 1999. Trust fees
have increased at a compound growth rate of 16% for
the past five years. Total trust assets under admin-
istration at December 31, 2001 were $1.68 trillion,
virtually unchanged from a year ago, including $452.2
billion of global custody assets. Trust assets under admin-
istration included managed assets of $330.1 billion,
down from $338.0 billion at the end of 2000.

Trust fees are based on the market value of assets
managed and administered, the volume of trans-
actions, securities lending volume and spreads, and
fees for other services rendered. Asset-based fees are
typically determined on a sliding scale so that as the
value of a client portfolio grows in size, Northern
Trust receives a smaller percentage of the increasing
value as fee income. Therefore, market value or
other changes in a portfolio’s size do not typically
have a proportionate impact on the level of trust
fees. Certain investment management fee arrange-
ments also may provide for performance fees which
are based on client portfolio returns exceeding pre-
determined levels. In addition, C&IS trust relation-
ships are increasingly priced to reflect earnings from
activities such as custody-related deposits and foreign
exchange trading that are not included in trust fees.
Custody-related deposits maintained with bank sub-
sidiaries and foreign branches are primarily interest-
bearing and averaged $9.4 billion in 2001, §7.7
billion in 2000 and $7.0 billion in 1999.

Northern Trust’s fiduciary business encompasses
master trust, master custody, investment management
and retirement services for retirement plans, institu-
tional clients and international clients, as well as a
complete range of estate planning, fiduciary and asset
management services for individuals. Fees from these
services are fairly evenly distributed between C&IS
and PFS. A discussion of the trust-related services
provided by each of these business units and NTGI
follows. The operating results, which include both
trust and banking services, for C&IS and PFS are
provided on pages 44-48.

Corporate and Institutional Services. Trust fees
in C&IS increased 5% in 2001 to $616.3 million
from $587.8 million in 2000, which was up 21%
from $484.6 million in 1999. These fees are derived
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from the full set of master trust and master custody
services that Northern Trust provides to retirement
plans and institutional clients worldwide. Northern
Trust’s products include investment management and
worldwide custody, settlement and reporting.
Investment related services include cash manage-
ment, securities lending, performance analysis, risk
management and a broad range of active and passive
investment products provided through NTGI. In
addition to these services, Northern Trust offers its
clients a comprehensive array of retirement consult-
ing, actuarial and recordkeeping services.

The following table summarizes C&IS trust fees
by product:

Corporate and Institutional Services
Summary of Trust Fees by Product

(In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Custody Services $199.4 $194.5 §$157.4
Investment Management 180.9 1786 1492
Securities Lending 135.6 117.3 97.6
Retirement Consulting Services 60.6 59.9 46.7
Other Services 39.8 37.5 33.7
Total Trust Fees $616.3 $587.8 $484.6

All services provided by C&IS contributed to a
$28.5 million increase in trust fees. Fees from cus-
tody services increased 3% as a result of new busi-
ness, offset in part by the impact of lower market
values of assets administered. Domestic and interna-
tional securities lending fees were strong, combining
to increase $18.3 million or 16% to $135.6 million,
resulting from both higher volumes and increased
spreads earned on the investment of collateral, due to
the 11 decreases in the federal funds rate during the
year. Retirement services recordkeeping and consult-
ing fees increased 1% to $60.6 million.

C&IS trust fees benefited from new asset manage-
ment business, offset in large part by the impact of
lower market values of assets under management.
Northern Trust continued to broaden its offerings of
both passive and actively managed investment prod-
ucts to trust and banking clients. Fees from invest-
ment products totaled $180.9 million, up slightly
from $178.6 million in 2000. Investment manage-
ment fees also include $2.1 million, compared to
$11.0 million in 2000, of performance-based in-
centive fees for several Northern Trust Global Advi-
sors” (NTGA) “manager of manager” funds. These
fees are largely offset by performance-based incentive
payments to the sub-advisors of these funds that are
reflected in other operating expenses.
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Consolidated Trust Assets Under Administration

Five-Year
Compound
Percent Growth
December 31 Change Rate
{$ In Billions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2001/00
Corporate & Institutional $ 236.1 $ 239.9 $§ 2075 § 162.6 $ 138.1 (2)% 23%
Personal 94.0 98.1 91.6 73.4 58.5 4) 15
Total Managed Trust Assets 330.1 338.0 299.1 236.0 196.6 2) 20
Corporate & Institutional 1,281.7 1,275.1 1,178.4 - 9759 845.3 1 16
Personal 72.8 70.7 60.4 47.8 37.4 3 19
Total Non-Managed Trust Assets 1,354.5 1,345.8 1,238.8 1,023.7 882.7 1 16
Consolidated Trust Assets Under
Administration $1,684.6 $1,683.8 $1,537.9 $1,259.7 $1,079.3 —% 17%

Total C&IS trust assets under administration
were virtually unchanged from the prior year at
$1.52 trillion at December 31, 2001. Of the C&IS
trust assets under administration, 37% was invested in
equity securities, 23% in fixed income securities, 11%
in cash and other assets and 29% in global equity,
fixed income and cash assets. Included in C&IS assets
administered are those for which Northern Trust has
management responsibility. Managed assets were in-
vested 27% 1in equity securities, 21% in fixed income
securities and 52% in cash and other assets. The cash
and other assets that have been deposited by invest-
ment firms as collateral for securities they have bor-
rowed from trust clients are invested by Northern
Trust and are included in trust assets under admin-
istration as managed assets. The collateral totaled
$92.2 billion and $94.6 billion at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Net new recurring C&IS business sold and transi-
tioned in 2001 was approximately $71 million in
annualized trust fees, compared with $79 million in
2000. Approximately 47% of the new business sold
came from existing clients and 53% from new rela-
tionships.

Personal Financial Services. Northern Trust has
positioned itself in markets having significant concen-
trations of wealth and growth potential. During the
year, Northern Trust opened the Weston and Belleair
Bluffs offices in Florida, and expanded or remodeled
several existing offices. Its unique network of Per-
sonal Financial Services offices includes 82 locations
in twelve states. PFS also includes the Wealth
Management Group, which provides customized
products and services to meet the complex financial
needs of families and individuals in the United States
and throughout the world with assets typically
exceeding $100 million.

At December 31, 2001 trust assets under admin-
istration in PES totaled $166.8 billion, compared to
$168.8 billion at December 31, 2000. Of the
personal trust assets under administration, 55% was
invested in equity securities, 28% in fixed income
securities and 17% in cash and other assets. Included
in assets administered are those for which Northern
Trust has management responsibility. Managed assets
were invested 50% in equity securities, 33% in fixed
income securities and 17% in cash and other assets.

PFES trust fees totaled a record $615.0 million,
compared to $613.4 million in 2000 and $489.6 mil-
lion in 1999. The modest increase in the current year
reflects new business offset by the impact of the de-
cline in the equity markets. The Wealth Manage-
ment Group’s trust fees increased 3% to $69.0
million, and at year-end administered $64.9 billion
for significant family asset pools nationwide, up 6%
from last year.

Net recurring new business sold and transitioned
in 2001 totaled $63 million in annualized trust fees,
down from the record $89 million in 2000.

Northern Trust Global Investments. Northern
Trust Global Investments brings together the in-
vestment activities of the C&IS and PFS businesses.
The revenues associated with this business unit are
fully allocated to C&IS and PFS. NTGI integrates
Northern Trust’s portfolio management, research and
trading with client servicing, institutional sales, mar-
keting and product management, while continuing
to emphasize Northern Trust’s overall relationship
orientation.

To strengthen further the structure of NTGI and
respond to the provisions of the Gramm-Leach-
Bliley Act of 1999 relating to investment advisory
activities, in January 2001 NTGI consolidated certain
of its institutional investment management services
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into Northern Trust Investments, Inc. (NTI), a sepa-
rate subsidiary of the Bank. This subsidiary, a regis-
tered investment advisor, provides investment
management services to Northern Trust’s two mu-
tual fund families and institutional clients. This struc-
ture makes the administration of these activities more
efficient as well as accommodates future develop-
ment of Northern Trust’s investment business.

In 2001, NTGI entered into, or expanded rela-
tionships with three overseas institutional firms. In
August, Northern Trust launched a joint venture
with the asset management arm of Germany’s Land-
esbank Hessen-Thuringen (Helaba), to provide fixed
income management for German institutions. By
year-end, Northern Trust/Helaba had approximately
$440 million in assets under management. In Sep-
tember, Northern launched an alliance with Italian
bank, Mediolanum, to provide manager-of-manager
services to Italian investors. Northern also expanded
an existing relationship with Mitsubishi Trust to
manage alternative investments for Japanese interna-
tional clients, in addition to U.S. equities.

NTGP’s strategic focus on investment manage-
ment, branding, product management, distribution
and client servicing helped drive Northern Trust’s
continued growth in new business. During 2001
Northern Trust continued to achieve solid invest-
ment results across asset classes. For example, 25 of
40 eligible mutual funds advised by Northern Trust
received high rankings in 2001 for investment
performance from Morningstar or Lipper Analytical
Services.

New capabilities were added to NTGI's array of
investment management products in 2001. Equity
and fixed income product lines were strategically
expanded, complementing the well-established core
capabilities in both asset classes. NTGI also added to
its alternative investment capabilities with the in-
troduction of hedge fund and private equity pro-
grams. Northern Trust’s institutional and retail
mutual funds continued to enjoy significant growth,
reaching $44.0 billion in assets by year-end.

At year-end, Northern Trust managed $330.1
billion in trust assets for personal and institutional
clients, down a modest 2% from $338.0 billion at
year-end 2000, despite weaker equity markets as
evidenced by the 13% annual decline in the S&P 500
equity index. Despite the slight decline in 2001, trust
assets under administration have grown at a five-year
compound annual rate of 20%.
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Foreign Exchange Trading Profits. Foreign ex-
change trading profits totaled $139.8 million, 8%
below the record $152.7 million in 2000 and up
from $107.7 million in 1999. As custodian, Northern
Trust provides foreign exchange services in the nor-
mal course of business. Active management of cur-
rency positions, within conservative limits, also
contributes to trading profits. The current year for-
eign exchange results reflect reduced market vola-
tility in the major currencies, offset in part by growth
in global assets under custody. The increase in profits
in 2000 primarily reflected market volatility in the
major currencies, including high wvolatility in the
euro throughout the year, as well as growth in global
assets under custody and a higher level of client
transaction volume.

Treasury Management Fees. The fee portion of
treasury management revenues totaled $84.1 million
in 2001, an increase of 18% from the $71.5 million
reported in 2000 compared with $67.9 million in
1999. Total treasury management revenues, which,
in addition to fees, include the computed value of
compensating deposit balances, increased 8% to
$115.3 million from $107.2 million in 2000 com-
pared to $99.3 million in 1999, reflecting the con-
tinued growth of new business in both paper- and
electronic-based products. The increase in the fee
portion of the revenue was partly a result of more
clients electing to pay for services in fees rather than
in compensating deposit balances.

Security Commissions and Trading Income.
Security commissions and trading income totaled
$35.5 million in 2001, compared with $34.3 million
in 2000 and $30.2 million in 1999. This income is
primarily generated from securities brokerage services
provided by Northern Trust Securities, Inc. (NTSI).
The increase in both years reflects continued growth
in securities brokerage activities, up 5% in 2001 and
13% in 2000.

Other Operating Income. Other operating in-
come includes loan, letter of credit and deposit-
related service fees and other miscellaneous income
from asset sales. Other operating income in 2001 to-
taled $89.3 million compared with $77.1 million in
2000 and $54.5 million in 1999. The current year
increase reflects a $9.2 million nonrecurring gain on
the sale of an 80% interest in Northern Trust’s lock-
box operations for which it received cash. The joint
venture that was formed in connection with the sale
provides receivables management services to North-
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ern Trust clients. Nonrecurring gains from the sale of
assets in 2000 totaled $4.5 million compared to $4.0
million in 1999. Excluding nonrecurring items, the
increase in other operating income in 2001 is primar-
ily attributable to higher loan service and standby let-
ter of credit fees, gains on the sale of lease residuals,
and banking-related fees.

Investment Security Gains. Net security gains
were zero in 2001. This compares with net gains of
$.2 million in 2000 and $.7 million in 1999.

Net Interest income. Net interest income is defined
as the total of interest income and amortized fees on
earning assets, less interest expense on deposits and
borrowed funds, adjusted for the impact of off-
balance sheet hedging activity. Earning assets, which
consist of securities, loans and money market assets,
are financed by a large base of interest-bearing funds,
including retail deposits, wholesale deposits, short-
term borrowings, senior notes and long-term debt.
Earning assets are also funded by net noninterest-
related funds. Net noninterest-related funds consist
of demand deposits, the reserve for credit losses and
stockholders’ equity, reduced by nonearning assets
including cash and due from banks, items in process
of collection, buildings and equipment and other
nonearning assets. Variations in the level and mix of
earning assets, interest-bearing funds and net
noninterest-related funds, and their relative sensi-
tivity to interest rate movements, are the dominant
factors affecting net interest income. In addition, net
interest income is impacted by the level of non-
performing assets and client use of compensating
deposit balances to pay for services.

Net interest income for 2001 was a record
$595.3 million, up 5% from $568.6 million in 2000,
which was up 10% from $518.8 million in 1999.
When adjusted to a fully taxable equivalent (FTE)
basis, yields on taxable, nontaxable and partially tax-
able assets are comparable, although the adjustment
to a FTE basis has no impact on net income. Net
interest income on a FTE basis for 2001 was a record
$647.9 million, an increase of $26.0 million or 4%
from $621.9 million in 2000 which in turn was up
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12% from $557.4 million in 1999. Through steady
asset growth and conservative interest rate risk man-
agement, Northern Trust has been successful in gen-
erating year over year improvement in net interest
income as evidenced by the fact that 2001 represents
the eighteenth consecutive year of record perform-
ance. The improvement in FTE net interest income
in 2001 was driven primarily by a 4% increase in
average earning assets.

Earning assets averaged $32.0 billion, up 4%
from the $30.7 billion reported in 2000, which was
up from $27.2 billion in 1999. The growth in aver-
age earning assets reflects an 8% or $1.3 billion in~
crease in loans. Securities averaged $8.5 billion,
down 12% from $9.7 billion in 2000, which was off~
set by a $1.2 billion increase in money market assets.

Loan volume for the year averaged $17.8 billion
with the predominant portion of the growth re-
flected in the domestic portfolio. The domestic
growth came from residential mortgage activities, up
$595 million to $7.1 billion on average, and
commercial and industrial loans, up $176 million to
$5.0 billion. In addition, reflecting growth in lending
to Wealth Management and private banking clients,
personal loans increased $190 million, to average
$2.2 billion for the year. Interndtional loans increased
10% to average $708 million. The loan portfolio in-
cludes noninterest-bearing domestic and interna-
tional overnight advances related to processing
certain trust client investments, which averaged $872
million in 2001, down from $938 million a year ago.
Securities averaged $8.5 billion in 2001, down 12%
resulting primarily from lower levels of federal
agency securities. Money market assets averaged $5.7
billion in 2001 versus $4.5 billion in 2000.

The increase in average earning assets of $1.3 bil-
lion was funded through growth in interest-bearing
deposits and noninterest-related funds. The deposit
growth was concentrated primarily in foreign office
time deposits, up $585 million resulting from in-
creased global custody activity, and savings and
money market deposits, up $550 million.
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Percent Change

($ In Millions) 2001 2000 1999 2001/00 2000/99
Interest Income $ 1,681.5 $ 2,011.1 $ 1,568.6 (16.4)% 28.2%
FTE Adjustment 52.6 53.3 38.6 (1.3) 38.1
Interest Income-FTE 1,734.1 2,064.4 1,607.2 (16.0) 28.4
Interest Expense 1,086.2 1,442.5 1,049.8 (24.7) 374
Net Interest Income-FTE $  647.9 £ 621.9 $ 5574 4.2 % 11.6%
Average Volume :

Earning Assets $32,041.8 $30,748.7 $27,241.5 4.2 % 12.9%

Interest-Related Funds 26,924.6 26,056.2 23,170.1 3.3 12.5

Noninterest-Related Funds 5,117.2 4,692.5 4,071.4 2.1 15.3

Change in Percentage

Average Rate

Earning Assets 5.41% 6.71% 5.90% (1.30) 81
Interest-Related Funds 4.03 5.54 4.53 {1.51) 1.01
Interest Rate Spread 1.38 1.17 1.37 .21 (.20
Total Source of Funds 3.39 4.69 3.85 (1.30) .84
Net Interest Margin 2.02% 2.02% 2.05% —_ (.03)

Refer to pages 94 and 95 for a detailed analysis of net interest income.

4z Other interest-related funds averaged $9.2 billion,

down $352 million, principally from lower treasury
investment program balances, partially offset by higher
levels of federal funds sold, borrowings from the
Federal Home Loan Bank and the issuance of sub-

ordinated notes by the Bank. Average net noninterest-
related funds increased $425 million, mainly due to
higher demand deposits and stockholders’ equity.
Stockholders’ equity for the year averaged $2.6 bil-
lion, an increase of $330.5 million or 14% from 2000,
principally due to the retention of earnings, offset in
part by the repurchase of common stock pursuant to
the Corporation’s share buyback program.

The net interest spread improved to 1.38% in
2001 from 1.17% in 2000 resulting from loan growth
and the favorable impact of the decline in interest
rates on average funding costs. While noninterest-
related funds increased $425 million to $5.1 billion,
the value of these funds was diminished by the de-
cline in interest rates as the average return on earning
assets fell by 130 basis points. As a result of the
above, the net interest margin of 2.02% in 2001 was
unchanged from the prior year. For a complete
analysis of volume and interest rate changes affecting
net interest income, refer to the Average Statement
of Condition with Analysis of Net Interest Income
on pages 94 and 95.

Provisicn for Credit Losses. The provision for credit
losses of $66.5 million was $42.5 million higher than
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the $24.0 million required in 2000 which in turn was
$11.5 million greater than the $12.5 million provi-
sion in 1999. For a discussion of the reserve and pro-
vision for credit losses, refer to pages 52 through 54.

Noninterest Expenses. Noninterest expenses for 2001
totaled $1.38 billion, up $25.4 million or 2% from
$1.35 billion in 2000, which was up 20% from $1.13
billion in 1999. Expense growth in 2001 was sig-
nificantly reduced from the rate experienced in re-
cent years as a result of initiatives implemented by
management to reduce certain discretionary ex-
penses. These initiatives included closely monitoring
staffing levels, limiting staft-related and other discre-
tionary expenses, and modifying certain incentive
plans for 2001 to include a stock option grant
component in lieu of cash. This last initiative re-
sulted in a $20.4 million expense savings for the vear
when compared to programs in place prior to this
initiative. Incremental expenses for 2001 resulting
from two mid-year acquisitions in 2000 totaled $6.5
million.

Noninterest expenses for 2000 increased $226.5
million or 20% over 1999. Expenses in 2000 reflect a
variety of growth initiatives, including staff additions
and higher operating expenses necessary to support
record levels of new business and growing trans-
action volumes, investments in technology,
(including e-business initiatives) and PFS office ex-
pansion, business promotion and the expenses of
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co-administration services now being provided to the
two mutual fund families.

Performance-based compensation increased 26%
in 2000, resulting from excellent new business re-
sults, record net income, client investment portfolio
performance, and the 54% increase in the price of
Northern Trust Corporation common stock during
2000. Incremental expenses resulting from two mid-
year acquisitions totaled $13.3 million in 2000.

The productivity ratio, defined as total revenue
on a taxable equivalent basis divided by noninterest
expenses, was 162% for 2001, an all-time high, up
from 160% in 2000 and 159% in 1999.

Compensation and Benefits. Compensation and
benefits, which represent 59% of total noninterest
expenses, increased 1% to $808.0 million in 2001
from $798.4 million in 2000, which was up 17%
from $681.1 million in 1999. Compensation costs,
the largest component of noninterest expenses, to-
taled $685.8 million, down $3.3 million from $689.1
million a year ago. The impact of salary increases and
modest staft growth in 2001 were more than offset
by lower performance-based pay. Performance-based
compensation expense for 2001 decreased $50.0 mil-
lion from 2000, which in turn had increased $38.7
million from 1999. Compensation levels in 2001 re-
flect the impact of slower revenue growth, lower
investment portfolio performance, corporate earnings
performance and modifications made to certain cash
incentive plans. The increase in 2000 reflected the
impact of excellent new business results, strong client
investment portfolio performance, record corporate
earnings and the price increase in Northern Trust
Corporation common stock. Staff on a full-time
equivalent basis averaged 9,484 in 2001, up 5% com-
pared with 9,019 in 2000, which was up 10% from
8,200 in 1999. The increase in staff levels during
2001 was required to support growth initiatives and
strong new business in both C&IS and PFS. Average
staff levels in 2001 would have been approximately
7% higher than in 2000 and compensation expense
would have increased more, had Northern Trust not
formed a joint venture to provide lockbox services.
These expenses are now included in outside services
purchased and reflected in other operating expenses.
Staff on a full-time equivalent basis totaled 9,453 at
December 31, 2001, an annual increase of 3% after
adjusting for the impact of the lockbox joint venture.

Employee benefit costs for 2001 totaled $122.2
million, up $12.9 million or 12% from $109.3 mil-
lion in 2000, which was 11% higher than the $98.5
million in 1999. The increase in employee benefits in
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each of the past two years primarily reflects higher
payroll taxes, medical and dental plan costs, and re-
tirement plan benefits resulting predominantly from
staff growth.

Occupancy Expense. Net occupancy expense to-
taled $100.2 million, up 15% or $12.9 million from
$87.3 million in 2000, which was up 18% from $74.3
million in 1999. The principal components of the
2001 occupancy expense increase were higher rent,
utility costs, depreciation and maintenance. The in-
crease in 2000 resulted from higher rental and utility
costs, real estate taxes, and depreciation and main-
tenance of buildings and leasehold improvements
associated with office expansion.

Equipment Expense. Equipment expense, which
includes depreciation, rental, and maintenance costs,
totaled $85.7 million, up 17% from $73.1 million in
2000, which was 15% higher than the $63.6 million
in 1999. The 2001 results reflect higher levels of
computer hardware depreciation expense, data lease
lines, rental and maintenance costs of computers and
equipment. The 2000 results reflect higher levels of
computer hardware depreciation expense, rental and
maintenance costs of computers and equipment.

Other Operating Expenses. Other operating
expenses for 2001 totaled $383.0 million, down 2%
from $392.7 million in 2000, which was up 28%
from $306.0 million in 1999. The decline in the
2001 expense level reflects the net impact of several
factors. These included expense reductions as a result
of a decrease in performance-based fees paid to
investment sub-advisors, lower levels of business
development costs, and a reduction in charges associ-
ated with processing errors incurred in servicing and
managing financial assets and performing banking
activities. Other operating expenses also benefited
from lower stock-related directors’ compensation
due to the decline in the common stock
price of Northern Trust Corporation from the end
of last year. The prior year results also included a
$3.8 million charge relating to the estimated cost to
exit an existing London location, which will allow
for the relocation of the majority of their staff to a
larger facility during 2002. These lower expenses
were partially offset by higher costs associated with
continued investment in technology, expansion of
the personal trust and banking office network, and
other expenditures to support business growth.
These initiatives resulted in increases in technical and
consulting service fees, legal services and data
processing costs and amortization of software. Other
operating expense in 2001 also includes $9.4 million
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in payments made to the lockbox joint venture in
the second half of the year. Prior to the formation of
the joint venture, the majority of these costs were
included in salary and benefit expense.

Investments in technology are designed princi-
pally to support and enhance the transaction process-
ing, investment management and securities handling
capability of the trust and banking businesses, as well
as relationship management and client interaction.
Additional capital expenditures planned for systems
technology will result in future expenses for the
depreciation of hardware and amortization of soft-
ware. Depreciation and software amortization are
charged to equipment and other operating expenses,
respectively.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for in-
come taxes was $244.4 million in 2001 compared
with $245.0 million in 2000 and $211.5 million in
1999. The current vear reflects a lower federal provi-
sion resulting from benefits derived from tax-
advantaged assets (primarily municipal securities and
lease transactions), offset by an increase in the state
provision resulting from a reduction in income ex-
empt from state tax. The effective tax rate was 33%
for 2001 compared with 34% for 2000 and 1999.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Northern Trust Corporation, under Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer William A. Osborn, organ-
izes client services around two principal business
units, C&IS and PFS. Investment management serv-
ices and products are provided to the clients of these
business units by NTGI. Operating and systems sup-
port is provided to each of the business units by
WWOT. Each of these four business units has a
president who reports to President and Chief Oper-
ating Officer Barry G. Hastings. For management
reporting purposes, the operations of NTGI and
WWOT are allocated to the two principal business
units. The Risk Management Unit includes the
Treasury Department and reports directly to Mr.
Osborn. Mr. Osborn has been identified as the chief
operating decision maker because he has final author-
ity over resource allocation decisions and perform-
ance assessment.

Business unit results are presented in order to
promote a greater understanding of their financial
performance. The information, presented on an in-
ternal management reporting basis, is derived from
internal accounting systems that support the strategic
objectives and management structure. Management

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

CPERATIONS

has developed accounting systems to allocate revenue
and expenses related to each segment, as well as cer-
tain corporate support services, worldwide operations
and systems development expenses. The management
reporting systems also incorporate processes for allo-
cating assets, liabilities and the applicable interest
income and expense. Tier 1 and tier 2 capital is allo-
cated based on the federal risk-based capital guide-
lines at a level that is consistent with Northern
Trust’s consolidated capital ratios, coupled with
management’s judgment of the operational risks in-
herent in the business. Allocations of capital and cer-
tain corporate expenses may not be representative of
levels that would be required if the segments were
independent entities. The accounting policies used
for management reporting are the same as those de-
scribed in “Accounting Policies,” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Transfers of in-
come and expense items are recorded at cost; there is
no intercompany profit or loss on sales or transfers
between business units. Northern Trust’s presen-
tations are not necessarily consistent with similar
information for other financial institutions. For man-
agement reporting purposes, certain corporate
income and expense items are not allocated to the
business units and are presented as part of “Treasury
and Other.” These items include the impact of long-
term debt, preferred equity, holding company in-
vestments, and certain corporate operating expenses.

The following tables reflect the earnings con-
tribution of Northern Trust’s business segments for
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
on the basis described above.

Corporate and Institutional Services

($ In Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Noninterest Income

Trust Fees $ 6163 § 5878 $ 4846

Other 272.0 264.5 199.4
Net Interest Income after

Provision for Credit

Losses* 149.9 185.2 168.8
Noninterest Expenses 669.5 630.6 534.4
Income before Income

Taxes* 368.7 406.9 318.4
Provision for Income

Taxes™ 143.1 157.7 124.1
Net Income § 225.6 $§ 24952 § 1943

Percentage Net Income
Contribution 46% 51% 48%

$17,395.7 $16,518.4 $13,324.0

Average Assets
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Personal Financial Services

($ In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Noninterest Income

Trust Fees $ 6150 § 6134 $ 4896

Other 70.4 63.7 60.1
Net Interest Income after

Provision for Credit

Losses® 413.6 400.9 375.6
Noninterest Expenses 676.7 644.1 550.7
Income before Income

Taxes* 422.3 4389 374.6
Provision for Income

Taxes* 163.4 170.5 146.7
Net Income $ 2589 % 2684 % 2279
Percentage Net Income

Contribution 53% 55% 56%

$14,870.1 $13,430.3 $11,798.2
Treasury and Other

Average Assets

($ In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Noninterest Income
Trust Fees $ — 3 — 8 —
Other 6.3 2.6 1.5

Net Interest Income after
Provision for Credit

Losses™ 17.9 11.8 5
Noninterest Expenses 30.7 76.8 39.9
Loss before Income Taxes* (6.5) (62.4) (37.9)
Benefit for Income Taxes* (9.5) (29.9) (20.7)
Net Income (Loss) $ 3.0 8 (325 % (172

Percentage Net Income

Contribution 1% 6)% “H%

Average Assets $ 3,358.2 % 4,094.6 $ 5,054.8

Consolidated

{$ In Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Noninterest Income
Trust Fees $ 1,231.3 § 1,201.2 § 9742
Other 348.7 335.8 261.0
Net Interest Income after
Provision for Credit
Losses* 581.4 597.9 544.9

Noninterest Expenses 1,376.9 1,351.5 1,125.0
Income before Income

Taxes* 784.5 783.4 655.1
Provision for Income

Taxes* 297.0 298.3 250.1
Net Income $ 4875 $§ 4851 § 4050
Percentage Net Income

Contribution 100% 100% 100%

$35,624.0 $34,043.3 $30,177.0

*Stated on a fully taxable equivalent basis (FTE). The consolidated
Sfigures include $52.6 million, $53.3 million and $§38.6 million of
FTE adjustment for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Note: Certain reclassifications have been made to 2000 and 1999
financial information to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Average Assets

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

Corporate and Institutional Services. The C&IS
business unit, under the direction of Peter L. Ros-
siter, President—C&IS, is a leading provider of mas-
ter trust, master custody and related services to three
targeted markets: retirement plans, institutional cli-
ents and international clients. Master trust and cus-
tody encompasses a full range of state-of-the-art
capabilities including: worldwide custody, settlement
and reporting; cash management; and performance
analysis services. Trust and custody relationships
managed by C&IS often include investment
management, securities lending, transition manage-
ment and commission recapture services provided
through the Northern Trust Global Investments
business unit. Services with respect to securities
traded in foreign markets are provided primarily
through the Bank’s London Branch. Related foreign
exchange services are rendered at the London and
Singapore Branches as well as in Chicago. In addi-
tion to master trust and master custody, C&IS offers
a comprehensive array of retirement consulting, ac-
tuarial and recordkeeping services through Northern
Trust Retirement Consulting, L.L.C. C&IS also of-
fers a full range of commercial banking services
through the Bank, placing special emphasis on de-
veloping and supporting institutional relationships
in two target markets: large domestic corporations
and financial institutions (both domestic and
international). Treasury management services are
provided to corporations and financial institutions
and include a variety of products and services to ac-
celerate cash collections, control disbursement out-
flows and generate information to manage cash
products.

Net income for C&IS decreased 9% in 2001 and
totaled $225.6 million compared to $249.2 million in
2000 which was up 28% from the $194.3 million in
1999. The current year decline in net income was
primarily driven by a $36.0 million increase in the
provision for credit losses. For a discussion of the
provision for credit losses, refer to page 52. Trust
fees increased 5% and represented 59% of total C&IS
revenues in 2001 compared to 57% in 2000.

Northern Trust, through C&IS, provides master
trust and master custody services to three targeted
markets: retirement plans, institutional clients, and
international clients. Retirement plans include the
large corporate market, middle market and public
and union retirement funds. The institutional market
includes insurance companies, foundations and en-
dowments and trust services for domestic corre-
spondent banks. International clients include asset
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pools domiciled outside the U.S. and group trusts. A
summary of C&IS trust fees and trust assets for each
market follows.

Corporate and Institutional Services
Summary of Trust Fees

{in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Domestic
Retirement Plans $ 357.2 $ 3528 § 3043
Institutional 115.6 106.8 85.0
[nternational 1435 128.2 95.3
Total Trust Fees $ 6163 §$ 587.8 § 484.6

Corporate and Institutional Services
Summary of Trust Assets Under Administration

December 31

(in Billions) 2001 2000 1999
Domestic
Retirement Plans $ 782.4 § 8493 § 8004
Institutional 268.4 242.9 250.1
International 372.1 326.3 253.6
Securities Lending/Other 94.9 96.5 81.8
Total Trust Assets $1,517.8 $1,515.0 $1,3859

The growth in other noninterest income in 2001
resulted primarily from a $9.2 million nonrecurring
gain on the sale of an 80% interest in Northern
Trust’s lockbox operations for which it received
cash. Also contributing to the current year perform-
ance was a 15% increase in treasury management
fees, and higher levels of loan service and letter of
credit fees and gains on the sale of lease residuals.
Offsetting the above were lower levels of foreign
exchange trading profits and trust deposit-related
revenues. Net interest income after provision for
credit losses on a FTE basis decreased 19% in 2001
after increasing 10% in 2000. The current year de-
cline was driven by a $36.0 million increase in the
provision for credit losses. Excluding the additional
provision, net interest income was unchanged from
2000, as the impact of a 5% increase in earning assets
was offset by a decline in the net interest margin to
1.30% from 1.37% in the prior year. Average loan
volume was 8% higher than last year and money
market assets increased 4%. Earning assets in 2000
were up 25% from 1999 primarily the result of
growth in loans and money market assets.

Total noninterest expenses of C&IS, which in-
clude both the direct expenses of the business unit
and indirect expense allocations from NTGI and
WWOT for product and operating support, in-
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creased 6% in 2001 and 18% in 2000. The growth in
expenses is primarily attributable to increases in
compensation and employee benefits and higher
operating costs to support business growth.

Personal Financial Services. The PFS business unit,
under the direction of Mark Stevens, President—
PFS, encompasses personal trust and investment
management services, estate administration, banking
(including private banking) and residential mortgage
lending offered through the Bank in Illinois and
affiliates in eleven other states. PES focuses on small/
mid-size businesses, executives, retirees and high net
worth individuals in each banking subsidiary’s target
market. The financial needs of individuals and fami-
lies with assets exceeding $100 million are served
through its Wealth Management Group. The results
of NTSI are also included in PFS.

PFS net income totaled $258.9 million in 2001,
a decrease of 4% from 2000 which in turn was 18%
above the net income achieved in 1999. Slowing
revenue growth due to the decline in the equity
markets, combined with a 5% increase in expenses
and a higher provision for credit losses contributed
to the year-to-year decline. Growth in trust activities
was the primary driver of the record performance in
2000 with trust fees increasing 25%, resulting from
record new business throughout Northern Trust’s
PES network. Trust fees for [llinois in 1999 included
$9.6 million of performance-based fees earned by
NTGA as a result of strong investment performance
in several funds managed for PFS clients. A summary
of trust fees and trust assets by state and for Wealth
Management follows.

Personal Financial Services
Summary of Trust Fees

(in Millions} 2001 2000 1999
[linois $217.8 $219.8 $181.8
Florida 173.8 1791 146.9
California 72.2 72.8 59.5
Arizona 38.4 38.8 29.2
Texas 24.9 241 17.9
Other States 18.9 12.0 33
Wealth Management 69.0 66.8 51.0

Total Trust Fees $615.0 $613.4
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Personal Financial Services
Summary of Trust Assets Under Administration

December 31

(In Billions) 2001 2000 1999
Hlinois $ 39.8 § 43.7 $ 41.9
Florida 28.6 313 30.5
California 12.3 13.4 12.2
Arizona 5.8 6.1 5.9
Texas 4.8 4.4 4.3
Orther States 10.6 8.5 49
Wealth Management 64.9 61.4 52.3
Total Trust Assets $166.8 $168.8 $152.0

A significant portion of PFS growth has come
from adding business in established locations. This
growth has been supplemented by expansion within
existing and new markets. From its 82 office net-
work, Northern Trust is in close proximity to
approximately 30% of the nation’s high net worth
households, defined as those with at least $1 million
of investable assets. Over the next four years, North-
ern Trust plans to continue its expansion in existing
and new markets with promising demographics. It is
currently estimated that there will be approximately
100 PFS offices operating within as many as 15 states
by the end of 2005.

The growth in other noninterest revenues in
2001 primarily reflects 5% growth in brokerage
commissions at NTSL. Driven by growth in lending
to Wealth Management and private banking clients,
ongoing growth in the residential mortgage portfolio
and an increase in loans to middle market companies,
net interest income after provision for credit losses
increased 3% in 2001 and totaled $413.6 million.
The provision for credit losses totaled $17.0 million,
an increase of approximately $7.0 million from the
prior year. In 2000, net interest income totaled
$400.9 million and increased 7% over 1999.

PFS noninterest expenses, which include both
the direct expenses of the business unit and indirect
expense allocations from NTGI and WWOT for
product and operating support, increased 5% in 2001
and 17% in 2000. The increase in 2001 primarily re-
flects merit increases, staff growth and higher
employee benefit charges, in addition to higher
operating costs to support business growth. Partially
offsetting the above was a 29% reduction in
performance-based compensation.

Treasury and Other. The Risk Management Unit,
under the direction of Perry R. Pero, Vice Chairman
and Chief Financial Officer, includes the treasury
function. The Treasury Department is responsible for

managing the Bank’s wholesale funding, capital posi-
tion and interest rate risk, as well as the portfolio of
interest rate risk management instruments. It is also
responsible for the investment portfolios of the Cor-
poration and the Bank and provides investment
advice and management services to the subsidiary
banks. “Other” corporate income and expenses repre-
sent items that are not allocated to the business units
and generally represent certain nonrecurring items
and certain executive level compensation.

The improvement in net interest income in 2001
is primarily a result of lower interest rates which re-
duced the funding costs allocated to corporate cen-
ters. The changes in net interest income for 2000 are
primarily the result of adjustments in the internal
interest rate used to allocate tier 2 capital to the
business units. In 2000, the rate adjustments, to-
gether with the change in the level of tier 2 capital,
increased Treasury and Other net interest income
by $7.0 million and decreased C&IS and PFS net
interest income by $4.4 million and $2.6 million,
respectively.

The $46.1 million decrease in noninterest ex-
penses in 2001 is the result of several factors. Record
profits and the significant increase in the price of
Northern Trust Corporation common stock during
2000 drove up incentive compensation in the prior
year. Expenses were also reduced due to lower stock-
related directors’ compensation resulting from the
decline in the price of Northern Trust Corporation
common stock. In addition, prior year expenses were
higher due to expenses associated with the purchase
of the technology center in January 2000, the plan-
ned relocation costs in London and the earlier than
anticipated retirement of certain Bank officers.

Northern Trust Global investments. The NTGI busi-
ness unit, under the direction of Stephen B. Timbers,
President-—NTGI, provides a broad range of invest-
ment management and related services and products
to C&IS and PFS through various subsidiaries of the
Corporation. Clients include institutional and in-
dividual separately managed accounts, bank common
and collective funds, registered investment compa-
nies, collective investment schemes and unregistered
private investment funds, including funds of funds.
NTGI offers both active and passive equity and fixed
income portfolio management, as well as traditional
multi-manager products and services. NTGD’s activ-
ities also encompass brokerage, securities lending and
related services. The revenues and expenses of this
business unit are fully allocated to C&IS and PFS.
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Worldwide Operations and Technology. The WWOT
business unit, under the direction of James J. Mitch-
ell, President—WWOT, supports all of Northern
Trust’s business activities including the sales, relation-
ship management, asset management, securities lend-
ing, transaction processing and product management
activities for C&IS, PFS and NTGI. The expenses of
this business unit are fully allocated to other business
units.

SUBSEQUENT IMPLEMENTATION OF
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combi-
nations,” and No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.”

SFAS No. 141 supercedes Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 16, “Business Combina-
tions” and discontinues the use of the pooling-of-
interests method of accounting for business
combinations as permitted under APB No. 16. The
provisions of SFAS No. 141 apply to all business
combinations inttiated after June 30, 2001 and re-
quire that all business combinations be accounted for
by a single method—the purchase method.

SFAS No. 142 supercedes APB Opinion No. 17,
“Intangible Assets” and addresses the accounting for
goodwill and other intangible assets. The provisions
of this Statement, as they relate to Northern Trust,
are required to be applied beginning January 1, 2002
to all goodwill and other intangible assets reflected in
the financial statements at that date. The Statement
discontinues amortization of goodwill over its esti-
mated useful life and requires a transitional impair-
ment test of goodwill as of January 1, 2002. An
annual impairment test of goodwill is also required
in the year of adoption and in subsequent years.
Impairment losses for goodwill that arise due to the
initial application of this Statement, resulting from
the transitional impairment test, are to be reported as
a change in accounting principle and any subsequent
impairment losses are required to be reported as
operating expenses. Goodwill at December 31, 2001
totaled $90.1 million and has been amortized on a
straight-line method primarily over fifteen years.
Application of the nonamortization provisions of the
Statement is expected to reduce noninterest expense
by approximately $10.0 million annually, resulting in
an increase in net income of $8.0 million in 2002
compared to 2001. Although management has not
yet fully completed the initial goodwill impairment

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

test, a transitional impairment charge is not antici-
pated. Other separately identifiable acquired in-
tangible assets will continue to be amortized over
their estimated useful lives. At December 31, 2001,
acquired intangible assets totaled $35.2 million and
amortization for the year 2001 amounted to
$6.6 million.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS No. 144 supercedes SFAS
No. 121 and the accounting and reporting provisions
of APB Opinion No. 30. The Statement addresses
the accounting for a segment of a business accounted
for as a discontinued operation and the accounting
for the disposition of long-lived assets. The provisions
of this Statement are effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2001. Northern adopted the requirements of this
Statement at the beginning of 2002. It is not antici-
pated that the adoption of SFAS No. 144 will have
a material effect on Northern Trust’s results of
operations.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Northern Trust’s Management Committee reviews
and approves proposed capital expenditures that ex-
ceed $500,000. This process is designed to assure that
the major projects to which Northern Trust commits
its resources produce benefits compatible with corpo-
rate strategic goals.

Capital expenditures in the current year included
ongoing enhancements to Northern Trust’s hardware
and software capabilities, and leasehold improve-
ments and furnishings associated with the opening of
our two new offices in Florida, as well as expansion
or remodeling in several existing offices. Capital
expenditures for 2001 totaled $263.4 million, of
which $45.9 million was for building and leasehold
improvements, $16.9 million for furnishings,
$65.5 million for computer hardware and machinery
and $135.1 million for software. The unamortized
capitalized cost of corporate-wide software devel-
opment projects as of December 31, 2001 was
$329.8 million, compared to $267.5 million at the
previous year-end.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Asset Quality and Credit Risk Management

Securities. Northern Trust maintains a high quality
securities portfolio, with 85% of the total portfolio
composed of U.S. Treasury or federal agency secur-




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS!S

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

ities. The remainder of the portfolio consists of ob-
ligations of states and political subdivisions, pre-
ferred stock and other securities, including Federal
Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank
stock. At December 31, 2001, 73% of these securi-
ties were rated triple-A or double-A, 6% were rated
single-A and 21% were below A or not rated by
Standard and Poor’s and/or Moody’s Investors
Service.

Northern Trust is an active participant in the
repurchase agreement market. This market provides a
relatively low cost alternative for short-term funding.
Securities purchased under agreements to resell and
securities sold under agreements to repurchase are
recorded at the amounts at which the securities were
acquired or sold plus accrued interest. To minimize
any potential credit risk associated with these trans-
actions, the fair value of the securities purchased
or sold is continuously monitored, limits are set
on exposure with counterparties, and the financial
condition of counterparties is regularly assessed. It is
Northern Trust’s policy to take possession of secur-
ities purchased under agreements to resell. Securities
sold under agreements to repurchase are held by
the counterparty until the repurchase transaction
matures.

Loans and Other Extensions of Credit. A certain de-
gree of credit risk is inherent in Northern Trust’s
various lending activities. Credit risk is managed
through the Credit Policy function, which is de-
signed to ensure adherence to a high level of credit
standards. The Credit Policy function reports to the
Corporation’s Chief Financial Officer. Credit Policy
provides a system of checks and balances for North-
ern Trust’s diverse credit-related activities by estab-
lishing and monitoring all credit-related policies and
practices throughout Northern Trust and ensuring
their uniform application. These activities are de-
signed to ensure that credit exposure is diversified on
an industry and client basis, thus lessening overall
credit risk. These credit management activities also
apply to Northern Trust’s use of derivative financial
instruments, including foreign exchange contracts
and interest risk management instruments.

Individual credit authority for commercial and
other loans is limited to specified amounts and matur-
ities. Credit decisions involving commitment ex-
posure in excess of the specified individual limits are
submitted to the appropriate Credit Approval Com-
mittee (Committee). Each Committee 1s chaired by
the executive in charge of the area and has a Credit
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Policy officer as a voting participant. Each Commit-
tee’s credit approval authority is specified, based on
commitment levels, credit ratings and maturities. Cred-
its involving commitment exposure in excess of these
group credit limits require the approval of the Senior
Credit Committee.

The Counterparty Risk Management Commit-
tee established by Credit Policy manages counter-
party risk. This committee has sole credit authority
for exposure to all foreign banks, certain domestic
banks which Credit Policy deems to be counter-
parties and which do not have commercial credit rela-
tionships within the Corporation, and certain other
exposures.

Under the auspices of Credit Policy, country
exposure limits are reviewed and approved on a coun-
try-by-country basis.

As part of Northern Trust’s ongoing credit grant-
ing process, internal credit ratings are assigned to
each client and credit before credit is extended,
based on creditworthiness. Credit Policy performs at
least annually a review of selected significant credit
exposures to identify at the earliest possible stages
clients who might be facing financial difficulties. In-
ternal credit ratings are also reviewed during this pro-
cess. Above average risk loans, which will vary from
time to time, receive special attention by both lend-
ing officers and Credit Policy. This approach allows
management to take remedial action in an effort to
deal with potential problems.

An integral part of the Credit Policy function is
a formal review of past due and potential problem
loans to determine which credits, if any, need to be
placed on nonaccrual status or charged off. As more
fully described on pages 52 through 54, the provision

for credit losses is reviewed quarterly to determine -

the amount necessary to maintain an adequate re-
serve for credit losses.
Management of credit risk is reviewed by various

bank regulatory agencies. The Corporation’s public

accountants also perform a review of credit-related
procedures, the loan portfolio and other extensions
of credit, and the reserve for credit losses as part
of their examination of the consolidated financial
statements.

An important element in managing credit risk is
Northern Trust’s relationship-oriented approach to
lending. Northern Trust focuses its lending efforts on
clients with existing trust or treasury management
relationships or who are looking to build a full range
of financial services. Northern Trust generally does
not participate in syndicated lending, but may enter
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into these loans as a result of an existing client
relationship.

A further way in which credit risk is managed is
by requiring collateral. Management’s assessment of
the borrower’s creditworthiness determines whether
collateral is obtained. The amount and type of collat-
eral held varies but may include deposits held in fi-
nancial -institutions, U.S. Treasury securities, other
marketable securities, income-producing commercial
properties, accounts receivable, property, plant and
equipment, and inventory. Collateral values are moni-
tored on a regular basis to ensure that they are main-
tained at an appropriate level.

The largest component of credit risk relates to
the loan portfolio. Although credit exposure is well-
diversified, there are certain groups of loans that
meet the accounting definition under SFAS No. 107
of credit risk concentrations. According to this
statement, group concentrations of credit risk exist if
a number of borrowers or other counterparties are
engaged in similar activities and have similar
economic characteristics that would cause their abil-
ity to meet contractual obligations to be similarly af-
fected by changes in economic or other conditions.
The fact that an extension of credit falls into one of
these groups does not indicate that the credit has a
higher than normal degree of credit risk. These groups
are: residential real estate, middle market companies
and small businesses, banks and bank holding compa-
nies and commercial real estate.

Residential Real Estate. The residential real estate
loan portfolio totaled $7.4 billion or 43% of total
domestic loans at December 31, 2001, compared
with $6.8 billion or 40% at December 31, 2000. Resi-
dential real estate loans consist of conventional home
mortgages and equity credit lines, which generally
require a loan to collateral value of no more than
75% to 80% at inception.

Of the total $7.4 billion in residential real estate
loans, $3.5 billion were in the greater Chicago area
with the remainder distributed throughout the other
geographic regions served by Northern Trust. Le-
gally binding commitments to extend credit, which
are primarily equity credit lines, totaled $978.1 mil-
lion and $644.1 million as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

Middle Market Companies and Small Businesses.
Credit exposure to middle market companies and
small businesses is primarily in the form of commer-
cial loans, which totaled $2.2 billion both at De-
cember 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000. These

loans are to a diversified group of borrowers that are
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predominantly in the manufacturing, wholesaling,
distribution and services industries, most of which
have total annual sales of less than $500 million. The
largest component of this group of borrowers is lo-
cated in the mid-western areas served by the Bank.
Middle market and small businesses have been an
important focus of Northern Trust’s business develop-
ment efforts both for commercial banking and
personal trust/private banking services and it is part
of the strategic plan to continue to selectively grow
the portfolio with such entities. The credit risk asso-
ciated with middle market and small business lending
is principally influenced by general economic con-
ditions and the resulting impact on the borrower’s
operations.

Legally binding commitments to extend credit,
standby letters of credit, and commercial letters of
credit to middle market companies and small busi-
nesses totaled $2.9 billion, $1.3 billion, and $16.5
million, respectively, as of December 31, 2001, and
$2.5 billion, $1.1 billion, and $21.6 million, re-
spectively, as of December 31, 2000.

Banks and Bank Holding Companies. On-balance
sheet credit risk to banks and bank holding compa-
nies, both domestic and international, totaled $10.7
billion and $8.0 billion at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The majority of this exposure
consisted of short-term money market assets, which
totaled $9.2 billion at December 31, 2001 and $5.9
billion at December 31, 2000, and noninterest-
bearing demand balances maintained at corre-
spondent banks which totaled $1.2 billion as of
December 31, 2001, compared to $1.5 billion at
year-end 2000. Commercial loans to banks totaled
$223.9 million and $380.7 million, respectively, as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000. The majority of these
loans were to U.S. bank holding companies, primar-
ily in the seventh Federal Reserve District, for their
acquisition purposes. Such lending activity is limited
to entities which have a substantial business relation-
ship with Northern Trust. At December 31, 2001,
legally binding commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit to banks and bank holding
companies totaled $186 million and $10.4 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2000, legally binding
commitments were $213 million and standby letters
of credit were $16 million.

Commercial Real Estate. In managing its credit
exposure, management has defined a commercial real
estate loan as one where: (1) the borrower’s principal
business activity is the acquisition or the develop-
ment of real estate for commercial purposes; (2) the
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principal collateral is real estate held for commercial
purposes, and loan repayment is expected to flow
from the operation of the property; or (3) the loan
repayment is expected to flow from the sale or re-
finance of real estate as a normal and ongoing part of
the business. Unsecured lines of credit to firms or
individuals engaged in commercial real estate en-
deavors are included without regard to the use of
loan proceeds. The commercial real estate portfolio
consists of interim loans and commercial mortgages.

Short-term interim loans provide financing for
the initial phases of the acquisition or development
of commercial real estate, with the intent that the
borrower will refinance the loan through another
financial institution or sell the project upon its com-
pletion. The interim loans are primarily in the Chicago
market where Northern Trust has a strong presence
and a thorough knowledge of the local economy.
The interim loans, which totaled $342.0 million and
$349.5 million as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, are composed primarily of loans to de-
velopers that are highly experienced and well-known
to Northern Trust.

Commercial mortgage financing, which totaled
$683.6 million and $561.5 million as of December
31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, is provided for the
acquisition of income producing properties. Cash
flows from the properties generally are sufficient
to amortize the loan. These loans average less than
$500,000 each and are primarily located in the sub-
urban Chicago and Florida markets.

At December 31, 2001, legally binding com-
mitments to extend credit and standby letters of
credit to commercial real estate developers totaled
$79.4 million and $12.7 million, respectively. At De-
cember 31, 2000, legally binding commitments were
$64.5 million and standby letters of credit were $22.0
million.

Foreign Outstandings. Short-term interbank time
deposits with foreign banks represent the largest
category of foreign outstandings. The Chicago head
office and the London Branch actively participate in
the interbank market with U.S. and foreign banks.
In recent years, international commercial lending
activities have been focused on import and export
financing for U.S.-based clients.

Risk related to foreign outstandings is con-
tinually monitored and internal limits are imposed on
foreign exposure. The following table provides in-
formation on foreign outstandings by country that
exceed 1.00% of Northern Trust’s assets.

COCNDITION ANPD

RESULTS OCF OPERATIONS

Foreign Outstandings

Commercial
{In Millions) Banks and Other Total
At December 31, 2001
Germany $ 992 $ — $ 992
United Kingdom 916 71 987
Canada 832 — 832
France 762 — 762
Netherlands 475 13 488
Italy 433 — 433
Belgium 431 — 431
Switzerland 409 — 409
At December 31, 2000
Germany $1,132 $ — $1,132
United Kingdom 844 158 1,002
[taly 664 — 664
Belgium 545 — 545
At December 31, 1999
Germany $ 359 $ — $§ 359

Aggregate foreign outstandings by country falling between .75% and
1.00% of total assets at December 31, 2001 totaled $654 million
to Ireland and Sweden. This compares to $658 million to Austria
and the Netherlands at December 31, 2000 and 8217 million to
France at December 31, 1999,

As used in this discussion, foreign outstandings
are cross-border outstandings as defined by the
Securities and Exchange Commission. They consist
of loans, acceptances, interest-bearing deposits with
financial institutions, accrued interest and other
monetary assets. Not included are letters of credit,
loan commitments, and foreign office local currency
claims on residents funded by local currency
liabilities. Foreign outstandings related to a specific
country are net of guarantees given by third parties
resident outside the country and the value of tangi-
ble, liquid collateral held outside the country. How-
ever, transactions with branches of foreign banks are
included in these outstandings and are classified ac-

cording to the country location of the foreign banks’
head office.
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December 31

(In Millions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Nonaccrual Loans
Domestic
Residential Real Estate $ 5.0 $ 29 $ 6.4 $ 5.2 $53
Commercial 99.3 71.2 50.3 21.8 26.3
Commercial Real Estate 4.3 1.8 1.9 2.9 7.1
Personal .1 4 7 .6 2
International — — — — —
Total Nonaccrual Loans 108.7 76.3 59.3 30.5 389
Restructured Loans — — — 2.4 2.5
Other Real Estate Owned .8 2.2 1.3 2.3 1.9
Total Nonperforming Assets $109.5 $78.5 $60.6 $35.2 $43.3
Total 90 Day Past Due Loans
(still accruing) $ 14.5 $30.5 $15.4 $30.0 $13.9

Nonperforming Assets and 90 Day Past Due Loans.
Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans,
restructured loans and Other Real Estate Owned
(OREQO). OREO is comprised of commercial and
residential properties acquired in partial or total sat-
isfaction of problem loans. Past due loans are loans
that are delinquent 90 days or more and still accruing
interest. The level of 90 day past due loans at any re-
porting period can fluctuate widely based on the tim-
ing of cash collections, renegotiations and renewals.

Maintaining a low level of nonperforming assets
is important to the ongoing success of a financial in-
stitution. In addition to the negative impact on both
net interest income and credit losses, nonperforming
assets also increase operating costs due to the expense
associated with collection efforts. Northern Trust’s
comprehensive credit review and approval process is
critical to the ability to minimize nonperforming as-
sets on a long-term basis.

The table above presents the nonperforming as-
sets and past due loans for the current year and prior
years. Of the total loan portfolio of $18.0 billion at
December 31, 2001, $108.7 million or .6% was non-
accrual, an increase of $32.4 million from year-end
2000. At September 30, 2001, nonaccrual loans to-
taled $114.2 million. Nonaccrual loans at the end of
2001 include $19.4 million of outstandings, net of
charge-offs, to Enron Corp. and related entities and
$47.4 million to three asbestos producers that have
filed for Chapter 11 reorganization.

Included in the portfolio of nonaccrual loans are
those which meet the criteria as being “impaired”
under the definition in SFAS No. 114. A loan is
impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that a creditor will be unable to
collect all amounts due according to the contractual
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terms of the loan agreement. As of December 31, 2001,
impaired loans, all of which have been classified as
nonaccrual, totaled $98.0 million, with $21.1 million
of the reserve for credit losses allocated to these loans.

Provision and Reserve for Credit Losses. Changes in
the reserve for credit losses were as follows:

(In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Balance at Beginning of

Year $162.9 $150.9 $146.8
Charge-Offs (69.0) (13.5) 9.8)
Recoveries 1.2 1.5 1.4
Net Charge-Offs (67.8) (12.0) (8.4)
Provision for Credit Losses 66.5 24.0 12.5
Balance at End of Year $161.6 $162.9 $150.9

The provision for credit losses is the charge
against current earnings that is determined by man-
agement, through a disciplined credit review process,
to be the amount needed to maintain a reserve that is
sufficient to absorb credit losses inherent in Northern
Trust’s loan and lease portfolios and other credit
undertakings. The reserve provides for probable
losses that have been identified with specific bor-
rower relationships (specific loss component) and for
probable losses that are believed to be inherent in the
loan and lease portfolios and other credit under-
takings but that have not yet been specifically identi-
fied (inherent loss component). The table on page 54
shows (i) the specific portion of the reserve, (ii) the
allocated portion of the inherent reserve and its
components by loan category and (i) the un-
allocated portion of the reserve at December 31,
2001 and each of the prior four year-ends.

Specific Component of the Reserve. The specific
component of the reserve is determined on a loan-
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by-loan basis as part of the regular review of im-
paired loans and potential charge-offs. The specific
reserve is based on a loan’s current book value com-
pared to the present value of its projected future cash
flows, collateral value or market value, as is relevant
for the particular loan.

At December 31, 2001, the specific reserve
component amounted to $21.1 million compared to
$24.3 million at the end of 2000, a $3.2 million net
decrease. The decrease was primarily caused by the
writedown and sale of certain large commercial loans
during the year and the successful workout of one
large middle market loan. These were partially offset
by additional reserves provided on certain large
commercial loans with increased exposure to poten-
tial asbestos-related claims, and on several middle
market loans significantly impacted by the recent
economic downturn. The increase in the specific loss
component of the reserve in the prior year from
$15.0 million in 1999 to $24.3 million in 2000 pri-
marily relates to two large commercial credits, one of
which filed for Chapter 11 reorganization in 2000,
and further deterioration in the second which had
commenced reorganization proceedings in 1999.

Allocated Inherent Component of the Reserve.
The allocated portion of the inherent reserve is based
on management’s review of historical charge-off
experience as well as its judgment regarding loans in
each credit rating category over a period of time that
management determines is adequate to reflect
longer-term economic trends. One building block in
reaching the appropriate allocated inherent reserve is
an analysis of loans by credit rating categories. Credit
ratings are determined by members of the Credit
Policy Group at the time each loan is approved.
These credit ratings are then subject to periodic re-
views by the Credit Policy Group, which is in-
dependent of business unit management. Credit
Policy makes the final determination of each loan’s
rating. Credit ratings range from “1” for the stron-
gest credits to “9” for the weakest credits; a “97
rated loan would normally represent a complete loss.

Several factors are considered by management to
determine the level of the allocated inherent compo-
nent of the reserve. One of the factors is the histor-
ical loss ratio for each credit rating category over the
prior five years. The historical loss ratios are eval-
uated by management and adjusted based on current
facts and circumstances. The historical loss factors on
higher-risk loans, those rated “5” through “8”, are
also refined by considering historical loss ratios and
regulatory guidelines in order to provide a more con-
sistent and reliable method for taking account of
credit trends in measuring loss exposure.
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Management also utilizes an “industry base” re-
serve for the commercial, commercial real estate and
international segments of the portfolio in order to
measure the loss estimated to be inherent in these risk-
ier segments. Because of the higher degree of un-
certainty in these portfolios and Northern Trust’s past
experience, which included significant losses in brief
periods at particular points in the economic cycles,
management believes it appropriate to use a reserve
higher than recent charge-off experience would sug-
gest. This approach is supported by what management
perceives to be industry practice for minimum reserve
levels, and is intended to prevent an understatement
of reserves based upon over-reliance on recent favor-
able economic conditions.

The allocated inherent component of the reserve
also covers the credit exposure associated with un-
drawn loan commitments and standby letters of credit.
To determine the exposure on these instruments,
management uses the factors applied in risk-based
capital calculations to determine the balance sheet
equivalent amount and assigns a reserve provision fac-
tor based on the methodology utilized for outstanding
loans.

The allocated portion of the inherent reserve in-
creased $5.5 million to $118.0 million at December
31, 2001 and increased $5.9 million during 2000 to
$112.5 million at December 31, 2000. The increase in
this component of the reserve in each year reflects the
net impact of several factors. First, the credit ratings
on several commercial loans were lowered due to the
decline in their credit quality primarily resulting from
the slowdown in the economy. In addition, in 2001,
the credit rating on one large performing loan was
lowered due to exposure to potential asbestos-related
claims. Second, as a result of management’s periodic
review of all loss factors utilized in estimating the
allocated inherent reserve, certain loss factors applied
primarily to commercial loans and off-balance sheet
exposures were reduced. The loss factor adjustments
reflect management’s assessment of the credit risk in-
herent for these categories and their historical loss
experience.

Unallocated inherent Component of the Reserve.
The unallocated portion of the inherent loss reserve is
based on management’s review of other factors affect-
ing the determination of probable losses inherent in
the portfolio, which are not necessarily captured by
the application of historical loss ratios. This portion of
the reserve analysis involves the exercise of judgment
and reflects considerations such as management’s view
that the reserve should have a margin that recognizes
the imprecision inherent in the process of estimating
expected credit losses.
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Allocation of the Reserve for Credit Losses

December 31

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent

of Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans

Reserve to Total Reserve to Total Reserve toTotal Reserve to Total Reserve to Total

($ in Millions) Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans
Specific Reserve $ 21.1 —% $ 243 —% $ 15.0 —% § 5.9 —% $ 10.7 —%

Allocated Inherent Reserve

Residential Real Estate 9.7 41 9.6 38 11.5 41 11.0 43 37 41

Commercial 81.7 27 79.1 27 73.2 31 77.4 29 87.1 30

Commercial Real Estate 14.8 6 132 5 12.2 5 11.8 5 6.4 5

Personal 3.8 12 43 13 3.3 11 3.2 11 .6 10

Other —_ 4 — 6 — 4 — 5 — 7

Lease Financing 3.0 7 29 6 29 4 2.9 4 2.9 3

International 5.0 3 3.4 5 3.5 4 3.6 3 — 4
Total Allocated Inherent $118.0 100% $112.5 100% $106.6 100% $109.9 100% $100.7 100%

Unallocated Inherent Reserve 22.5 — 26.1 — 29.3 — 31.0 — 36.2 —
Total Reserve $161.6 100% $162.9 100% $150.9 100% $146.8 100% $147.6 100%

In evaluating the level of the unallocated portion
of the reserve in 2001, management concluded that
there were no significant changes in concentration of
credits that impacted asset quality that had not been
recognized in the specific and allocated components
of the reserve. In addition, loan growth during the
year came primarily in low-risk residential mortgage
loans. Based on these factors and management’s cur-
rent evaluation of the overall quality of the portfolio,
the unallocated portion of the reserve was lowered
from $26.1 million to $22.5 million.

Other Factors. The total amount of the two
highest risk loan groupings, those rated “7” and “8”
(based on Northern Trust’s internal rating scale,
which closely parallels that of the banking
regulators), declined $16 million in the fourth quar-
ter to $295 million, of which $97.6 million was
classified as impaired. This compares with $153 mil-
lion last year-end when $74.7 million was classified
as impaired. The increase primarily reflects rating
changes on certain loans, with approximately 50%
related to one large performing commercial loan
whose rating was lowered due to increased risk of
potential exposure to asbestos-related claims. There
were no “9” rated loans reported at any time during
the periods because loans are charged-off when they
are so rated. At December 31, 2001, these loans rep-
resent 1.6% of outstanding loans.

Overall Reserve. Management’s evaluation of the
factors above resulted in a reserve for credit losses of
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$161.6 million at December 31, 2001 compared to
$162.9 million at the end of 2000. The reserve as
a percentage of total loans remained at .90% at
December 31, 2001, the same as at year-end 2000.
This reserve level recognizes the fact that a sig-
nificant part of the growth in Northern Trust’s loan
portfolio continues to be in lower-risk residential
mortgage loans and collateralized personal loans. In
addition, Northern Trust’s underwriting standards
have enabled Northern Trust to maintain strong
credit quality in its loan and lease portfolio.

Prevision. The resulting provision for credit
losses was $66.5 million for the year, while net
charge-offs totaled $67.8 million. This compares to
a provision for credit losses of $24.0 million and net
charge-offs of $12.0 million in 2000. $45.0 million
of the current year provision was recognized in the
fourth quarter. This provision was taken to address
aggressively credit exposure to Enron Corp. which
filed for bankruptcy on December 2, 2001, as well
as other credit risks stemming from the economic
recession. Approximately $24.0 million of the
fourth quarter’s credit loss provision and charge-offs
were related to the Enron Corp. bankruptcy filing.
The higher provision in the current year also in-
cluded $6.5 million associated with the sale of $44.5
million of nonperforming loans in the second quar-
ter of the year.
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MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview. The Board of Directors has overall respon-
sibility for Northern Trust’s interest rate and foreign
exchange risk management policies. To ensure
adherence to these policies, the Corporate Asset and
Liability Policy Committee (ALCO) establishes and
monitors guidelines to control the sensitivity of earn-
ings to changes in interest rates. The guidelines apply
to both on- and off-balance sheet positions. ALCO
also establishes and monitors limits for foreign ex-
change risk. The goal of the ALCO process is to
maximize earnings while maintaining a high quality
balance sheet and carefully controlling interest rate
and foreign exchange risk.

Asset/Liability Management. Asset/liability manage-
ment activities include lending, accepting and placing
deposits, investing in securities, issuing debt, and
hedging interest rate risk with off-balance sheet in-
struments. The primary market risk associated with
asset/liability management activities is interest rate
risk. Sensitivity of earnings to interest rate changes
arises when yields on assets change in a different time
period or in a different amount from that of interest
costs on liabilities. To mitigate interest rate risk, the
structure of the balance sheet is managed so that
movements of interest rates on assets and liabilities
{adjusted for oft-balance sheet hedges) are highly
correlated and contribute to earnings even in periods
of volatile interest rates.

Northern Trust utilizes the following measure-
ment techniques in the management of interest rate
risk: simulation of earnings; simulation of the eco-
nomic value of equity; and gap analysis. These three
techniques are complementary and are used in con-
cert to provide a comprehensive interest rate risk
management capabilicy.

Simulation of earnings is the primary tool used
to measure the sensitivity of earnings to interest rate

OPERATIONS

changes. Using computer modeling techniques,
Northern Trust is able to measure the potential im-
pact of different interest rate assumptions on pre-tax
earnings. All on-balance sheet positions, as well as
derivative financial instruments (principally interest
rate swaps) that are used to manage interest rate risk,
are included in the model simulation.

Northern Trust used model simulations to mea-
sure its earnings sensitivity relative to management’s
most likely interest rate scenario as of December 31,
2001. This interest rate scenario assumed a stable
interest rate environment during the first half of
2002, with moderately rising interest rates for the
remainder of the year. The interest sensitivity was
tested by running alternative scenarios above and
below the most likely interest rate outcome. The
table on page 56 shows the effect on 2002 pre-tax
earnings of 100 and 200 basis point upward and
downward movements in interest rates relative to
management’s interest rate assumptions. Each of the
movements in interest rates was assumed to have
occurred gradually over a one year period. The 100
basis point increase, for example, consisted of twelve
consecutive monthly increases of 8.3 basis points.
The following assumptions were also incorporated
into the model simulations:

¢ the balance sheet size was assumed to remain
constant over the one year simulation horizon;

» maturing assets and liabilities were invested or
deposited into identical items with the same
termy;

° prepayments on mortgage loans were projected
under each rate scenario using a mortgage ana-
lytics system that incorporated market prepay-
ment assumptions; and

e changes in the spreads between retail deposit
rates and asset yields were estimated based on
historical patterns and current competitive
trends.
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Interest Rate Risk Simulation of Pre-Tax Income as of
December 31, 2001

Estimated tmpact
On 2002 Pre-tax

Income

{In Millions) increase/(Decrease)
increase in Interest Rates Above

Management’s Interest Rate

Forecast

100 Basis Points $ (6.9

200 Basis Points (14.5)
Decrease in Interest Rates Below

Management's Interest Rate

Forecast

100 Basis Points $ 62

200 Basis Points 10.0

The simulations of earnings do not incorporate
any management actions that might moderate the
negative consequences of interest rate deviations. For
that reason and others, they do not reflect likely ac-
tual results but serve as conservative estimates of
interest rate risk.

A second technique used to measure interest rate
risk is simulation of the economic value of equity,

L which provides estimates of the potential future im-

pact on equity of various changes in interest rates.
The potential effect of interest rate changes
on equity is derived from the impact of such
changes on the market values of assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet instruments. Northern Trust limits

aggregate market risk, as measured in this fashion, to
an acceptable level within the context of risk-return
trade-offs.

The third technique that 1s used to measure inter-
est rate risk is gap analysis. The calculation of the
interest sensitivity gap measures the timing mis-
matches between assets and liabilities. This interest
sensitivity gap 1s determined by subtracting the
amount of liabilities from the volume of assets that
reprice in a particular time interval. A liability sensi-
tive position results when more liabilities than assets
reprice or mature within a given period. Under this
scenarlo, as interest rates decline, increased net inter-
est revenue will be generated. Conversely, an asset
sensitive position results when more assets than
liabilities reprice within a given period; in this

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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instance, net interest revenue would benefit from an
increasing interest rate environment. The economic
impact of creating a liability or asset sensitive posi-
tion depends on the magnitude of actual changes in
interest rates relative to the current expectations of
market price participants.

A variety of actions are used to implement risk
management strategies including:

e purchases of securities;

° sales of securities that are classified as available

for sale;

o sales of held for sale residential real estate

loans;

o issuance of senior notes;

o collateralized borrowings from the Federal

Home Loan Bank;

o placing and taking Eurodollar time deposits;

and

> hedging with various types of derivative finan-

cial instruments.

Northern Trust strives to use the most effective
instruments for implementing its interest risk
management strategies, considering the costs, liquid-
ity, collateral and capital requirements of the various
alternatives.

Foreign Exchange Trading. Foreign exchange trading
activities consist principally of providing foreign
exchange services to clients. Most of these services
are provided in connection with Northern Trust’s
growing global custody business. However, in the
normal course of business Northern Trust also en-
gages in proprietary trading of foreign currencies.
The primary market risk associated with these activ-
ities is foreign exchange risk.

Foreign currency positions exist when aggregate
obligations to purchase and sell a currency other than
the U.S. dollar do not offset each other, or offset
each other in different time periods. Northern Trust
mitigates the risk related to its foreign currency posi-
tions by establishing limits on the amounts of, and
durations of its positions. The limits on overnight
inventory positions are generally lower than the lim-
its established for intra-day trading activity. All over-
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night positions are monitored by a risk management
function, which is separate from the trading func-
tion, to ensure that the limits are not exceeded. Al-
though position limits are important in controlling
foreign exchange risk, they are not a substitute for
the experience or judgment of Northern Trust’s se-
nior management and its foreign currency traders,
who have extensive knowledge of the foreign cur-
rency markets. Foreign currency positions and strat-
egies are adjusted as needed in response to changing
market conditions.

As part of its risk management activities, North-
ern Trust regularly measures the risk of loss asso-
ciated with foreign currency positions using a value
at risk model. This statistical model provides an esti-
mate, based on a 95% confidence level, of the poten-
tial loss in earnings that may be incurred if an adverse
one-day shift in foreign currency exchange rates
were to occur. The model, which is based on a var-
iance/co-variance methodology, incorporates histor-
ical currency price data and historical correlations in
price movement among the currencies. All foreign
currency positions, including foreign denominated
assets and liabilities that were not converted to U.S.
dollars through the use of hedge contracts, are in-
cluded in the model.

Northern Trust’s value at risk based on foreign
currency positions totaled $85 thousand and $107
thousand as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, re-
spectively. Value at risk totals representing the aver-
age, high and low for 2001 were $233 thousand,
$463 thousand and $85 thousand, respectively, with
the average, high and low for 2000 being $181 thou-
sand, $345 thousand and $78 thousand, respectively.
These totals indicate the degree of risk inherent in
foreign currency positions as of year-end and during
the year, however, it is not a prediction of an ex-
pected gain or loss. Actual future gains and losses will
vary depending on market conditions and the size
and duration of future foreign currency positions.

Other Trading Activities. Market risk associated with
other trading activities is negligible. Northern Trust
is a party to various derivative financial instruments,
most of which consist of interest rate swaps entered
into to meet clients’ interest risk management needs.
When Northern Trust enters into such swaps, its

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

policy is to mitigate the resulting interest rate risk
with an offsetting swap or with futures contracts.
Northern Trust carries in its trading portfolio a small
inventory of securities that are held for sale to its cli-
ents. The interest rate risk associated with these
securities 1s insignificant.

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

The objectives of liquidity risk managemient are to
ensure that Northern Trust can meet its cash flow
requirements and to capitalize on business oppor-
tunities on a timely and cost effective basis.
Management monitors the liquidity position on a
daily basis to make funds available at 2 minimum cost
to meet loan and deposit cash flows. The liquidity
profile is also structured so that the capital needs of
the Corporation and its banking subsidiaries are met.
Management maintains a detailed liquidity con-
tingency plan designed to adequately respond to
dramatic changes in market conditions.

Liquidity is secured by managing the mix of
items on the balance sheet and expanding potential
sources of liquidity. The balance sheet sources of lig-
uidity include the short-term money market portfo-
lio, unpledged available for sale securities, maturing
loans and the ability to securitize a portion of the
loan portfolio. Further, liquidity arises from the di-
verse funding base and the fact that a significant por-
tion of funding comes from clients that have other
relationships with Northern Trust.

A significant source of liquidity is the ability to
draw funding from both domestic and international
markets. The Bank’s senior Jong-term debt is rated
AA — by Standard & Poor’s, Aa3 by Moody’s Invest-
ors Service, and AA by Fitch. These ratings allow the
Bank to access capital markets on favorable terms.

Northern Trust maintains a liquid balance sheet
with loans representing only 45% of total assets. Fur-
ther, at December 31, 2001, it had a significant li-
quidity reserve on its balance sheet in the form of
cash and due from banks, securities available for sale,
and money market assets, which in aggregate totaled
$18.8 billion or 47% of total assets. Northern Trust
has not utilized unconsolidated special purpose ve-
hicles for financing purposes or as part of its liquidity
risk management.
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The Corporation’s uses of cash consist mainly
of dividend payments to the Corporation’s common
and preferred stockholders, the payment of principal
and interest to note holders, purchases of its common
stock and acquisitions. These cash needs are met
largely by dividend payments from its subsidiaries,
and by interest and dividends earned on investment
securities and money market assets. Bank subsidiary
dividends are subject to certain restrictions that are
explained in Note 15 on page 76. Bank subsidiaries

have the ability to pay dividends during 2002 equal
to their 2002 eligible net profits plus $386.1 million.
The Corporation’s liquidity, defined as the amount
of marketable assets in excess of commercial paper,
was strong at $139.2 million at year-end 2001. The
cash flows of the Corporation are shown in Note 30
on page 91. The Corporation also has a $50 million
back-up line of credit for its commercial paper
issuance.

The following information regarding long-term contractual obligations and commitments at December
31, 2001 1s provided in response to recent SEC recommendations.

Long-Term Contractual Obligations

Payment Due by Period

One Year 1-3 4-5 After
(In Millions) Total and Less Years Years 5 Years
Bank-Senior Notes $ 450.0 $ — $350.0 $100.0 $ —
Long-Term Debt 750.0 — 100.0 200.0 450.0
Floating Rate Capital Securities 270.0 — — —_ 270.0
Capital Lease Obligations 25.9 2.4 4.8 4.8 13.9
Operating Leases 551.4 43.8 82.0 76.3 349.3
Total Long-Term Contractual Obligations $2,047.3 $46.2 $536.8 $381.1 $1,083.2

Commitments and Letters of Credit

Amount of Commitment
Expiration Per Period

Total
Amount One Year Over
(In Millions) Committed and Less  One Year
Legally Binding

Commitments to
Extend Credit
Commercial Letters

of Credit 71.8 31.6 40.2
Standby Letters of Credit 2,473.7  1,705.2 768.5

Total Commitments and
Letters of Credit

$16,358.5 § 9,798.8 $6,559.7

$18,904.0 $11,535.6 $7,368.4

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

One of management’s primary objectives is to main-
tain a strong capital position to merit the confidence
of clients, the investing public, bank regulators and
stockholders. A strong capital position helps North-
ern Trust take advantage of profitable investment
opportunities when they arise and helps withstand
unforeseen adverse developments. In 2001, capital
ratios were strengthened as average common equity
increased 15% or $330.5 million reaching a record
$2.65 billion at year-end, while total risk-weighted
assets rose 2%. Total equity as of December 31, 2001
was $2.77 billion, including $120 million of auction
rate preferred stock. The average dividend rate de-
clared on the $120 million of auction rate preferred
stock, was 3.40% during 2001. During 2001, the
Corporation purchased 2,547,235 of its own shares as
part of its buyback program. The buyback program
is designed, among other things, to help offset the
dilutive effect of the Corporation’s incentive stock
programs. The Corporation may purchase up to 4.6
million additional shares after December 31, 2001.
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Capital Adequacy

December 31

($ In Millions) 2001 2000
Tier 1 Capital
Common Stockholders’ Equity $ 2,653 § 2,342
Debt-Floating Rate Capital Securities 268 267
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (114) (126)
Net Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Securities ey 1
Total Tier 1 Capital 2,806 2,484
Tier 2 Capital
Auction Rate Preferred Stock 120 120
Reserve for Credit Losses 162 163
Reserves Against Identified Losses 21) (24)
Long-Term Debt* 610 520
Total Tier 2 Capital 871 779
Total Risk-Based Capital 3,677 3,263
Risk-Weighted Assets™ $25,797  $25,385
Total Assets—End of Period (EOP) $39,664  $36,022
Average Fourth Quarter Assets™™ 35,373 35,932
Total Loans—EOP 17,980 18,145
Ratios
Risk-Based Capital to Risk-

Weighted Assets

Tier 1 10.9% 9.8%

Total (Tier 1 and Tier 2) 14.3 12.9
Leverage 7.9 6.9

Common Stockholders’ Equity to
Total Loans EOP
Total Assets EOP 6.7 6.5
Stockholders' Equity to
Total Loans EOP
Total Assets EOP 7.0 6.8

Notes:

*Long-Term Debt that qualifies for risk-based capital amortizes for
the purpose of inclusion in tier 2 capital during the five years before
maturity.

**Assets have been adjusted for goodwill and other intangible assets,
net unrealized (gain) loss on securities, reserves against identified
losses and excess reserve for credit losses that have been excluded
from tier 1 and tier 2 capital, if any.

The Board of Directors increased the quarterly
dividend by 9.7% to $.17 per common share in No-
vember 2001. The common dividend has increased
89% from its level five years ago.

The higher capital levels in 2001 were the result
of Northern Trust’s ongoing policy of retaining a
sufficient percentage of earnings in the Corporation
to allow for strategic expansion while maintaining a
strong balance sheet. All of Northern Trust’s capital
ratios were well above the ratios that are a require-
ment for regulatory treatment as “well capitalized.”
At December 31, 2001, tier 1 capital was 10.9% and

14.8% 12.9%

15.4% 13.6%

total capital was 14.3% of risk-weighted assets. These
risk-based capital ratios are well above the minimum
requirements of 4.0% for tier 1 and 8.0% for total
risk-based capital ratios. Northern Trust’s leverage
ratio (tier 1 capital to fourth quarter average assets) of
7.9% is also well above the regulatory requirement of
3.0%. In addition, each of the subsidiary banks had a
ratio of at least 9.3% for tier 1 capital, 11.0% for total
risk-based capital, and 6.7% for the leverage ratio.

OPERATIONAL AND FIDUCIARY
RISK MANAGEMENT

In providing banking and trust services, Northern
Trust, in addition to safekeeping and managing trust
and corporate assets, processes cash and securities
transactions exceeding $175 billion on average each
business day. These activities expose Northern Trust
to operational and fiduciary risk. Controls over such
processing activities are closely monitored to safe-
guard the assets of Northern Trust and its clients.
However, from time to time Northern Trust has
incurred losses related to these risks and there can be
no assurance that such losses will not occur in the
future.

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected losses
attributable to human error, systems failures, fraud,
or inadequate internal controls and procedures. This
risk is mitigated through a system of internal controls
that are designed to keep operating risk at levels ap-
propriate to Northern Trust’s corporate standards in
view of the risks inherent in the markets in which
Northern Trust operates. The system of internal con-
trols includes policies and procedures that require the
proper authorization, approval, documentation and
monitoring of transactions. Each business unit is re-
sponsible for complying with corporate policies and
external regulations applicable to the unit, and is re-
sponsible for establishing specific procedures to do
so. Northern Trust’s internal auditors monitor the
overall effectiveness of the system of internal controls
on an ongoing basis.

Fiduciary risk is the risk of loss that may occur as
a result of breaching a fiduciary duty to a client. To
limit this risk, the Trust Investment Committee
establishes corporate policies and procedures to re-
duce the risk that obligations to clients would not be
discharged faithfully or in compliance with applicable
legal and regulatory requirements. These policies and
procedures provide guidance and establish standards
related to the creation, sale, and management of in-
vestment products, trade execution, and counterparty
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selection. Business units have the primary responsi-
bility for adhering to the policies and procedures
applicable to their businesses.

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE RESULTS

This annual report contains statements that may be
considered forward-looking, such as the discussion of
Northern Trust’s financial goals, dividend policy,
expansion and business development plans, business
prospects and positioning with respect to market and
pricing trends, new business results and outlook,
credit quality, planned capital expenditures and tech-
nology spending, and the effect of various matters
(including changes in accounting standards and inter-
pretations) on Northern Trust’s business and results.
These statements speak of Northern Trust’s plans,
goals, beliefs or expectations, refer to estimates or use
similar terms. Actual results could differ materially
from the results indicated by these statements because
the realization of those results is subject to many risks
and uncertainties including:

o The future health of the U.S. and international
economies and other economic factors that
affect wealth creation, investment and savings
patterns.

° U.S. and international economic factors that
may impact Northern Trust’s interest rate risk
exposure and credit risk.

° Any extraordinary events (such as the Sep-
tember 11, 2001 events and the U.S. govern-
ment’s response to the events).

¢ Changes in U.S. and worldwide securities
markets, with respect to the market values of
financial assets, the stability of particular secu-
rities markets and the level of volatility in cer-
tain markets such as foreign exchange.

° Changes in the level of cross-border investing
by clients resulting from changing economic
factors, political conditions or currency
markets.

» Regulatory developments and changes in ac-
counting requirements or interpretations in the
U.S. and other countries where Northern
Trust has significant business.

¢ Changes in the nature of Northern Trust’s
competition resulting from industry consolida-~
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tion, enactment of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Act of 1999 and other regulatory changes and
other factors, as well as actions taken by partic-
ular competitors.

o Northern Trust’s success in continuing to gen-
erate new business in its existing markets, as
well as its success in identifying and penetrat-
ing targeted markets, through acquisition or
otherwise, and generating a profit in those
markets in a reasonable time.

e Northern Trust’s ability to continue to gen-
erate strong investment results for clients and
continue to develop its array of investment
products, internally or through acquisition, in
a manner that meets client needs.

o Northern Trust’s success in further developing
and executing on initiatives that integrate the
Internet into its methods of product distri-
bution, new business development and client
service.

e Northern Trust’s ability to continue to fund
and accomplish technological innovation, im-
prove processes and controls and attract and
retain capable staff in order to deal with tech-
nology challenges and increasing volume and
complexity in many of its businesses.

o Northern Trust’s success in integrating recent
and future acquisitions and using the acquired
businesses to execute its business strategy.

e The ability of each of Northern Trust’s princi-
pal businesses to maintain a product mix that
achieves satisfactory margins.

¢ Changes in tax laws or other legislation in the
U.S. or other countries (including pension re-
form legislation) that could affect Northern
Trust or clients of its personal and institutional
asset administration businesses.

Some of these risks and uncertainties that may
affect future results are discussed in more detail in
the sections of “Item 1-—Business” of the 2001
Annual Report on Form 10-K captioned “Govern-
ment Policies,” “Competition” and “Regulation and
Supervision.” All forward-looking statements includ-
ed in this document are based upon information
presently available, and Northern Trust assumes no
obligation to update any forward-looking statements.




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31

{$ In Millions Except Share Information) 2001 2000
Assets

Cash and Due from Banks $ 2,592.3 $ 2,287.8
Federal Funds Sold and Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell (Note 4) 3,565.1 549.8
Time Deposits with Banks 6,955.9 5,193.8
Other Interest-Bearing 25.0 121.3
Securities (Notes 3 and 24)

Available for Sale 5,648.6 6,477.8

Held to Maturity (Fair value—$673.1 in 2001 and $782.1 in 2000) 663.6 778.4

Trading Account 18.9 13.4

Total Securities 6,331.1 7,269.6
Loans and Leases (Note 5)

Commercial and Other 10,552.0 11,321.8

Residential Mortgages 7,427.9 6,822.8

Total Loans and Leases (Net of unearned income—$427.3 in 2001 and §365.3 in 2000) 17,979.9 18,144.6
Reserve for Credit Losses (Note 6) (161.6) (162.9)
Buildings and Equipment (Notes 7 and 8) 488.7 448.1
Customers’ Acceptance Liability 9.7 9.3
Trust Security Settlement Receivables 571.4 615.2
Other Assets (Note 18) 1,307.0 1,545.7
Total Assets $39,664.5 $36,022.3
Liabilities
Deposits

Demand and Other Noninterest-Bearing $ 6,237.4 $ 4,547.7

Savings and Money Market 6,808.5 5,521.7

Savings Certificates 2,024.4 2,331.2

Other Time 404.6 427.3

Foreign Offices—Demand 872.7 827.5

—Time 8,671.7 9,172.5

Total Deposits 25,019.3 22,827.9
Federal Funds Purchased 815.5 3,615.0
Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase (Note 4) 1,407.4 1,577.1
Commercial Paper 137.7 142.4
Other Borrowings 6,841.2 2,629.5
Senior Notes (Note 9) 450.0 500.0
Long-Term Debt (Note 9) 766.8 638.1
Debt-Floating Rate Capital Securities (Note 10) 267.7 267.6
Liability on Acceptances 9.7 9.3
Other Liabilities 1,175.7 1,353.2

Total Liabilities 36,891.0 33,560.1
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock (Note 11) 120.0 120.0
Common Stock, $1.66%3 Par Value; Authorized 560,000,000 shares in 2001 and 2000;

OQutstanding 221,647,260 shares in 2001 and 222,232,395 shares in 2000 (Notes 11 and 14) 379.8 379.8
Capital Surplus — —
Retained Earnings 2,520.1 2,200.0
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Note 12) (2.4) (13.2)
Common Stock Issuable—Stock Incentive Plans (Note 25) 147.6 110.2
Deferred Compensation (58.1) (57.9)
Treasury Stock (at cost—6,274,264 shares in 2001 and 5,689,129 shares in 2000) (333.5) (276.7)

Total Stockholders” Equity 2,773.5 2,462.2
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $39,664.5 $36,022.3

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 6591,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the Year Ended December 31

($ In Millions Except Per Share Information) 2001

2000

1999

Noninterest Income
Trust Fees $1,231.3
Foreign Exchange Trading Profits 139.8
Treasury Management Fees 84.1
Security Commissions and Trading Income 35.5
Other Operating Income (Note 16) 89.3
[nvestment Security Gains, net (Note 3) —

$1,201.2
152.7
715
343
77.1

2

$ 9742
107.7
67.9
30.2
545

7

Total Noninterest Income 1,580.0

1,537.0

1,235.2

Net Interest Income (Note 17)
Interest Income 1,681.5
Interest Expense 1,086.2

2,0111
1,442.5

1,568.6
1,049.8

Net Interest Income 595.3
Provision for Credit Losses (Note 6) 66.5

568.6
24.0

518.8
1255

Net Interest Income after Provision for Credit Losses 528.8

544.6

506.3

Noninterest Expenses

Compensation (Notes 25 and 26) 685.8 689.1 582.6
Employee Benefits (Note 19) 122.2 109.3 98.5
Occupancy Expense (Notes 7 and 8) 100.2 87.3 74.3
Equipment Expense (Note 7) 85.7 73.1 63.6
Other Operating Expenses (Note 18) 383.0 392.7 306.0
Total Noninterest Expenses 1,376.9 1,351.5 1,125.0
Income before Income Taxes 731.9 730.1 616.5
Provision for Income Taxes (Note 13) 244.4 245.0 211.5
Net Income $ 487.5 § 485.1 $ 405.0
Net Income Applicable to Common Stock $ 483.4 § 4794 $§ 400.2
Met Income Per Common Share (Note 14)-Basic $ 2.18 $ 217 $ 181
—Diluted 2.11 2.08 1.74
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding—Basic 221,425,584 220,961,477 221,673,316
~Diluted 228,971,338 230,613,311 229,874,028
CONSQCLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31
(In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Net Income $ 487.5 $ 4851 $ 405.0
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)
Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Securities Available for Sale:
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During Period .8 1.6 (1.4)
Less: Reclassification Adjustments for Gains Included in Net Income — 1) (.4)
Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Cash Flow Hedge Designations:
Cumulative-Effect of Adopting SFAS No. 133 (.2) — —
Unrealized Holding Gains Arising During Period .5 — —
Less: Reclassification Adjustments for Losses Included in Net Income 1.2 — —
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments (.2) — —
Minimum Pension Liability Adjustment 8.7 (1.6 3.9
Other Comprehensive Income 10.8 (1) (5.7
Comprehensive Income $ 498.3 $ 485.0 £ 3993

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 65-91.
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CONSOCLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY

For the Year Ended December 31

(In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Preferred Stock

Balance at January 1 $ 120.0 $ 1200 $ 1200
Balance at December 31 120.0 120.0 120.0
Common Stock

Balance at January 1 379.8 379.8 189.9
Transfer from Capital Surplus—=Two-for-One Stock Split — — 189.9
Balance at December 31 379.8 379.8 379.8
Capital Surplus

Balance at January 1 — — 212.9
Transfer to Common Stock—Two-for-One Stock Split — — (189.9)
Stock Issued—Incentive Plan and Awards — — (23.0)

Balance at December 31 —_ _ —

Retained Earnings

Balance at January 1 2,200.0 1,870.7 1,582.9
Net Income 487.5 485.1 405.0
Dividends Declared—Common Stock (141.1) (124.3) (110.3)
Dividends Declared—Preferred Stock (3.9) (6.7) (4.8)
Stock Issued—Incentive Plan and Awards (22.4) (25.8) 2.1)
Balance at December 3t 2,520.1 2,200.0 1,870.7
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at January 1 (13.2) (13.1) (7.4)
Other Comprehensive Income 10.8 (1) (5.7)
Balance at December 31 (2.4) (13.2) (13.1)
Common Stock Issuable-Stock Incentive Plans

Balance at January 1 110.2 55.0 30.4
Stock Issuable, net of Stock Issued 37.4 55.2 24.6
Balance at December 31 147.6 110.2 55.0
Deferred Compensation

Balance at January 1 (57.9) (33.5) (37.5)
Compensation Deferred (36.0) (52.6) (13.3)
Compensation Amortized 35.8 28.2 17.3
Balance at December 31 (58.1) (57.9) (33.5)
Treasury Stock

Balance at January 1 (276.7) (204.2) (150.9)
Stock Options and Awards 106.0 121.6 87.0
Stock Purchased (156.8) (194.1) (140.3)
Balance at December 31 (333.5) (276.7) (204.2)
Total Stockholders’ Equity at December 31 $2,773.5 $2,462.2 $2,174.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 65—-91.

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION




CONSCLIDATED STATEMENT OCOF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31

(In Millions) 2000

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net Income $ 4875 $ 4851 $ 405.0
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities:

Provision for Credit Losses 66.5 24.0 12.5
Depreciation on Buildings and Equipment 78.6 67.8 58.2
(Increase) Decrease in Interest Receivable 61.0 (34.1) 9.2)
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable (13.6) 6.7 17.5
Amortization and Accretion of Securities and Unearned Income (141.2) (233.5) (86.2)
Amortization of Computer Software 69.9 61.3 48.1
Amortization of Goodwill and Other Intangibles 16.5 15.6 14.2
Deferred Income Tax 129.5 88.4 95.3
Net Increase in Trading Account Securities (5.5) 2.4 (1.9)
Other Noncash, net 23.7) (94.4) 53.3
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 725.5 3711 606.8

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Net (Increase) Decrease in Federal Funds Sold and Securities Purchased

under Agreements to Resell (3,015.3) 534.0 80.6
Net (Increase) Decrease in Time Deposits with Banks (1,762.1) (2,901.6) 972.5
Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Interest-Bearing Assets 96.3 (58.1) (41.4)
Purchases of Securities—Held to Maturity (150.0) (146.4) (201.2)
Proceeds from Maturity and Redemption of Securities—Held to Maturity 99.5 126.9 160.2
Purchases of Securities—Available for Sale (65,235.4) (41,011.9) (45,965.0)
Proceeds from Sale, Maturity and Redemption of Securities—Available for Sale  66,441.8 40,297.6 45,777.4
Net (Increase) Decrease in Loans and Leases 33.7 (2,827.7) (1,834.3)
64 Purchases of Buildings and Equipment (128.3) (137.1) (99.9)
Proceeds from Sale of Buildings and Equipment 2.1 1.7 1.5
Purchases and Development of Computer Software (135.1) (110.3) (96.3)
Net (Increase) Decrease in Trust Security Settlement Receivables 43.8 (292.1) 13.6
Decrease in Cash Due to Acquisitions (1.5) (33.0) —
Other, net 24.5 41.5 2.7
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (3,679.0) (6,516.5) (1,229.6)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Net Increase in Deposits 2,191.4 1,456.9 3,168.3
Net Increase (Decrease) in Federal Funds Purchased (2,799.5) 3,244.8 (1,654.9)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase (169.7) 579.3 (1,117.1)
Net Decrease in Commercial Paper 4.7 2.7 3.0
Net Increase (Decrease) in Short-Term Other Borrowings 3,939.7 2,052.7 (556.1)
Proceeds from Term Federal Funds Purchased 4,675.4 14,215.6 7,516.8
Repayments of Term Federal Funds Purchased (4,403.4) (14,794.1) (6,904.6)
Proceeds from Senior Notes & Long-Term Debt 154.5 102.6 701.4
Repayments of Senior Notes & Long-Term Debt (75.8) (123.9) (700.2)
Treasury Stock Purchased (152.8) (191.5) (139.7)
Net Proceeds from Stock Options 19.7 28.4 24.1
Cash Dividends Paid on Common and Preferred Stock (142.3) (125.8) (111.4)
Other, net 25.5 13.0 11.1
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 3,258.0 6,455.3 2347
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Due from Banks 304.5 309.9 (388.1)
Cash and Due from Banks at Beginning of Year 2,287.8 1,977.9 2,366.0
Cash and Due From Banks at End of Year $ 2,592.3 $ 2,287.8 $ 1,977.9
Schedule of Noncash investing Activities:
Transfer of Securities from Held to Maturity to Available for Sale $ 167.1 $ — $ —
Transfer of Securities from Available for Sale to Held to Maturity — — 239.8
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest Paid $ 1,099.9 $ 1,449.2 $ 1,032.4
Income Taxes Paid 60.5 112.7 69.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 65-91.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

1. Accounting Policies—The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles and report-
ing practices prescribed for the banking industry. A
description of the significant accounting policies
follows:

A. Basis of Presentation. The consolidated fi-
nancial statements include the accounts of Northern
Trust Corporation (Corporation) and its wholly-
owned subsidiary The Northern Trust Company
(Bank) and their wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Throughout the notes, the term “Northern Trust”
refers to Northern Trust Corporation and subsidi-
aries. Significant intercompany balances and trans-
actions have been eliminated in consolidation. The
consolidated statement of income includes results of
acquired subsidiaries from the dates of acquisition.

B. Mature of Operations. The Corporation is a
bank holding company whose principal subsidiary is
the Chicago-based Bank. The Corporation also owns
banks with offices in Arizona, California, Colorado,
Florida, and Texas, a federal savings bank with of-
fices in Michigan, Missouri, Nevada, Ohio, Wash-
ington and Wisconsin, a trust company in New York
and various other nonbank subsidiaries, including a
securities brokerage firm, an international investment
consulting firm and a retirement services company.
The Bank has offices in the Chicago metropolitan
area, global custody operations in London and various
subsidiaries, including an investment management
company, a leasing company, a Canadian trust com-
pany, a New York Edge Act company and a global
fund services provider. Northern Trust generates the
majority of its revenues from its two primary business
units, Corporate and Institutional Services (C&IS) and
Personal Financial Services (PFS). Investment man-
agement services and products are provided to C&IS
and PFES through a third business unit, Northern Trust
Global Investments (NTGI). Operating and systems
support for these business units are provided by a
fourth business unit, Worldwide Operations and
Technology (WWOT). Northern Trust has not uti-
lized unconsolidated special purpose entities in order
to provide financing, improve liquidity, transfer assets
or manage credit risk.

The C&IS business unit provides master trust
and custody-related services in the United States and
foreign markets to corporations and institutions;
investment management services; a full range of
commercial banking services to large domestic cor-
porations and financial institutions; treasury manage-
ment services to meet the needs of major corporations
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and financial institutions; a comprehensive array of
consulting, actuarial and recordkeeping services; and
foreign exchange services for global custody clients
and Northern Trust’s own account.

The PES business unit provides personal trust,
investment management, estate administration, bank-
ing (including private banking) and mortgage lending
services, and also provides commercial banking ser-
vices to small/mid-size businesses. These services are
delivered through the Bank in Illinois and the net-
work of subsidiaries with offices in Arizona, Cal-
ifornia, Colorado, Florida, Michigan, Missouri,

Nevada, Ohio, Texas, Washington and Wisconsin.

C. Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Finan-
cial Statements. The preparation of financial state-
ments in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the report-
ing period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

D. Foreign Currency Translation. If the functional
currency of a foreign branch or subsidiary is the U.S.
dollar, foreign currency asset and liability accounts
are translated at current rates of exchange, except for
buildings and equipment which are translated at rates
in effect at the date of acquisition. Results from re-
measurement are reported in foreign exchange trad-
ing profits. Income and expense accounts are trans-
lated at month-end rates of exchange.

If the functional currency of a foreign branch or
subsidiary is its local currency, the local currency as-
set and liability accounts are translated at current
rates. Translation adjustments are reported, net of
tax, directly to accumulated other comprehensive
income, a component of capital. Income and ex-
pense accounts are translated at month-end rates of
exchange.

E. Securities. Securities Available for Sale consist
of debt and equity securities that are not intended
to be held to maturity and are not held for trad-
ing. Securities available for sale are reported at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses credited or
charged, net of the tax effect, directly to stock-
holders’ equity. Realized gains and losses on secu-
rities available for sale are determined on a specific
identification basis and are reported in the con-
solidated statement of income as investment security
gains and losses.
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Securities Held tc Maturity consist of debt se-
curities that management intends to, and Northern
Trust has the ability to, hold until maturity. Such se-
curities are reported at cost, adjusted for amortization
of premium and accretion of discount.

Securities Held for Trading are stated at fair val-
ue. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on secur-
ities held for trading are reported in the consolidated
statement of income under security commissions and
trading income.

F. Derivative Financial Instruments. Northern
Trust adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for De-
rivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and its
related amendments on January 1, 2001. Derivative
financial instruments include interest rate swap con-
tracts, futures contracts, forward foreign currency
contracts, options and similar contracts. Northern
Trust 15 a party to various derivative instruments as
part of its asset/liability management activities, to
meet the risk management needs of its clients and as
part of its trading activity for its own account. Un-
realized gains and receivables on derivative instru-
ments are reported as other assets and unrealized
losses and payables are reported as other liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Asset/Liability Management. Derivatives entered
into for asset/liability management purposes are des-
ignated and formally documented as fair value, cash
flow or net investment hedges on the date they are
transacted. The formal documentation describes the
hedge relationship and identifies the hedging instru-
ments and hedged items. Included in the doc-
umentation is a discussion of the risk management
objectives and strategies for undertaking such hedges,
as well as a description of the method for assessing
hedge effectiveness at inception and on an ongoing
basis. A formal assessment is performed on a calendar
quarter basis to determine that derivatives used in
hedging transactions are highly effective as offsets to
changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged
item. If a derivative ceases to be highly effective or if
hedged forecasted transactions are no longer ex-
pected to occur, hedge accounting is terminated and
the derivative is treated as if it were a client-related
or trading instrument,

Fair value hedge designations are made between
a derivative and a recognized asset or liability. Inter-
est accruals and changes in fair value of the derivative
are recognized as a component of the interest income
or expense classification of the hedged item. Changes
in fair value of the hedged asset or liability attribut-
able to the risk being hedged are reflected in its
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carrying amount and are also recognized as a compo-
nent of its interest income or expense.

Cash flow hedge designations are made between
derivatives and forecasted cash inflows or outflows so
as to hedge against variability due to a specific risk.
The effective portion of unrealized gains and losses
on such derivatives are recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive income, a component of stock-
holders’ equity. When the hedged forecasted trans-
action impacts earnings, balances in other compre-
hensive income are reclassified to the same income
and expense classification of the hedged item. Any
hedge ineffectiveness is recognized in the income or
expense classification of the hedged item.

Net investment hedge designations are made
between a forward foreign currency contract and a
net investment in a foreign branch or subsidiary.
Changes in the fair value of the hedging contract are
recognized in the foreign exchange translation gain
or loss account of stockholders’ equity. Hedge in-
effectiveness is calculated based on changes in for-
ward rates of the derivative and the hedged net
investment. Any ineffectiveness is recorded to other
income only if the notional amount of the derivative
does not match the portion of the net investment
designated as being hedged.

Other derivatives transacted as economic hedges
of foreign denominated assets and liabilities are car-
ried on the balance sheet at fair value and recognized
currently in foreign exchange trading profits. Unreal-
ized gains are shown as other assets, with unrealized
losses reported as other liabilities.

Client-Related and Trading Instruments. De-
rivative financial instruments entered into to meet cli-
ents’ risk management needs or for trading purposes
are carried at fair value, with realized and unrealized
gains and losses included in security commissions and
trading income or foreign exchange trading profits.

G. Loans and Leases. Loans that are held to ma-
turity are reported at the principal amount out-
standing, net of unearned income. Residential real
estate loans classitied as held for sale are reported at
the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Loan
commitments for residential real estate loans which
will be classified as held for sale at the time of fund-
ing and which have an interest-rate lock, are record-
ed on the balance sheet at fair value and recognized
as other income. Unrealized gains are reported as
other assets, with unrealized losses reported as other
liabilities. Interest income on loans is recorded on an
accrual basis until, in the opinion of management,
there is a question as to the ability of the debtor to
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meet the terms of the contract, or when interest or
principal is more than 90 days past due and the loan
is not well-secured and in the process of collection.
At the time a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, in-
terest accrued but not collected is reversed against
interest income of the current period. Loans are re-
turned to accrual status when factors indicating
doubtful collectibility no longer exist. Interest col-
lected on nonaccrual loans is applied to principal
unless, in the opinion of management, collectibility
of principal is not in doubt.

Premiums and discounts on loans are recognized
as an adjustment of yield using the interest method
based on the contractual terms of the loan. Com-
mitment fees that are considered to be an adjust-
ment to the loan yield, loan origination fees and
certain direct costs are deferred and accounted for as
an adjustment to the yield.

Unearned lease income from direct financing
and leveraged leases is recognized using the interest
method. This method provides a constant rate of re-
turn on the unrecovered investment over the life of
the lease.

H. Reserve for Credit Losses. The reserve for
credit losses represents management’'s estimate of
probable inherent losses which have occurred as of
the date of the financial statements. The loan and
lease portfolio and other credit exposures are regu-
larly reviewed to evaluate the adequacy of the re-
serve for credit losses. In determining the level of the
reserve, Northern Trust evaluates the reserve neces-
sary for specific nonperforming loans and also esti-
mates losses inherent in other credit exposures.

The result is a reserve with these components:

Specific Reserve. The amount of specific reserves
is determined through a loan-by-loan analysis of
nonperforming loans that considers expected future
cash flows, the value of collateral and other factors
that may impact the borrower’s ability to pay.

Allocated {nherent Reserve. The amount of the
allocated portion of the inherent loss reserve is based
on loss factors assigned to Northern Trust’s credit
exposures based on internal credit ratings. These loss
factors are primarily based on management’s judg-
ment of estimated credit losses inherent in the loan
portfolio as well as historical charge-off experience.

Unallocated Inherent Reserve. Management de-
termines the unallocated portion of the inherent loss
reserve based on factors that cannot be associated
with a specific credit or loan categories. These fac-
tors include management’s subjective evaluation of
local and national economic and business conditions,
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portfolio concentration and changes in the character
and size of the loan portfolio. The unallocated portion
of the inherent loss reserve reflects management’s at-
tempt to ensure that the overall reserve appropriately
reflects a margin for the imprecision necessarily in-
herent in estimates of expected credit losses.

Loans, leases and other extensions of credit
deemed uncollectible are charged to the reserve.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the re-
serve. Actual losses may vary from current estimates
and the amount of the provision may be either
greater than or less than actual net charge-offs. The
related provision for credit losses, which is charged
to income, is the amount necessary to adjust the re-
serve to the level determined through the above
process.

The control process maintained by Credit Policy
and the lending staff, and the quarterly analysis of
specific and inherent loss components are the princi-
pal methods relied upon by management to ensure
that changes in estimated credit loss levels are ad-
justed on a timely basis. In addition to Northern
Trust’s own experience, management also considers
the experience of peer institutions and regulatory
guidance.

I. Fees on Standby Letters of Credit and Partic-
ipations in Bankers Acceptances. Fees on standby let-
ters of credit are recognized in other operating
income on the straight-line method over the lives of
the underlying agreements. Commissions on bankers
acceptances are recognized in other operating in-
come when received.

J. Buildings and Equipment. Buildings and
equipment owned are carried at original cost less
accumulated depreciation. The charge for deprecia-
tion is computed on the straight-line method based
on the following range of lives: buildings—10 to 30
years; equipment—4 to 10 years; and leasehold im-
provements—Ilease term to 15 years. Leased prop-
erties meeting certain criteria are capitalized and
amortized using the straight-line method over the
lease period.

K. Other Real Estate Owned (OREQ). OREQO is
comprised of commercial and residential real estate
properties acquired in partial or total satisfaction of
problem loans. OREOQ assets are carried at the lower
of cost or fair value. Losses identified at the time of
acquisition of such properties are charged against the
reserve for credit losses. Subsequent write-downs
that may be required to the carrying value of these
assets and losses realized from asset sales are charged
to other operating expenses.
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L. Intangible Assets. Goodwill, arising from the
excess of purchase price over the fair value of net
assets of acquired businesses, was amortized using the
straight-line method primarily over fifteen years. Ef-
fective January 1, 2002, in accordance with SFAS
No. 142, goodwill will not be amortized and the car-
rying amount will be subjected to an annual impair-
ment test.

Other purchased intangible assets arising from
acquisitions are amortized using various methods
over the estimated lives of the assets. Purchased soft-
ware and salary and other allowable internal costs re-
lating to software developed for internal use are
capitalized. Software is being amortized using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the asset, ranging from 3 to 10 years.

M. Trust Assets and Fees. Assets held in fiduciary
or agency capacities are not included in the con-
solidated balance sheet, since such items are not as-
sets of Northern Trust. Fees from trust activities are
recorded on the accrual basis.

N. Trust Security Settlement Receivables. These
receivables represent other items in the process of
collection presented on behalf of trust clients.

O. Income Taxes. In accordance with SFAS No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” an asset and
liability approach to accounting for income taxes is
followed. The objective is to recognize the amount
of taxes payable or refundable for the current year,
and to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities
resulting from temporary differences between the
amounts reported in the financial statements and the
tax bases of assets and liabilities. The measurement of
tax assets and liabilities is based on enacted tax laws
and applicable tax rates.

P. Cash Flow Statements. Cash and cash equiv-
alents have been defined as “Cash and Due from
Banks.”

2. Reclassifications—Certain reclassifications have
been made to prior periods’ consolidated financial
statements to place them on a basis comparable with
the current period’s consolidated financial statements.

3. Securities—Securities Available for Sale. The fol-
lowing tables summarize the amortized cost, fair val-
ues and remaining maturities of securities available
for sale.
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Reconciliation of Amortized Cost to Fair Values of
Securities Available for Sale

December 31, 2001

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

(In Millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government $§ 158.2 $ .7 §— § 158.9
Obligations of

States and

Political

Subdivisions 30.7 .1 .8 36.0
Federal Agency 5,181.1 8.3 .5 5,188.9
Preferred Stock 82.9 —_ — 82.9
Other 188.0 — 1 187.9
Total $5,640.9 $9.1 $1.4 $5,648.6

December 31, 2000
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

{In Millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government § 174.0 8§ .6 $— § 1746
Obligations of

States and

Political

Subdivisions 16.8 1 1.2 15.7
Federal Agency 6,171.2 1.9 1.0 6,172.1
Preferred Stock 101.3 2 3 101.2
Other 14.2 — — 14.2
Total $6,477.5 $2.8 $2.5 $6,477.8

Remaining Maturity of Securities Available for Sale

December 31, 2001

Amortized Fair
(In Millions) Cost Value

$5,331.5 $5,340.1

Due in One Year or Less

Due After One Year Through Five Years 6.9 6.9
Due After Five Years Through Ten Years 23.5 17.0
Due After Ten Years 279.0 284.6
Total $5,640.9 $5,648.6

Mortgage-backed securities were included in the above table taking
into account anticipated future prepayments.
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Securities Held to Maturity. The following tables
summarize the book values, fair values and remaining
maturities of securities held to maturity.

Reconciliation of Book Values to Fair Values of
Securities Held to Maturity

December 31, 2001

Gross Gross
Book Unrealized Unrealized Fair
{in Millions) Value Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government § — $§ — $ — § —
Obligations of States
and Political
Subdivisions 528.9 14.0 —_ 542.9
Federal Agency 4.9 1 1 4.9
Other 129.8 —_ 4.5 125.3
Total $663.6 $14.1 $ 4.6 $673.1
December 31, 2000
Gross Gross
Book Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(In Millions) Value Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government § 55.0 $§ — $ — $ 55.0
Obligations of States
and Political
Subdivisions 435.7 9.4 — 445.1
Federal Agency 55 1 1 5.5
Other 282.2 A 5.8 276.5
Total $778.4 $ 9.6 $ 59 $782.1

Remaining Maturity of Securities Held to Maturity

December 31, 2001

Book Fair
(In Millions) Value Value
Due in One Year or Less $ 34.8 $ 35.2
Due After One Year Through Five Years 136.9 141.9
Due After Five Years Through Ten Years — 232.4 235.2
Due After Ten Years 259.5 260.8
Total $663.6 $673.1

Mortgage-backed securities were included in the above table taking
into account anticipated future prepayments.

Investment Security Gains and Losses. Realized gross
security gains and losses, which were included in the
consolidated statement of income, totaled $.1 million
and $.1 million, respectively, in 2001. Realized gross
security gains and losses totaled $.3 million and §.1
million, respectively, in 2000. Realized gross gains
totaled $.7 million in 1999.

4. Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell
and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Re-
purchase—Securities purchased under agreements to
resell and securities sold under agreements to re-
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purchase are recorded at the amounts at which the
securities were acquired or sold plus accrued interest.
To minimize any potential credit risk associated with
these transactions, the fair value of the securities pur-
chased or sold is continuously monitored, limits are
set on exposure with counterparties, and the financial
condition of counterparties is regularly assessed. It is
Northern Trust’s policy to take possession of secur-
ities purchased under agreements to resell.

The following tables summarize information
related to securities purchased under agreements to
resell and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase.

Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell

December 31

{($ In Millions) 2001 2000
Average Balance During the Year $ 5125 $ 2699
Average Interest Rate Earned

During the Year 3.26% 6.19%
Maximum Month-End Balance

During the Year 1,668.9 304.3

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

December 31

(% In Millions) 2001 2000
Average Balance During the Year $ 1,474.1 $ 1,476.4
Average Interest Rate Paid During

the Year 3.93% 6.22%
Maximum Month-End Balance

During the Year 2,194.2 3,353.9

5. Loans and Leases—Amounts outstanding in se-
lected loan categories are shown below.

December 31

(in Millions) 2001 2000
Domestic
Residential Real Estate $ 7,427.9 $ 6,822.8
Commercial 4,741.6 4,796.8
Broker 11.8 126.4
Commercial Real Estate 1,025.6 911.0
Personal 2,208.8 2,289.3
Other 768.6 1,207.1
Lease Financing 1,202.6 1,034.4
Total Domestic 17,386.9 17,187.8
International 593.0 956.8
Total Loans and Leases $17,979.9 $18,144.6

Other domestic and international loans include
$812.0 million at December 31, 2001, and $1.4 bil-
lion at December 31, 2000 of overnight trust-related
advances in connection with next day security
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settlements. Lease financing includes leveraged leases
of $715.5 million at December 31, 2001, and $603.5
million at December 31, 2000.

Residential real estate loans held for sale totaled
$14.2 million and $5.6 million at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Refer to Note 21 for detail related to interest
risk management instruments used to hedge loans.

Nonperforming Assets. Presented below are out-
standing amounts of nonaccrual loans, restructured
loans and OREO.

December 31

(In Millions) 2001 2000

Nonaccrual Loans

Domestic—Commercial Real Estate $ 4.3 $ 1.8

—Other 104.4 74.5
International — —
Total Nonaccrual Loans 108.7 76.3

Restructured Loans — —

Other Real Estate Owned .8 2.2
$109.5 $78.5

Total Nonperforming Assets

Included in nonperforming assets were loans
with a recorded investment at December 31, 2001
and December 31, 2000 of $98.0 million and $74.8
million, respectively, which were also classified as
impaired. At December 31, 2001 and December 31,
2000, impaired loans totaling $28.8 million and $3.0
million, respectively, had no portion of the reserve

for credit losses specifically allocated to them, while
$69.2 million at December 31, 2001 had a specific

allocated reserve of $21.1 million and $71.8 million

at December 31, 2000 had a specific allocated reserve

of $24.3 million. Total recorded investment in im-

paired loans averaged $107.1 million in 2001 and

$60.6 million in 2000. Total interest income recog-
nized on impaired loans was $66 thousand and $26
thousand in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

There were $29.7 million of unfunded loan
commitments and standby letters of credit issued to

borrowers whose loans were classified as nonaccrual

at December 31, 2001, while there were $11.5 mil-

lion at December 31, 2000.

Interest income that would have been recorded

on domestic nonaccrual loans in accordance with

their original terms amounted to $9.4 million in
2001, $6.5 million in 2000 and $3.2 million in 1999,
compared with amounts that were actually recorded
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of $66 thousand, $26 thousand and $.2 million,
respectively.

Write-downs and realized losses on OREQO of
$47 thousand in 2001, $31 thousand in 2000 and 8.3
million in 1999 were charged to other operating
expenses.

6. Reserve for Credit Losses—Changes in the reserve
for credit losses were as follows:

(in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Balance at Beginning of Year  $162.9 $150.9 $146.8
Charge-Offs

Domestic (69.0) (13.5) 9.8)

International — — —
Total Charge-Offs (69.0) (13.5) (9.8)
Recoveries 1.2 1.5 14
Net Charge-Offs (67.8) (12.0) (8.4
Provision for Credit Losses 66.5 24.0 12.5
Balance at End of Year $161.6 $162.9 $150.9

7. Buildings and Equipment—A summary of buildings
and equipment is presented below.

December 31, 2001

Net

Original Accumulated Bo:k

(In Millions) Cost Depreciation Value

Land and Improvements $ 38.1 $ 2 $ 37.9

Buildings 159.9 48.6 111.3

Equipment 373.7 166.7 207.0

Leasehold Improvements 113.5 40.3 73.2
Buildings Leased under

Capital Leases (Note &) 81.1 21.8 59.3

Total Buildings and
Equipment $766.3 $277.6 $488.7
December 31, 2000

Net

Original Accumulated Book

(In Millions} Cost Depreciation Value

Land $ 379 $ — $ 37.9

Buildings 155.8 437 112.1

Equipment 336.0 149.7 186.3

Leasehold Improvements 88.5 33.7 54.8
Buildings Leased under

Capital Leases (Note 8} 76.6 19.6 57.0

Total Buildings and
Equipment $694.8 $246.7 $448.1

The charge for depreciation, which includes
amortization of assets recorded under capital leases,
amounted to $78.6 million in 2001, $67.8 million in
2000 and $58.2 million in 1999.
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8. lease Commitments—At December 31, 2001,
Northern Trust was obligated under a number of
non-cancelable operating leases for premises and
equipment. Certain leases contain rent escalation
clauses, based on market indices or increases in real
estate taxes and other operating expenses and
renewal option clauses calling for increased rentals.
There are no restrictions imposed by any lease
agreement regarding the payment of dividends, debt
financing or Northern Trust entering into further
lease agreements. Minimum annual lease commit-
ments as of December 31, 2001 for all non-
cancelable operating leases are as follows:

Future Minimum

{In Millions) Lease Payments
2002 § 438
2003 42.4
2004 39.6
2005 38.8
2006 37.5
Later Years 3493

Total Minimum Lease Payments $551.4

Net rental expense for all operating leases is in-
cluded in occupancy expense and amounted to $43.4
million in 2001, $36.9 million in 2000 and $31.5 mil-
lion in 1999.

The building and land utilized at the Chicago
operations center has been leased under an agree-
ment that qualifies as a capital lease. The long-term
financing for the property was provided by the Cor-
poration and the Bank. In the event of sale or re-
financing, the Bank will receive all proceeds except
for 58% of any proceeds in excess of the original
project costs which will be paid to the lessor.

The following table reflects the future minimum
lease payments required under capital leases, net of
any payments received on the long-term financing,
and the present value of net capital lease obligations
at December 31, 2001.

Future Minimum

(In Millions) Lease Payments, Net
2002 $ 24
2003 2.4
2004 2.4
2005 2.4
2006 24
Later Years 13.9
Total Minimum Lease Payments, net 259
Less: Amount Representing Interest 9.1

Net Present Value under Capital Lease
Obligations $16.8

9. Senior Notes, Long-Term Debt and Lines of
Credit—Senior Notes. A summary of Bank senior
notes outstanding at December 31 is presented
below.

($ In Millions) Rate 2001 2000
Bank-Senior Notes (a) (b)
Fixed Rate Due 2001 630% § — $ 50.0
Fixed Rate Due 2003 6.625 200.0 200.0
Fixed Rate Due 2004 6.65 150.0 150.0
Fixed Rate Due 2005 7.50 100.0 100.0

Total Bank Senior Notes $450.0 $500.0

Long-Term Debt. A summary of long-term debt out-
standing at December 31 is presented below.

(% In Millions) 2001 2000
Corporation-Subordinated Debt

9.20% Notes due May 2001 (a) $ — $ 25.0
Bank-Subordinated Debt

6.50% Notes due May 2003 (a) 100.0 100.0

6.70% Notes due Sept. 2005 (a) (b) 100.0 100.0

7.30% Notes due Sept. 2006 (a) (b) 100.0 100.0

6.25% Notes due June 2008 (a) (b) 100.0 100.0

7.10% Notes due Aug. 2009 (a) (b) 200.0 200.0

6.30% Notes due March 2011 (a) (b) 150.0 —

Subordinated Long-Term Debt 750.0 625.0

Capital Lease Obligations (c) 16.8 13.1
Total Long-Term Debt $766.8 $638.1
Long-Term Debt Qualifying as Risk-

Based Capital $610.0 £520.0

{a) Not redeemable prior to maturity.

(b) Under the terms of its current Offering Circular, the Bank has
the ability to offer from time to time its senior bank notes in an
aggregate principal amount of up to §3.7 billion at any one time
outstanding and up to an additional $150 million of subordinated
notes. Each senior note will mature from 30 days to fifteen years
and each subordinated note will mature from five years to fifteen
years, following its date of original issuance. Each note will mature
on such date as selected by the initial purchaser and agreed to by
the Bank.

{c) Refer to Note §.

Lines of Credit. The Corporation currently maintains
a commercial paper back-up line of credit with two
banks totaling $50 million. The termination date is
November 2005. The commitment fee is determined
by a pricing matrix that is based on the long-term
senior debt ratings of the Corporation. Currently,
the annual fee is 8 basis points of the commitment.
There were no borrowings under commercial paper

back-up facilities during 2001 or 2000.
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10. Debt—Floating Rate Capital Securities. The fol-
lowing table summarizes the book value of Floating
Rate Capital Securities outstanding.

December 31

(In Miltions) 2001 2000

$150 Million Series A due January 15, 2027  $148.7 $148.7
$120 Million Series B due April 15, 2027 119.0 118.9

$267.7 $267.6

Total Debt-Floating Rate Capital Securities

In January 1997, the Corporation issued $150
million of Floating Rate Capital Securities, Series A,
through a statutory business trust wholly-owned by
the Corporation (“NTC Capital I”). In April 1997,
the Corporation also issued, through a separate
wholly-owned statutory business trust (“INTC Capi-
tal II”), $120 million of Floating Rate Capital Secur-
ities, Series B. The sole assets of the trusts are
Subordinated Debentures of Northern Trust Corpo-
ration which have the same interest rates and ma-
turity dates as the corresponding distribution rates
and redemption dates of the Floating Rate Capital
Securities. The outstanding principal amounts of the
Subordinated Debentures held by NTC Capital I and
NTC Capital IT are $154.6 million and $123.7 mil-
lion, respectively. The Series A Securities were is-
sued at a discount to yield 60.5 basis points above
the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR), while the Series B Securities were issued
at a discount to yield 67.9 basis points above the
three-month LIBOR. Both Series A and B Securities
qualify as tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes.

The Corporation has fully, irrevocably and un-
conditionally guaranteed all payments due on such
Capital Securities. The holders of the Capital Securi-
ties are entitled to receive preferential cumulative
cash distributions quarterly in arrears (based on the
liquidation amount of $1,000 per Capital Security) at
an interest rate equal to the rate on the correspond-
ing Subordinated Debentures. The interest rate on
the Series A and Series B securities is equal to three-
month LIBOR plus 0.52% and 0.59%, respectively.
Subject to certain exceptions, the Corporation has
the right to defer payment of interest on the Sub-
ordinated Debentures at any time or from time to
time for a period not exceeding 20 consecutive quar-
terly periods provided that no extension period may
extend beyond the stated maturity date. If interest is
deferred on the Subordinated Debentures, dis-
tributions on the Capital Securities will also be de-
ferred and the Corporation will not be permitted,
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subject to certain exceptions, to pay or declare
any cash distributions with respect to the Corpo-
ration’s capital stock or debt securities that rank
the same as or junior to the Subordinated Deben-
tures, until all past due distributions are paid. The
Subordinated Debentures are unsecured and sub-
ordinated to substantially all of the Corporation’s ex-
isting indebtedness.

The Corporation has the right to redeem the
Series A Subordinated Debentures on or after Jan-
vary 15, 2007 and the Series B Subordinated De-
bentures on or after April 15, 2007, in each case in
whole or in part. In addition, the Corporation has
the right to redeem the Subordinated Debentures
held by either trust in whole but not in part at any
time within 90 days following certain defined tax or
regulatory capital treatment changes, at a price equal
to the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest.

11. Stockholders’ Equity—Preferred Stock. The Cor-
poration 1s authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of
preferred stock without par value. The Board of Di-
rectors of the Corporation is authorized to fix the
particular preferences, rights, qualifications and re-
strictions for each series of preferred stock issued. A
summary of preferred stock outstanding is presented
below.

December 31

{In Millions) 2001 2000

Auction Rate Preferred Stock Series C
600 shares @ $100,000 per share
Flexible Auction Rate Cumulative
Preferred Stock Series D
600 shares @ $100,000 per share 60.0 60.0

Total Preferred Stock $120.0 $120.0

$ 60.0 $ 60.0

Series C—In 1987, 600 shares of Auction Rate Pre-
ferred Stock Series C (APS) were issued, with a
$100,000 per share stated value. Dividends on the
shares of APS are cumulative. Rates are determined
every 49 days by Dutch auction unless the Corpo-
ration fails to pay a dividend or redeem any shares
for which it has given notice of redemption, in
which case the dividend rate will be set at 175% of
the 60-day “AA” Composite Commercial Paper
Rate. The dividend rate in any auction will not ex-
ceed a percentage determined by the prevailing
credit rating of the APS. The current maximum
dividend rate is 120% of the 60-day “AA” Compos-
ite Commercial Paper Rate. No dividends other than
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dividends payable in junior stock, such as common
stock, may be paid on common stock until full
cumulative dividends on the APS have been paid.
The average rate for this issue as declared during
2001 was 3.33%. The shares of APS are redeemable
at the option of the Corporation, in whole or in
part, on any Dividend Payment Date at $100,000 per
share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends.

Series D—In 1990, 600 shares of Flexible Auction
Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock Series D (FAPS)
were issued with a $100,000 per share stated value.
Each dividend period contains 49 days (the “Short-
Term Dividend Period”) or a number of days greater
than 49 days (as selected by the Term Selection
Agent) which is divisible by seven (the “Long-Term
Dividend Period”). Rates for each dividend period
are determined by Dutch auction unless the Corpo-
ration fails to pay the full amount of any dividend or
redemption. The dividend rate in any auction will
not exceed a percentage (currently 125%), deter-
mined by the prevailing credit rating of the FAPS,
of the 60-day “AA” Composite Commercial Paper
Rate or the Reference Rate, which rate is the Com-
posite Commercial Paper Rate or the Treasury Rate,
as appropriate for the length of each Short-Term or
Long-Term Dividend Period, respectively. If the
Corporation fails to pay the full amount of any divi-
dend or redemption, each dividend period thereafter
(until auctions are resumed) will be a Short-Term
Dividend Period and the dividend rate will be 250%
of the 60-day “AA” Composite Commercial Paper
Rate; additional dividends will accrue for the bal-
ance of any Long-Term Dividend Period in which
such a failure to pay occurs. No dividends other than
dividends payable in junior stock, such as common
stock, may be paid on common stock until full
cumulative dividends on the FAPS have been paid.
The average rate for this issue as declared during
2001 was 3.47%. The shares of FAPS are redeemable
at the option of the Corporation, in whole or in
part, at $100,000 per share plus accrued and unpaid
dividends.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Preferred Stock Purchase Rights—On July 21, 1998
the Board of Directors of the Corporation declared a
dividend distribution of one Preferred Stock Pur-
chase Right for each outstanding share of the Corpo-
ration’s common stock issuable to stockholders of
record at the close of business on October 31, 1999.
As a result of anti-dilution provisions, each share of
common stock now has one-half of one Right asso-
ciated with it. Each Right is exercisable for one one-
hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $330.00, sub-
ject to adjustment. The Rights will be evidenced by
the common stock certificates and will not be ex-
ercisable or transferable apart from the common
stock until twenty days after a person or group ac-
quires 15 percent or more of the shares of common
stock then outstanding or announces a tender or
exchange offer which if consummated would result
in ownership of 15 percent or more of the out-
standing common stock.

In the event that any person or group acquires
15 percent or more of the outstanding shares of
common stock, each Right entitles the holder, other
than such person or group, to purchase that number
of shares of common stock of the Corporation hav-
ing a market value of twice the exercise price of the
Right. At any time thereafter if the Corporation con-
summates a business combination transaction or sells
substantially all of its assets, each Right entitles the
holder, other than the person or group acquiring 15
percent or more of the outstanding shares of com-
mon stock, to purchase that number of shares of sur-
viving company stock which at the time of the
transaction would have a market value of twice the
exercise price of the Right.

The Rights do not have voting rights and are re-
deemable at the option of the Corporation at a price
of one-half of one cent per Right at any time prior
to the close of business on the twentieth day follow-
ing announcement by the Corporation of the acqui-
sition of 15 percent or more of the outstanding com-
mon stock by a person or group. Unless earlier re-
deemed, the Rights will expire on October 31, 2009.
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Common Stock. An analysis of changes in the number
of shares of common stock outstanding follows:

2001

2000 1999

STATEMENTS

Under the current buyback program, the Corporation
may purchase up to 4.6 million additional shares after

December 31, 2001. The repurchased shares would

Balance at January 1
Distribution of
Two-for-One
Stock Split —
Employee Benefit
Plans:
Incentive Plan and
Awards
Stock Options
Exercised
Treasury Stock
Purchased

598,940

1,363,160

222,232,395 222,161,934 111,214,740

490,397
2,364,071

(2,547,235) (2,784,007)

— 111,214,740

347,518
2,518,802

(3,133,866)

Balance at
December 31

221,647,260 222,232,395 222,161,934

Note: 1999 share activity reflects the December 1999 two-for-one
stock split effected by means of a 100% stock distribution.

12. Accumulated Other Comprehensive [ncome.

ended, presented on an after-tax basis.

The following table

be used primarily for management incentive plans and
other corporate purposes.

summarizes the components of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and changes during the years then

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Unrealized Gains

Accumulated

(Losses} on Minimum Gains (Losses) Foreign Currency Other
Securities Available Pension on Cash Flow Translation Comprehensive
(In Millions) for Sale Liability = Hedge Designations Adjustments income
Beginning Balance $ (9 $(12.3) $ — $— $(13.2)
Cumulative-effect of
adopting SFAS
No. 133 — — (.2) — (.2)
Current-Period Change .8 8.7 1.7 (.2) 11.0
Ending Balance $ (1) $ (3.6) $1.5 $(.2) $ 2.4
For the Year Ended December 31, 2000
Unrealized Gains Accumulated
{Losses) on Minimum Gains (Losses) Foreign Currency Other
Securities Available Pension on Cash Flow Translation Comprehensive
(In Millions) for Sale Liability =~ Hedge Designations Adjustments Income
Beginning Balance $(2.4) $(10.7) §— $— $(13.1)
Current-Period Change 1.5 (1.6) — — (D
Ending Balance $ (9 $(12.3) $ — $— $(13.2)

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION
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13. Income Taxes—The table below reconciles the
total provision for income taxes recorded in the con-
solidated statement of income with the amounts
computed at the statutory federal tax rate of 35%.

(In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Tax at Statutory Rate $256.2 $255.5 $215.8
Tax Exempt Income (9.5) (9.4) (10.5)
State Taxes, net 9.5 6.1 7.5
Other (11.8) (7.2) (1.3)

Provision for Income Taxes $244.4 $245.0 $211.5

The components of the consolidated provision
for income taxes for each of the three years ended
December 31, are as follows:

{In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Current Tax Provision:
Federal § 81.1 $118.9 $ 929
State 7.3 10.3 8.4
Foreign 26.5 27.4 149
Total 114.9 156.6 116.2
Deferred Tax Provision:
Federal 122.1 89.3 92.2
State 7.4 (9 31
Total 129.5 88.4 95.3

Provision for Income Taxes $244.4 $245.0 $211.5

In addition to the amounts shown in the above
tables, tax liabilities or (benefits) have been recorded
directly to stockholders’ equity for the following
items:

(In Millions) 2001 2000

Current Tax Benefit for Employee Stock
Options and Other Employee Benefit

Plans . $(26.6) $(45.9)
Deferred Tax Effect of Unrealized Security

Gains 1.6 1.2
Deferred Tax Effect of Minimum Pension

Liabilities 5.3 1.0

FINANCILAL STATEMENTS

Deferred taxes result from temporary differences
between the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and the tax bases of assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities and assets have been
computed as follows:

December 31

(in Millions) 2001 2000
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Lease Financing $470.6 $347.5
Software Development 84.8 67.7
Accumulated Depreciation 29.3 19.8
State Taxes, net 20.0 14.8
Other Liabilities 8.6 10.8
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 613.3 460.6
Deferred Tax Assets:
Reserve for Credit Losses 56.6 57.0
Compensation and Benefits 35.9 31.9
Other Assets 21.0 21.6
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 113.5 110.5

Valuation Reserve —_ —

Deferred Tax Assets, net of Valuation
Reserve 113.5 110.5

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities $499.8 $350.1

At December 31, 2001, Northern Trust had a federal
net operating loss carryforward of $2.1 million result-
ing from the acquisition of businesses that had exist-
ing net operating loss carryforwards. These
carryforwards are available to reduce future tax re-
turn liabilities. In addition, Northern Trust had state
net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards of
$501.5 million and $.9 million, respectively. The car-
ryforwards are subject to various limitations imposed
by tax law.
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14. Net Income Per Common Share Computations—The computation of net income per common share is pre-

sented below.

($ In Millions Except Per Share Information) 2001 2000 1999
Basic Net income Per Common Share
Net Income $487.5 $485.1 $405.0
Less: Dividends on Preferred Stock (4.1) (5.7) 4.8)
Net Income Applicable to Common Stock $483.4 $479.4 $400.2
Average Number of Common Shares Qutstanding 221,425,584 220,961,477 221,673,316
Basic Net Income Per Common Share $ 2.18 $ 2.17 $ 1.81
Diluted Net Income Per Common Share
Net Income Applicable to Common Stock $483.4 $479.4 $400.2
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding 221,425,584 220,961,477 221,673,316
Plus: Dilutive Potential Common Shares
Stock Options 5,310,288 7,181,145 6,021,348
Performance Shares 1,526,474 1,677,531 1,457,993
Other 708,992 793,158 721,371
Average Common and Potential Common Shares 228,971,338 230,613,311 229,874,028
Diluted Net Income Per Common Share $ 2.1 $ 2.08 $ 1.74

15. Restrictions on Subsidiary Dividends and Loans or
Advances—Provisions of state and federal banking
laws restrict the amount of dividends that can be paid
to the Corporation by its banking subsidiaries. Under
applicable state and federal laws, no dividends may
be paid in an amount greater than the net profits
then on hand, subject to other applicable provisions
of law. In addition, prior approval from the relevant
federal banking regulator is required if dividends de-
clared by any of the Corporation’s banking sub-
sidiaries in any calendar year will exceed its net
profits (as defined) for that year, combined with its
retained net profits for the preceding two years.
Based on these regulations, the Corporation’s bank-
ing subsidiaries, without regulatory approval, could
declare dividends during 2002 equal to their 2002
eligible net profits (as defined) plus $386.1 million.
The ability of each banking subsidiary to pay divi-
dends to the Corporation may be further restricted as
a result of regulatory policies and guidelines relating
to dividend payments and capital adequacy.

State and federal laws limit the transfer of funds
by a banking subsidiary to the Corporation and cer-
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tain of its affiliates in the form of loans or extensions
of credit, investments or purchases of assets. Transfers
of this kind to the Corporation or a nonbanking sub-
sidiary by a banking subsidiary are each limited to
10% of the banking subsidiary’s capital and surplus
with respect to each affiliate and to 20% in the ag-
gregate, and are also subject to certain collateral re-
quirements. These transactions, as well as other
transactions between a banking subsidiary and the
Corporation or its affiliates, must also be on terms
substantially the same as, or at least as favorable as,
those prevailing at the time for comparable trans-
actions with non-affiliated companies or, in the ab-
sence of comparable transactions, on terms, or under
circumstances, including credit standards, that would
be offered to, or would apply to, non-affiliated com-
panies.

16. Other Operating Income—Nonrecurring gains in
2001 totaled $9.2 million resulting from the sale of
an 80% interest in Northern Trust’s lockbox oper-
ations. In 2000 and 1999, nonrecurring gains totaled
$4.5 million and $4.0 million, respectively.
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17. Net Interest Income—The components of net interest income were as follows:

(in Millions} 2001 2000 1999
Interest Income
Loans and Leases $1,077.7 $1,154.6 $ 938.6
Securities—Taxable 352.7 580.6 379.4
~Non-Taxable 26.2 26.1 26.3
Time Deposits with Banks 194.3 206.0 164.3
Federal Funds Sold and Securities Purchased under Agreements
to Resell and Other 30.6 43.8 60.0
Total Interest Income 1,681.5 2,0111 1,568.6
Interest Expense
Deposits 645.9 830.3 591.9
Federal Funds Purchased 109.8 167.8 161.0
Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase 58.0 91.8 95.8
Commercial Paper 5.6 8.8 7.3
Other Borrowings 168.6 245.2 109.2
Senior Notes 33.4 34.4 30.6
Long-Term Debt 51.4 44.8 37.9
Debt-Floating Rate Capital Securities 13.5 19.4 16.1
Total Interest Expense 1,086.2 1,442.5 1,049.8
Net Interest Income $ 595.3 $ 568.6 $ 518.8

18. Other Operating Expenses—The components of
other operating expenses were as follows:

(In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Business Promotion $ 41.6 $ 47.0 $ 41.2
Outside Services Purchased 145.3 136.4 118.8
Telecommunications 18.3 17.9 17.8
Postage and Supplies 29.2 28.8 26.8
Software Amortization 69.9 61.3 48.1
Goodwill Amortization 9.9 9.4 8.6
Other Intangibles

Amortization 6.6 6.2 5.6
Other Expense 62.0 85.7 39.1
Total Other Operating

Expenses $383.0 $392.7 $306.0

Software, goodwill and other intangible assets are
included in other assets in the consolidated balance
sheet. Software totaled $329.8 million at December
31, 2001 and $267.5 million at December 31, 2000.
Goodwill totaled $90.1 million at December 31,
2001 and $98.0 million at December 31, 2000. Other
intangibles totaled $35.2 million at December 31,
2001 and $41.8 million at December 31, 2000.

19. Employee Benefits—Pension. A noncontributory
qualified pension plan covers substantially all em-
ployees. Assets held by the plan consist primarily of
listed stocks and corporate bonds.

Effective January 1, 2002, the pension formula
was changed from a traditional final average pay for-

mula to what 1s generally known as a pension equity
formula. All employees hired on or after June 1,
2001 are required to have their pension computed
under the pension equity formula. All employees
hired before June 1, 2001 (and continually active
throughout 2001) were entitled to a one-time pen-
sion election to either remain with the traditional
pension plan formula or change to the new pension
equity formula for accruals after December 31, 2001.
Although these changes are expected to reduce the
long-term cost of the plan, for the next several years
it is estimated that the plan change will increase the
annual service cost by approximately 3.5%.

Northern Trust also maintains a noncontributory
nonqualified pension plan for participants whose re-
tirement benefit payments under the qualified plan
are expected to exceed the limits imposed by federal
tax law. Northern Trust has a nonqualified trust, re-
ferred to as a “Rabbi” Trust, to fund benefits in ex-
cess of those permitted in certain of its qualified
plans. The primary purpose of the trust is to fund
nonqualified retirement benefits. This arrangement
offers participants a degree of assurance for payment
of benefits in excess of those permitted in the related
qualified plans. The assets remain subject to
the claims of creditors and are not the property of
the employees. Therefore, they are accounted for as
corporate assets and are included in other assets in
the consolidated balance sheet.
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The following tables set forth the status and the
net periodic pension cost of the domestic qualified
and nonqualified pension benefit plans for 2001 and
2000. Prior service costs are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over the average future working
lifetime of the eligible participants at the time of the
plan change. As of January 1, 2001, the average fu-

FINANCIAL
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Net Periodic Pension Cost |

Qualified Nonqualified
Plan Plan

(In Millions)

2001 2000 2001 2000

Service Cost
Interest Cost

Expected Return on Plan

$ 13.1 §128 8 2.0 § 1.7
17.8 15.9 3.0 25

. [ .. L . Assets 27.9 24.0) N/A N/A
ture working lifetime of the eligible participants is a0 rization: @79 240
11.2 years. Net Loss — — 3.1 25

Prior Service Cost
Plan Status (Benefit) {.2) (2) .3 (.3)
Qualified Nongualified Net Periodic Pension Cost $ 2.8 § 45 § 7.8 $ 64
Plan Plan
September 30 Change in Benefit Obligation
{$ In Millions) 2001 2000 2001 2000 Qualified Nonqualified
Plan Plan

Accumulated Benefit —

Obligation $202.8 $183.6 $26.4 $38.0 UnMilions) 2001 2000 2001 2000
Projected Benefit 242.9 216.7 46.0 48.8 Begipning Balance $216.7 $200.4 $ 48.8 § 40.7
Plan Assets at Fair Value 298.0 3720  —  — Service Cost 131 128 2.0 17

Interest Cost 17.8 15.9 3.0 25
Plan Assets In Excess of Actuarial (Gain) Loss 24.5 82 (2.5 90

(Less Than) Projected Benefits Paid (33.0) (206) (5.3) (5.1)

Benefit Obligations 55.2 1553 (46.0) (48.8) plin Change 3.8 - — _
Unrecognized Net Liability 2 ) — — :

Unrecognized Net Loss Ending Balance $242.9 $216.7 $ 46.0 § 488

(Gain) 19.4  (88.4) 30.3 355
Unrecognized Prior Service Change in Qualified Plan Assets

Cost (Benefit) 25 (15 (3.0 (33 (n Millions) 2001 2000
Valuation Adjustment (1) (1 — — - —

: - Fair Value of Assets at Beginning of Plan Year $372.0 $305.3
Prepaid (Accrued) Pension i Actual Return on Assets (55.8) 79.0

Cost at September 30 77.2 65.6 (18.7) (16.6) Employer Contribution 14.9 813
Net Funding October to Benefits Paid (33.0)  (20.6)

December (.7) 138 (1.9) .8
Additional Minimum Fair Value of Assets at End of Plan Year $298.1 $372.0

Liability at December 31 — — (5.7 (19.8)

Prepaid (Accrued) Pension

Cost at December 31 $ 76.5 § 79.4 8§(26.3) 8§(35.6)

Assumptions:
Discount Rates
Rate of Increase in

Compensation Level 5.00 5.40 5.00 5.40
Expected Long-Term

Rate of Return on

Assets 9.00 9.00

7.50% 8.00% 6.00% 6.00%

N/A N/A
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Pension expense for 1999 was $6.9 million and
$5.4 million for the qualified and nonqualified plans,

respectively.

Total assets in the “Rabbi” Trust related to the
nonqualified pension plan at December 31, 2001 and
2000 amounted to $31.1 million and $23.3 million,

respectively.

A defined benefit and a defined contribution
plan is maintained for the London Branch employ-
ees. At December 31, 2001, the fair value of assets
and the projected benefit obligation of the defined
benefit plan totaled $16.4 million and $17.3 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2000, the fair value of
assets and the projected benefit obligation were $16.9
million and $16.5 million, respectively. Pension ex-
pense for 2001 and 2000 was $3.4 million and $2.2

million, respectively.
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Thrift Incentive Plan. The Corporation and its sub-
sidiaries have a defined contribution Thrift Incentive
Plan covering substantially all employees. One half of
the Corporation’s matching contribution is con-
tingent upon meeting a predefined earnings target for
the year. In 1999, 2000 and 2001, the maximum
corporate contribution equaled 4% of an employee’s
salary. The maximum corporate contribution will
increase to 5% in 2002. The estimated contribution
to this plan is charged to employee benefits and to-
taled $14.6 million in 2001, $13.2 million in 2000
and $10.7 million in 1999.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP). A leveraged
ESOP in which substantially all employees of North-
ern Trust are eligible to participate was established in
1989. All of the original 18 million shares in the
ESOP Trust have been allocated and all ESOP re-
lated debt has been repaid as of December 31, 2001.
Beginning in 2002, the corporate contribution to the
ESOP will equal 2% of an employee’s salary. This
amount can be increased by up to an additional 3% if
corporate performance exceeds a pre-determined
earnings goal.

The following table presents information related
to the ESOP.

(In Millions) 2001 2000
Total ESOP Compensation Expense $6.1 $5.9
Dividends and Interest on Unallocated ESOP

Shares Used for Debt Service .7 1.2

Other Postiretirement Benefits. Northern Trust
maintains an unfunded postretirement health care
plan. Employees retiring under the provisions of The
Northern Trust Pension Plan who have attained 15
years of service are eligible for postretirement health
care coverage. These benefits are provided either
through an indemnity plan, subject to deductibles,
co-payment provisions and other limitations, or
through health maintenance organizations. The
provisions may be changed at the discretion of
Northern Trust, which also reserves the right to ter-
minate these benefits at any time.

The following tables set forth the plan status at
December 31 and the net periodic postretirement
benefit cost of the domestic postretirement health
care plan for 2001 and 2000. The transition obliga-
tion at January 1, 1993 is being amortized to expense
over a twenty-year period.
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Plan Status

(In Millions) 2001 2000

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit
Obligation (APBO) Measured at
September 30:

Retirees and Dependents $17.3 $15.5
Actives Eligible for Benefits 4.0 3.6
Actives Not Yet Eligible 13.3 10.9
Total APBO 34.6 30.0
Unamortized Transition Obligation (6.4} (7.0
Unrecognized Net Gain (Loss) 3.7) 3
Prior Service Cost (.3) (3
Net Postretirement Benefit Liability $24.2 $23.0

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost

(In Millions} 2001 2000
Service Cost $ 1.0 $ 9
Interest Cost - 2.4 2.3
Amortization—T ransition Obligation .6 6

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost $ 4.0 $ 3.8

Change in Postretirement Benefit Obligation

(In Millions) 2001 2000
Beginning Balance $30.0 $29.4
Service Cost 1.0 9
Interest Cost 2.4 23
Actuarial (Gain) Loss 4.0 (.6)
Benefits Paid (2.8) (2.0)
Ending Balance $34.6 $30.0

Postretirement health care expense for 1999 was
$3.7 million.

The weighted average discount rate used in de-
termining the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation was 7.5% at December 31, 2001 and 8.0%
at December 31, 2000. For measurement purposes, a
6.2% annual increase in the cost of covered health
care benefits was assumed for 2002. This rate is as-
sumed to decrease to 5.5% in 2003 and remain at
that level thereafter. The health care cost trend rate
assumption has an effect on the amounts reported.
For example, increasing or decreasing the assumed
health care trend rate by one percentage point in
each year would have the following effect.

1—Percentage 1—Percentage

Point Point
{In Millions) Increase Decrease
Effect on Total Service and
[nterest Cost Components $ .1 8D
Effect on Postretirement Benefit
Obligation 1.2 1.0
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2C. Contingent Liabilities—Because of the nature of
its activities, Northern Trust is subject to pending
and threatened legal actions that arise in the normal
course of business. In the judgment of management,
after consultation with legal counsel, none of the
litigation to which the Corporation or any of its sub-
sidiaries is a party, including the litigation described
below, will have a material effect, either individually
or in the aggregate, on the consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

Two subsidiaries of the Corporation have been
named as defendants in several Enron-related class
action suits filed in the Federal District Courts for
the Southern District of Texas (Houston), the East-
ern District of Texas (Texarkana), and the Southern
District of Florida (Miami). Individual participants in
the employee pension benefit plans sponsored by
Enron Corp. sued various corporate entities and
individuals, including The Northern Trust Com-
pany, in its capacity as the former trustee of the En-
ron Savings Plan, and Northern Trust Retirement
Consulting, L.L.C., in its capacity as the former re-
cord keeper of the plans. The actions make claims,
inter alia, for breach of fiduciary duty to the plan par-
ticipants, and seek equitable relief and monetary
damages in an unspecified amount against the
defendants. The Corporation and the individual de-
fendant companies intend to defend these actions
vigorously. Based upon the information developed to
date and recognizing that the outcome of complex
litigation is uncertain, management believes that the
litigation will be resolved without material impact on
the Corporation’s consolidated financial position or
results of operations.

21. Off-Balance Sheet and Derivative Financial
Instruments—Commitments and Letters of Credit.
Northern Trust, in the normal course of business,
enters into various types of commitments and issues
letters of credit to meet the liquidity and credit en-
hancement needs of its clients. Credit risk 1s the
principal risk associated with these instruments. The
contractual amounts of these instruments represent
the credit risk should the instrument be fully drawn
upon and the client defaults. To control the
credit risk associated with entering into commit-
ments and issuing letters of credit, Northern Trust
subjects such activities to the same credit quality and
monitoring controls as its lending activities.
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Commitments and letters of credit consist of the
following:

Legally Binding Commitments to Extend Credit
generally have fixed expiration dates or other termi-
nation clauses. Since a significant portion of the
commitments are expected to expire without being
drawn upon, the total commitment amount does
not necessarily represent future loans or liquidity
requirements.

Participations in Bankers Acceptances obligate
Northern Trust, in the event of default by the
counterparty, to reimburse the holder of the accept-
ance an amount equal to its participation in the
acceptance.

Commercial Letters of Credit are instruments is-
sued by Northern Trust on behalf of its clients that
authorize a third party (the beneficiary) to draw
drafts up to a stipulated amount under the specified
terms and conditions of the agreement. Commercial
letters of credit are issued primarily to facilitate inter-
national trade.

Standby Letters of Credit obligate Northern
Trust to meet certain financial obligations of its
clients, if, under the contractual terms of the agree-
ment, the clients are unable to do so. These instru-
ments are primarily issued to support public and
private financial commitments, including commercial
paper, bond financing, initial margin requirements
on futures exchanges and similar transactions.

The following table shows the contractual
amounts of commitments and letters of credit.

Commitments and Letters of Credit

December 31

{In Millions) 2001 2000

Legally Binding Commitments to

Extend Credit* $16,358.5 $15,513.0

Commercial Letters of Credit 71.8 103.3
Standby Letters of Credit:
Corporate 594.0 563.2
Industrial Revenue 1,295.7 1,034.8
Other 584.0 4245

Total Standby Letters of Credit*™* $ 2,473.7 § 2,0225
*These amounts exclude $331.1 million and $§433.0 million of
commitments participated to others at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

**These amounts include $215.5 million and §195.9 million of
standby letters of credit secured by cash deposits or participated to
others as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
weighted average maturity of standby letters of credit was 18 months
at December 31, 2001 and 20 months at December 31, 2000.
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Derivative Financial Instruments. These instruments
include foreign exchange contracts, foreign currency
and interest rate futures contracts, and various inter-
est risk management instruments.

Northern Trust is a party to various derivative
financial instruments that are used in the normal
course of business to meet the risk management
needs of its clients; as part of its trading activity for
its own account; and as part of its asset/liability man-
agement activities. The major risk associated with
these instruments is that interest or foreign exchange
rates could change in an unanticipated manner,
resulting in higher interest costs or a loss in the un-
derlying value of the instrument. These risks are
mitigated by establishing limits for risk management
positions, monitoring the level of actual positions
taken against such established limits, monitoring the
level of any interest rate sensitivity gaps created by
such positions, and by using hedging techniques.
When establishing position limits, market liquidity
and volatility, as well as experience in each market,
are all taken into account.

The estimated credit risk associated with these
instruments relates to the failure of the counterparty
to pay based on the contractual terms of the agree-
ment, and is generally limited to the gross unrealized
market value gains on these instruments. The
amount of credit risk will increase or decrease during
the lives of the instruments as interest or foreign
exchange rates fluctuate. This risk is controlled by
limiting such activity to an approved list of counter-
parties and by subjecting such activity to the same
credit and quality controls as are followed in lending
and 1nvestment activities.

Risk management instruments include:

Foreign Exchange Contracts are agreements
to exchange specific amounts of currencies at a fu-
ture date, at a specified rate of exchange. Foreign
exchange contracts are entered into primarily to
meet the foreign exchange risk management needs of
clients. Foreign exchange contracts are also used for
trading purposes and asset/liability management.

Foreign Currency and Interest Rate Futures
Contracts are agreements for delayed delivery of for-
eign currency, securities or money market instru-
ments in which the buyer agrees to take delivery at a
specified future date of a specified currency, security,
or instrument, at a specified price or yield. All of
Northern Trust’s futures contracts are traded on or-
ganized exchanges that require the daily settlement
of changes in the value of the contracts. Futures con-
tracts are utilized in trading activities and asset/
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liability management to limit Northern Trust’s ex-
posure to unfavorable fluctuations in foreign ex-
change rates or interest rates.

Interest Rate Protection Contracts are agree-
ments that enable clients to transfer, modify or re-
duce their interest rate risk. As a seller of interest rate
protection, Northern Trust receives a fee at the out-
set of the agreement and then assumes the risk of an
unfavorable change in interest rates. Northern Trust
also purchases interest rate protection contracts for
asset/liability management.

interest Rate Swap Contracts involve the ex-
change of fixed and floating rate interest payment
obligations without the exchange of the underlying
principal amounts.

Forward Sale Contracts represent commitments
to sell a specified amount of securities at an agreed
upon date and price. Northern Trust utilizes forward
sale contracts principally in connection with its sale
of mortgage loans.

Exchange-Traded Option Contracts grant the
buyer the right, but not the obligation, to purchase
or sell at a specified price, a stated number of units of
an underlying financial instrument, at a future date.

The following table shows the contractual/
notional amounts of risk management instruments.
The notional amounts of risk management instru-
ments do not represent credit risk, and are not re-
corded in the consolidated balance sheet. They are
used merely to express the volume of this activity.

Risk Management Instruments

Contractual/
Notional Amounts
December 31

(tn Millions) 2001 2000
Asset/Liability Management:
Foreign Exchange Contracts $ 387.9 § 2450
Interest Rate Futures
Contracts—Sold 1.7 —
Interest Rate Swap Contracts 400.0 43.6
Forward Sale Contracts 14.9 4.0
Client-Related and Trading:
Foreign Exchange Contracts 14,884.3 1777778
Interest Rate Protection Contracts
—Purchased 2.3 495
—Sold 2.3 4.5
Interest Rate Swap Contracts 123.9 44.0

Derivative Financial Instruments Used for Asset/
Liability Management. Northern Trust adopted
SFAS No. 133 and its related amendments on Jan-
uary 1, 2001. In reviewing the accounting require-
ments of these statements, Northern Trust concluded
that certain hedge strategies previously used to man~
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age fixed interest rate risk would not qualify for spe-
cial hedge accounting treatment. Management im-
plemented alternative strategies for managing interest
rate risk that included the termination and run-off of
certain interest rate swap contracts used to hedge
fixed rate loans and increased utilization of longer-
term fixed rate liabilities. The cumulative effect of
adopting these statements increased earnings by less
than $10 thousand and reduced other comprehensive
income by $.2 million.

Deferred gains and losses related to derivative
financial instruments used for various asset/
liability management purposes and included in the
consolidated balance sheet at year-end 2001 totaled
$14.7 million and 83.4 million, respectively. De-
ferred gains and losses at year-end 2000 totaled $19.6
million and $5.8 million, respectively.

Fair Value Hedge Designations. Northern Trust
may designate certain derivatives as hedges of specific
fixed rate assets or liabilities on its balance sheet. The
risk management policy for such hedges is to reduce
or eliminate the exposure to changes in the value of
the hedged assets or liabilities due to a specified risk.
As of December 31, 2001, certain interest rate swaps
were designated and qualified as a hedge against
changes in LIBOR interest rates for specific fixed
rate agency securities. Hedge ineffectiveness was neg-
ligible through December 31, 2001.

Cash Flow Hedge Designations. Certain de-
rivatives may be designated as hedges against ex-
posure to variability in expected future cash flows
attributable to particular risks, such as fluctuations in
foreign exchange or interest rates. Northern Trust
currently uses cash flow hedges to reduce or elimi-
nate the exposure to changes in foreign exchange
and LIBOR interest rates. As of December 31, 2001,
certain forward foreign exchange contracts were des-
ignated and qualified as hedges against changes in
certain forecasted transactions denominated in for-
eign currencies. It is estimated that a net gain of
$50 thousand will be reclassified into earnings within
the next twelve months. The maximum length of
time over which these hedges will exist is twelve
months. Hedge ineffectiveness was negligible
through December 31, 2001.

As of December 31, 2001, an interest rate swap
was designated and qualified as a hedge against varia-
bility in interest cash flows due to changes in LIBOR
interest rates for specific time deposits with banks. It
is estimated that $1.3 million of net gains associated
with this hedge will be reclassified into earnings
within the next twelve months. The maximum
length of time over which this hedge will exist 1s
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nineteen months. There was no hedge ineffectiveness
through December 31, 2001.

Net Investment Hedge Designations. Northern
Trust has designated specific forward foreign cur-
rency contracts as hedges against foreign currency
exposure for net investments in foreign affiliates. For
the year ended December 31, 2001, a net loss of
$26 thousand was recorded within foreign currency
translation adjustments, a component of capital.

Other Derivatives not Designated as Hedges.
Forward foreign exchange contracts were used to
reduce exposure to fluctuations in the dollar value of
capital investments in foreign subsidiaries and from
foreign currency assets and obligations. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses on such contracts are rec-
ognized as a component of foreign exchange trading
profits.

Client and Trading-Related Derivative Financial
Instruments. Net revenue associated with client and
trading-related interest rate derivative financial
instruments totaled $.2 million, $.7 million, and
$.2 million during 2001, 2000, and 1999, re-
spectively. The majority of these revenues are related
to interest rate swaps, futures contracts, and interest
rate protection agreements.

Other Off-Balance Sheet Financial [nstruments. As
part of securities custody activities and at the direc-
tion of trust clients, Northern Trust lends securities
owned by clients to borrowers who are reviewed by
the Credit Policy Credit Approval Committee. In
connection with these activities, Northern Trust has
issued certain indemnifications against loss resulting
from the bankruptcy of the borrower of securities.
The borrowing party is required to fully collateralize
securities recelved with cash, marketable securities,
or irrevocable standby letters of credit. As securities
are loaned, collateral is maintained at a minimum of
100 percent of the fair value of the securities plus
accrued interest, with revaluation of the collateral on
a daily basis. The amount of securities loaned as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000 subject to in-
demnification was $48.0 billion and $49.5 billion,
respectively. Because of the requirement to fully col-
lateralize securities borrowed, management believes
that the exposure to credit loss from this activity is
remote.

The Bank is a participating member of various
cash and securities clearing organizations such as The
Depository Trust Company in New York. It partic-
ipates in these organizations on behalf of its clients
and on behalf of itself as a result of its own invest-
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ment and trading activities. A wide variety of cash
and securities transactions are settled through these
organizations, including those involving obligations
of states and political subdivisions, asset-backed
securities, commercial paper, dollar placements and
securities issued by the Government National Mort-
gage Association.

As a result of its participation in cash and secur-
ities clearing organizations, the Bank could
be responsible for a pro rata share of certain credit-
related losses arising out of the clearing activities.
The method in which such losses would be shared by
the clearing members is stipulated in each clearing
organization’s membership agreement. Credit ex-
posure related to these agreements varies from day to
day, primarily as a result of fluctuations in the
volume of transactions cleared through the
organizations. The estimated credit exposure at De-
cember 31, 2001 and 2000 was $23 million and $73
million, respectively, based on the clearing volume
for those days. Controls related to these clearing
transactions are closely monitored to protect the as-
sets of Northern Trust.

22. Fair Value of Financial Instruments—SFAS No.
107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial
Instruments,” requires disclosure of the estimated fair
value of certain financial instruments. Considerable
judgment is required to interpret market data when
computing estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the
estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of
the amounts Northern Trust could have realized in a
market exchange.

The information provided below should not be
interpreted as an estimate of the fair value of North-
ern Trust since the disclosures, in accordance with
SFAS No. 107, exclude the values of nonfinancial
assets and liabilities, as well as a wide range of fran-
chise, relationship, and intangible values, which are
integral to a full assessment of the consolidated finan-
cial position.

The use of different assumptions and/or estima-
tion methods may have a material effect on the
computation of estimated fair values. Therefore,
comparisons between Northern Trust’s disclosures
and those of other financial institutions may not be
meaningful.

The following methods and assumptions were
used in estimating the fair values of the financial in-
struments:

Securities. Fair values of securities were based on
quoted market values, when available. If quoted mar-
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ket values were not available, fair values were based
on quoted market values for comparable instruments.

Loans (not including lease financing receivables).
The fair values of one-to-four family residential
mortgages were based on quoted market prices of
similar loans sold, adjusted for differences in loan
characteristics. The fair values of the remainder of
the loan portfolio were estimated using a discounted
cash flow method in which the discount rate used
was the rate at which Northern Trust would have
originated the loan had it been originated as of the
financial statement date, giving effect to current eco-
nomic conditions on loan collectibility.

Savings Certificates, Other Time, Foreign Offices
Time Deposits and Other Borrowings. The fair values
of these instruments were estimated using a dis-
counted cash flow method that incorporated market
interest rates.

Senior Notes, Long-Term Debt, and Floating Rate
Capital Securities. Fair values were based on quoted
market prices, when available. If quoted market pri-
ces were not available, fair values were based on
quoted market prices for comparable instruments.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial instruments. The fair
values of commitments and letters of credit repre-
sent the amount of unamortized fees on these
instruments. The fair values of all other off-balance
sheet financial instruments were estimated using mar-
ket prices, pricing models, or quoted market prices
of financial instruments with similar characteristics.

Financial instruments Valued at Carrying Value.
Due to their short maturity, the respective carrying
values of certain on-balance sheet financial instru-
ments approximated their fair values. These finan-
cial instruments include cash and due from banks;
money market assets; customers’ acceptance liability;
trust security settlement receivables; federal funds
purchased; securities sold under agreements to re-
purchase; commercial paper; certain other borrow-
ings; and lLiability on acceptances.

The fair values required to be disclosed for de-
mand, savings, and money market deposits pursuant
to SFAS No. 107 must equal the amounts disclosed
in the consolidated balance sheet, even though such
deposits are typically priced at a premium in banking
industry consolidations.
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Fair Values of On-Balance Sheet Financial Instru-
ments. The following table summarizes the fair val-
ues of on-balance sheet financial instruments.

December 31
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Fair Values of Off-Balance Sheet and Derivative
Financial Instruments. The following tables summa-
rize the fair values of off-balance sheet and derivative
financial instruments.

December 31

2001 2000 2001 2000
Book Fair Book Fair Book Fair Book Fair
(In Millions) Value Value Value Value  (In Millions} Value Value Value Value
Assets Commitments and Letters
Cash and Due of Credit:
From Banks $ 2,592.38$ 2,592.3 § 22878 § 2,287.8 Loan Commitments $(.7) $(7) $ 1 $ 1
Money Market Letters of Credit 4 4 7 7
Assets 10,546.0 10,546.0 5,864.9 5,864.9  Asset/Liability
Securities: Management:
Available for Foreign Exchange
Sale 5,648.6 5,648.6 6,477.8 6,477.8 Contracts
Held to Assets 2.6 2.6 12.5 12.5
Maturity 663.6 673.1 778.4 782.1 Liabilities 2.8 2.8 32 32
Trading Interest Rate Swap
Account 18.9 18.9 13.4 13.4 Contracts
Loans (excluding Assets .5 2.9 — —
Leases), Liabilities 1.5 7.1 1 7
Net of Credit Other Financial
Loss Reserve: [nstruments
Held to Assets — — — —
Maturity 16,601.5 16,743.8 16,9417 17,022.1 Liabilities 1 1 — —
Held for Sale 14.2 14.4 5.6 5.7
Acceptance Fair Value
Liability 3.7 9.7 9.3 93 (i millions) 2001 2000
Trust Security
Settlement Client-Related and Trading:™
Receivables 571.4  571.4 615.2 615.2 Foreign Exchange Contracts
Liabilities Assets $158.9 $462.7
Deposits: Liabilities 160.9 454.7
Demand, Interest Rate Swap Contracts
Savings and Assets 1.8 3
Money Liabilities 1.9 3
Market 13,218.6 13,918.6 10,896.9 10,896.9
Savings *Assets and liabilities associated with foreign exchange contracts
Certificates, averaged $259.9 million and $259.3 million, respectively, during
Other 2001. Assets and liabilities associated with other client-related and
Time and trading account instruments averaged $1.1 million and §1.0
Foreign million, respectively, during 2001.
Offices
Time 11,100.7 11,129.6 11,931.0 11,9335
Federal Funds _ ) 23. Concentrations of Credit Risk—The information
Re;)l;l;;}lisfd 815.5 815.5 36150  3,615.0 in the section titled Loans and Other Extensions of
Agreements 1,407.4 1,407.4 15771 1577.1 Credit found on pages 49 through 51 is incorporated
Commercial Paper 137.7 137.7 142.4 142.4 by reference.
Other Borrowings  6,841.2 6,931.5 26295 2,647.3
Senior Notes 450.0 473.0 500.0 5126 34, Pledged and Restricted Assets—Certain of
Long-Term Debt 766.8 800.8 638.1 655.9 North T , bsidiari . .d .
Debt-Floating orthern Trust’s subsidiaries, as require .or permit
Rate Capital ted by law, pledge assets to secure public and trust
Securities 267.7 227.6 267.6 2486 deposits, repurchase agreements and for other pur-
Liability on poses. On December 31, 2001, securities and loans
Acceptances 8.7 2.7 9.3 9.3 totaling $10.5 billion ($5.3 billion of U.S. Govern-
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ment and agency securities, $513 million of obliga-
tions of states and political subdivisions and $4.7 bil-
lion of loans and other securities), were pledged.
Collateral required for these purposes totaled $8.8
billion. Included in the total pledged collateral is the
fair value of $152.3 million of available for sale secur-
ities used in repurchase agreement transactions.

Northern Trust is permitted to repledge col-
lateral accepted from reverse repurchase agreement
transactions. The total fair value of accepted col-
lateral as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $1.6
billion and $294.4 million, respectively. The fair
value of repledged collateral as of December 31,
2001 and 2000 was $1.2 billion and $125.6 million,
respectively. Repledged collateral was used in other
repurchase agreement transactions. Deposits main-
tained at the Federal Reserve Bank to meet reserve
requirements averaged $382.2 million in 2001 and
$317.6 million in 2000.

25. Stock-Based Compensation Plans—Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Ac-
counting for Stock-Based Compensation,” establishes
financial accounting and reporting standards for
stock-based compensation plans.

SFAS No. 123 allows two alternative accounting
methods: (1) a fair-value-based method, or (2) an
intrinsic-value-based method which is prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Ac-
counting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB No.
25) and related interpretations. Northern Trust has
elected to account for its stock-based incentive plans
and awards under APB No. 25, and has adopted the
disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123.

A description of Northern Trust’s stock-based
compensation is presented below.

Amended 1992 Incentive Stock Plan (Plan). The Plan
was adopted in 1992 and has been amended on sev-
eral occasions. The Plan is administered by the
Compensation and Benefits Committee (Com-
mittee) of the Board of Directors. Directors and key
officers of the Corporation or its subsidiaries are elig-
ible to receive awards under the Plan. Awards under
the Plan may be granted in any one or a combination
of (a) incentive stock options and nonqualified stock
options, (b) stock appreciation rights, (¢) stock
awards, (d) performance shares, and (e) stock units or
equivalents.

The total number of shares of the Corporation’s
common stock authorized for distribution under the
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Plan is 32,000,000. As of December 31, 2001, shares
available for future grants under the Plan totaled
1,323,629.

Stock Options. Stock options consist of options
to purchase common stock at purchase prices not less
than 100% of the fair market value thereof on the
date the option is granted. Options have a maximum
ten year life and generally vest and become exer-
cisable in six months to three years after the date of
grant. In addition, the Plan provides that all options
may become exercisable upon a change of control as
defined in the Plan. All options terminate at such
time as determined by the Committee and as pro-
vided in the terms and conditions of the respective
option grants.

Stock and Stock Unit Awards. Under the Plan,
stock or stock unit awards can be granted by the
Committee to participants which entitle them to re-
ceive a payment in cash or Northern Trust Corpo-
ration common stock under the terms of the Plan
and such other terms and conditions as the Commit-
tee deems appropriate.

Total expense applicable to stock and stock unit
awards including dividend equivalents was $12.7 mil-
lion in 2001, $8.3 million in 2000, and $4.1 million
in 1999. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, 292,500 stock
units, 374,500 stock units and 378,000 stock units,
respectively, were granted with a weighted average
grant-date fair value of $67.32, $69.02 and $45.16,
respectively. As of December 31, 2001, restricted
stock awards and stock units outstanding totaled
1,457,109 shares, of which 331,626 shares are fully
vested with distribution deferred. These shares vest,
subject to continuing employment, over a period of
one to nine years.

Performance Shares. Under the performance
share provisions of the Plan, participants are entitled
to have each award credited to an account main-
tained for them it established performance goals are
achieved. Distribution of the award is then made af-
ter vesting. The value of shares that have not been
distributed under the Plan is credited to performance
share accounts and is shown in stockholders’ equity
as Common Stock Issuable-Stock Incentive Plans.

Total salary expense for performance shares was
$19.1 million in 2001, $32.3 million in 2000 and
$23.3 million in 1999. As of December 31, 2001,
1,412,000 shares of stock had been credited to per-
formance share accounts subject to meeting vesting
conditions. The last grant under this plan was in 1998.
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A summary of the status of stock options under the Plan at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 and
changes during the years then ended is presented in the table below.

2001 2000 1999

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Options Qutstanding, January 1 16,701,201 $35.06 15,992,322 $24.96 15,148,424 $17.83

Granted ($48.62 to $74.44 per share in 2001) 2,756,250 67.83 3,113,450 70.53 3,441,700 45.19

Exercised (§7.75 to $45.16 per share in 2001)  (1,363,168) 17.46  (2,364,071) 13.15 (2,518,802) 9.83

Cancelled (106,836) 62.69 (40,500) 49.93 (79,000} 33.95
Options Outstanding December 31 (§9.42 to

$83.47 per share) 17,987,455 $41.27 16,701,201 $35.06 15,992,322 $24.96

Options Exercisable, December 31 12,104,945 $29.98 10,201,385 $20.91 9,963,322 $15.46

The following is a summary of outstanding and exercisable options under the Plan at December 31,

2001.
Options Outstanding
Weighted
Average Weighted
Number Remaining Average
Outstanding Exercisable Contractual Life Exercise Price
$9.42 to $20.00 per share 4,748,109 4,748,109 3.3 years $12.65
$20.01 to $40.00 per share 4,139,457 4,139,457 6.1 years 31.85
$40.01 to $60.00 per share 3,358,185 2,201,365 7.2 years 45.23
$60.01 to $83.47 per share 5,741,704 1,016,014 8.8 years 69.41

Director Stock Plan. In January 2000, each non-
employee director received a grant of 2,400 stock
units under the Amended 1992 Incentive Stock Plan,
with 800 stock units vesting on election or reelection
as a director of the Corporation in each of the years
2000, 2001 and 2002. In 1999, each non-employee
director received a grant of 1,000 shares of com-
mon stock under a prior plan. Directors may elect to
defer the payment of their annual stock unit grant
and cash-based compensation until termination of
services as director. Amounts deferred are converted
into stock units representing shares of common stock
of the Corporation. Distributions of deferred stock
units will be made in stock. Distributions of the
stock unit account that relates to cash-based compen-
sation will be made in cash based on the fair value of
the stock units.

Other Stock-Based Compensation Arrangements. To-
tal salary expense related to restricted shares granted
in conjunction with an acquisition was $2.2 million
in 2001, $2.4 million in 2000 and $2.1 million in
1999. As of December 31, 2001, restricted stock out-
standing totaled 535,790 shares.

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

Pro Forma Information. Pro forma information regard-
ing net income and earnings per share is required by
SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as if the Cor-
poration had accounted for its stock-based compensation
under SFAS No. 123. For purposes of estimating the fair
value of the Corporation’s employee stock options at the
grant-date, a Black-Scholes option pricing model was
used with the following weighted average assumptions
for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively: risk-free interest
rates of 5.36%, 6.41% and 6.60%; dividend yields of
1.00%, .88% and 1.20%; volatility factors of the expect-
ed market price of the Corporation’s common stock of
30.0%, 30.0% and 26.5%; and a weighted average ex-
pected life of the options of 5.9 years, 5.4 years and
5.3 years.

The weighted average fair value of options grant-
ed in 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $24.30, $25.92 and
$15.13, respectively. For purposes of pro forma dis-
closures, the estimated fair value of the options is
amortized to expense over the options’ six months to
three year vesting period. Under SFAS No. 123, op-
tions and awards granted prior to 1995 are not re-
quired to be included in the pro forma information.
Because the SFAS No. 123 method of accounting
has not been applied to options and other stock-
based compensation granted prior to January 1, 1995,
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the resulting pro forma compensation cost may not be
representative of that to be expected in future years.
The Corporation’s pro forma information follows:

{In Millions Except
Per Share Information) 2001 2000 1999

$487.5 $485.1 $405.0

Net Income as Reported

Pro Forma Adjustments
Increase (Decrease) Due To:
Stock Options
Performance Shares and

(49.9)  (47.4) (28.5)

Other Arrangements 6.6 13.3 9.7

Pro Forma Net Income $444.2 $451.0 $386.2
Earnings Per Share as

Reported:

Basic $ 2.18 $ 2.17 $ 1.81

Diluted 2.11 2.08 1.74
Pro Forma Earnings Per

Share:

Basic $ 1.99 $ 2.01 $ 1.72

Diluted 1.92. 1.93 1.66

2%. Cash-Based Compensation Plans—Various incent-
ive plans provide for cash incentives and bonuses to
selected employees based upon accomplishment of
corporate net income objectives, business unit goals
and individual performance. The plans provide for
acceleration of benefits in certain circumstances in-
cluding a change in control. The estimated con-
tributions to these plans are charged to salary expense
and totaled $99.7 million in 2001, $139.4 million in
2000 and $116.1 million in 1999.

27. Business Segments and Related Information—
Information describing the Corporation’s major
business segments is contained in the section titled
Business Segments, found on pages 44 through 48,
and is incorporated by reference.

The operations of Northern Trust are managed
on a business unit basis and include components of

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

both domestic and foreign source income and assets.
Foreign source income and assets are not separately
identified in its internal management reporting sys-
tem. However, in order to comply with the financial
reporting requirements of the Securities and Ex-
change Commission, Northern Trust is required to
disclose foreign activities based on the domicile of
the customer. Due to the complex and integrat-
ed nature of its foreign and domestic activities, it
1s impossible to segregate with precision revenues,
expenses and assets between its U.S. and foreign
domiciled customers. Therefore, certain subjective
estimates and assumptions have been made to allocate
revenues, expenses and assets between domestic and
international operations as described below.

Northern Trust’s international activities are cen-
tered in the commercial banking, treasury activities,
foreign exchange, investment management and glo-
bal custody businesses of the Bank, three overseas
branches, one Edge Act subsidiary, foreign sub-
sidiaries located in Canada, United Kingdom, Ireland
and Hong Kong, NTGA, and Northern Trust Bank
of Florida. Net income from international operations
includes the direct net income contributions of for-
eign branches, foreign subsidiaries and the Edge Act
subsidiary. The Bank and Northern Trust Bank of
Florida international profit contributions reflect di-
rect salary and other expenses of the business units,
plus expense allocations for interest, occupancy,
overhead and the provision for credit losses. For
purposes of this disclosure, all foreign exchange prof-
its have been allocated to international operations.
The interest expense is allocated to international
operations based on specifically matched or pooled
funding. Allocations of indirect noninterest expenses
related to international activities are not significant
but, when made, are based on various methods such
as time, space and number of employees.
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The table below summarizes international performance based on the domicile of the primary obligor
without regard to guarantors or the location of collateral.

Distribution of Total Assets and Operating Performance

2001 2000 1999
Income Income Income
Total Operating before Net Total Operating before Net Total Operating before Net
(In Millions) Assets Income Taxes Income Assets Income Taxes Income Assets Income Taxes Income

International § 8,253.2 § 344.5 $188.5 $117.6 § 7,293.9 § 3349 $1745 $108.9 § 32446 $ 2569 $1263 § 78.8

Domestic 31,411.3  1,830.8 543.4 369.9 28,7284

1,770.7 555.6 376.2 254636 1497.1 4902 326.2

Total $39,664.5 $2,175.3 $731.9 $487.5 $36,022.3 $2,105.6 $730.1 $485.1 $28,708.2 $1,754.0 $616.5 $405.0

*Qperating Income is comprised of net interest income and noninterest income.

28. Acquisitions—On May 2, 2000, Northern Trust
completed the purchase acquisition of Carl Domino
Associates, L.P., a registered investment advisor in
West Palm Beach, Florida, for $21 million. Sub-
sequent to acquisition, the company became an
operating division of Northern Trust Investments,
Inc. known as Northern Trust Value Investors. The
transaction was recorded under the purchase
method of accounting. Included in the acquisition
cost was $15 million of goodwill and $4 million of
other intangibles.

On May 15, 2000, Northern Trust completed
the purchase acquisition of Ulster Bank Investment
Services Limited (UBIS), the IFSC (Internation-
al Financial Service Centre) licensed custody and
fund administration subsidiary of Ulster Bank Group
for $14.3 million. Subsequent to the acquisition,
the company was renamed Northern Trust (Ireland)
Limited. The transaction was recorded under the
purchase method of accounting. Included in the ac-
quisition cost was $4.3 million of goodwill and $4.5
million of other intangibles.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill
balances as of January 1, 2002 will not be amor-
tized, and the carrying amount will be subjected to
an annual impairment test. Other intangibles related
to these acquisitions, will be amortized over eight
years.
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29. Regulatory Capital Requirements—Northern
Trust and its subsidiary banks are subject to various
regulatory capital requirements administered by the
federal bank regulatory authorities. Under these re-
quirements, banks must maintain specific ratios of
total and tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and of
tier 1 capital to average assets in order to be classified
as “well capitalized.” The regulatory capital require-
ments impose certain restrictions upon banks that
meet minimum capital requirements but are not
“well capitalized” and obligate the federal bank regu-
latory authorities to take “prompt corrective action”
with respect to banks that do not maintain such
minimum ratios. Such prompt corrective action
could have a direct material effect on a bank’s finan-
cial statements.

As of December 31, 2001, each of Northern’s
subsidiary banks had capital ratios above the level
required for classification as a “well capitalized” insti-
tution and had not received any regulatory notifica-
tion of a lower classification. There are no conditions
or events since that date that management believes
have adversely affected the capital categorization of
any subsidiary bank for these purposes. The table on
the following page summarizes the risk-based capital
amounts and ratios for Northern Trust and for each
of its subsidiary banks whose net income for 2001
exceeded 10% of the consolidated total.
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Minimum to Qualify as

Actual Well Capitalized
(% tn Millions) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2001:
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
Consolidated $3,677 14.3% $2,580 10.0%
The Northern Trust Company 2,662 12.8 2,079 10.0
Northern Trust Bank of Florida N.A. 340 11.0 309 10.0
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
Consolidated 2,806 10.9 1,548 6.0
The Northern Trust Company 1,943 9.3 1,248 6.0
Northern Trust Bank of Florida N.A. 322 10.4 185 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to Fourth Quarter Average Assets)
Consolidated 2,806 7.9 1,769 5.0
The Northern Trust Company 1,943 6.7 1,440 5.0
Northern Trust Bank of Florida N.A. 322 7.7 210 5.0
As of December 31, 2000:
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
Consolidated $3,263 12.9% $2,539 10.0%
The Northern Trust Company 2,430 11.7 2,076 10.0
Northern Trust Bank of Florida N.A. 304 111 275 10.0
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
Consolidated 2,484 9.8 1,523 6.0
The Northern Trust Company 1,806 8.7 1,245 6.0
Northern Trust Bank of Florida N.A. 287 10.4 165 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to Fourth Quarter Average Assets)
Consolidated 2,484 6.9 1,797 5.0
The Northern Trust Company 1,806 6.0 1,501 5.0
Northern Trust Bank of Florida N.A. 287 7.6 190 5.0

Domestic bank regulatory authorities and interna-
tional bank supervisory organizations, principally the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (Commit-
tee), have proposed for comment and are considering
changes to the risk-based capital adequacy framework
that could affect the capical guidelines applicable to
bank holding companies and banks. In December
2001, the Committee indicated its desire to issue a
new consultative package on the new Basel Capital

Accord (BCA) and to complete the BCA by year-
end 2002, with implementation of the BCA capital
adequacy framework beginning in 2005. The Corpo-
ration is monitoring the status and progress of the
proposed rule and evaluating the potential impact the
BCA, if adopted, would have on the financial con-
dition or results of the operations of the Corporation
and its banking subsidiaries.
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30. Northern Trust Corporation (Corporation only)
Condensed financial information is presented below.
Investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries are carried

on the equity method of accounting.

Condensed Balance Sheet

December 31

(In Millions) 2001 2000
Assets
Cash on Deposit with Subsidiary Bank  § 1008 1
Time Deposits with Banks 193.9 125.6
Securities 90.1 109.0
Investments in Wholly-Owned
Subsidiaries—Bank 2,554.3 2,360.8
—Nonbank 152.1 151.8
Loans—Nonbank Subsidiaries 12.8 9.7
—Other 1.1 2.1
Buildings and Equipment 6.8 7.0
Other Assets 279.1 278.3
Total Assets $3,290.3 $3,044.4
Liabilities
Commercial Paper $ 137.7 § 1424
Long-Term Debt 276.0 301.0
90 Other Liabilities 103.1 138.8
Total Liabilities 516.8 582.2
Stockholders’ Equity 2,773.5 2,462.2
Total Liabilities and Stockholders” Equity $3,290.3  $3,044.4

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION
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Condensed Statement of Income

For the Year Ended December 31

(In Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Operating Income

Dividends—Bank Subsidiaries $310.0 $259.7 $112.0

—Nonbank Subsidiaries 7.9 10.7 19.3
Intercompany Interest and
Other Charges 5.8 8.3 7.2
Interest and Other Income . 5.6 10.5 6.1
Total Operating Income 329.3 289.2 144.6
Operating Expenses
Interest Expense 20.3 311 26.2
Other Operating Expenses 10.6 16.4 13.2
Total Operating Expenses 30.9 47.5 39.4

Income before Income Taxes

and Equity in Undistributed

Net Income of Subsidiaries  298.4 241.7 105.2
Benefit for Income Taxes 13.1 16.9 15.1

Income before Equity in

Undistributed Net Income

of Subsidiaries 311.5 258.6 120.3
Equity in Undistributed

Net Income of

Subsidiaries—Bank 170.7 211.0 2749

—Nonbank 5.3 15.5 9.8

Net Income $487.5 $485.1 $405.0
Net Income Applicable to

Common Stock $483.4 $479.4 $400.2
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31

{In Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Operating Activities:
Net Income $ 487.5 $485.1 $ 405.0
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities:
Equity in Undistributed Net Income of Subsidiaries (176.0) (226.5) (284.7)
(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Income 3 1 (1)
Decrease in Prepaid Expenses .8 8 1.7
Other, net 46.4 235 65.4
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 359.0 283.0 187.3
Investing Activities:
Net (Increase) Decrease in Time Deposits with Banks (68.3) 14.0 (16.1)
Purchases of Securities (90.3) (92.6) (134.6)
Sales of Securities 49.7 88.6 166.8
Proceeds from Maturity and Redemption of Securities 59.0 6.5 10.0
Net (Increase) Decrease in Capital Investments in Subsidiaries (15.6) (25.9) 8.8
Net Increase in Loans to Subsidiaries 3.1) (1.4 (7
Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Loans 1.0 1.4 (2.2
Other, net (19.1) (1.3) (.3)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (86.7) (10.7) 31.7
Financing Activities:
Net Decrease in Commercial Paper 4.7) 2.7 (3.0)
Repayment of Long-Term Debt (25.0) — —
Repayment of Long-Term Debt Issued to Subsidiaries —_ — —
Treasury Stock Purchased (152.8) (191.5) (139.7)
Cash Dividends Paid on Common and Preferred Stock (142.3) (125.8) (i11.4)
Net Proceeds from Stock Options 19.7 28.4 241
Other, net 32.8 19.3 10.7
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (272.3) (272.3) (219.3)
Net Change in Cash on Deposit with Subsidiary Bank — — (.3)
Cash on Deposit with Subsidiary Bank at Beginning of Year 1 1 4
Cash on Deposit with Subsidiary Bank at End of Year $ N $ 1 $ A1
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Northern Trust Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Northern Trust Corporation (a Delaware
Corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the ac-
counting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the finan-
cial position of Northern Trust Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the re-
sults of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Arthur Andersen LLP

Chicago, llinois,
January 14, 2002
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Statement of Income 2001 2000
($ In Millions Except Per Share Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Information) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Trust Fees $  304.1 304.3 317.7 305.2 | $ 3049 304.7 305.6 286.0
Other Noninterest Income 82.3 85.5 96.6 84.3 84.9 87.2 87.3 76.4
Net Interest Income
Interest Income 342.3 396.1 449.7 493.4 544.1 531.3 499.9 435.8
Interest Expense 1990.5 247.1 303.3 345.3 398.5 388.5 359.1 296.4
Net Interest Income 151.8 149.0 146.4 148.1 145.6 142.8 140.8 139.4
Provision for Credit Losses 45.0 5.0 11.5 5.0 5.0 5.0 10.0 4.0
Noninterest Expenses 339.9 343.6 351.8 341.6 342.3 344.9 338.2 326.1
Provision for Income Taxes 58.9 63.6 66.1 63.8 62.6 61.5 62.5 58.4
Net Income $  102.4 126.6 131.3 127.2 | § 1255 123.3 123.0 113.3
Net Income Applicable to
Common Stock $ 101.7 125.7 130.2 125.8 | $ 1240 121.8 121.6 112.0
Per Common Share
Net Income—Basic $ 46 57 59 57108 .56 55 .55 51
—Diluted .45 .55 .57 .55 54 53 53 .49
Average Balance Sheet
Assets
Cash and Due from Banks $ 1,633.3 1,586.2 1,474.2 1,448.6 | § 1,477.0 1,257.8 1,550.2 1,401.2
Money Market Assets 7,825.9 5,726.3 4,511.2 4,530.1 5,426.7 3,712.3 4,374.7 4,537.5
Securities 6,229.9 7,736.6 10,338.7 9,878.4 9,701.0 10,841.8 10,174.6 8,017.9
Loans and Leases 17,837.5 17,887.6 17,961.4 17,713.9 17,404.0 16,825.3 16,375.4 15,577.2
Reserve for Credit Losses (159.8) (158.9) (163.8) (165.4) (160.4) (158.6) (157.0) (152.8)
Other Assets 2,119.8 2,282.2 2,180.7 2,249.4 2,2345 1,996.6 2,010.3 1,879.0 93
Total Assets $35,486.6 35,060.0 36,302.4 35,655.0 | $36,082.8 34,475.2 34,3282 31,260.0
Liabilities and Stockholders’
Equity
Deposits
Demand and Other
Noninterest-Bearing $ 4,286.5 3,912.3 4,052.9 4,104.0 | § 4,107.4 3,890.8 3,958.8 3,923.6
Savings and Other
Interest-Bearing 8,092.3 7,840.0 7,925.0 7,971.9 7,618.0 7,366.1 7,444 .1 7,439.8
Other Time 569.7 1,066.3 1,519.3 1,293.0 732.3 1,197.3 1,139.6 789.2
Foreign Offices 9,332.5 9,984.7 9,201.9 9,289.0 9,400.7 8,212.5 8,608.0 8,354.9
Total Deposits 22,281.0 22,803.3 22,699.1 22,657.9 21,8584 20,666.7 21,150.5 20,507.5
Purchased Funds 7,816.0 6,850.2 8,335.9 7,828.4 9,192.9 8,883.0 8,381.3 6,121.1
Senior Notes 450.0 492.4 500.0 500.0 500.0 500.0 500.0 3121
Long-Term Debt 766.9 767.0 779.3 684.5 638.2 638.3 638.4 644.7
Debt-Floating Rate Capital
Securities 267.7 267.7 267.7 267.7 267.6 267.6 267.6 267.6
Other Liabilities 1,173.6 1,218.7 1,125.5 1,225.7 1,239.0 1,209.0 1,125.7 1,011.6
Stockholders” Equity 2,731.4  2,660.7  2,594.9 2,490.8 2,386.7 2,310.6 2,264.7 2,195.4
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’
Equity $35,486.6 35,060.0 36,302.4 35,655.0 | $36,082.8 34,4752 34,3282 31,260.0
Analysis of Net Interest Income
Earning Assets $31.893.3 31,350.5 32,811.3 32,122.4 | $32,531.7 31,3794 30,9247 28,132.6
Interest-Related Funds 26,663.8 26,226.3 27,634.1 27,187.6 27,6773  26,567.6 26,3153 23,641.3
Noninterest-Related Funds 5,229.5 5,124.2 5,177.2 4,934.8 4,854.4 4,811.8 4,609.4 4,491.3
Net Interest Income (Taxable
equivalent) 163.6 161.6 160.7 162.¢ 159.9 157.1 154.1 150.8
Net Interest Margin (Taxable
equivalent) 2.04% 2.05 1.96 2.05 1.96% 1.99 2.00 2.16
Common Stock Dividend and
Market Price
Dividends $ .170 .155 .155 A55 1 % 155 135 135 135
Market Price Range—High 61.44 65.35 70.05 82.25 92.13 90.88 73.31 77.25
—Low 47.70 41.40 57.13 51.94 70.75 64.88 57.38 46.75

Note: The common stock of Northern Trust Corporation is traded on the Nasdag National Market under the symbol NTRS.
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(Interest and Rate on a Taxable Equivalent Basis) 2001 2000
($ In Millions) Interest Volume Rate Interest Volume Rate
Average Earning Assets
Money Market Assets
Federal Funds Sold and Resell Agreements $ 295 § 8009 3.68% & 404 § 6425 6.29%
Time Deposits with Banks 194.3 4,832.0 4.02 206.0 3,822.8 5.39
Other 1.1 24.7 4.67 3.4 47.8 6.95
Total Money Market Assets 224.9 5,657.6 3.98 249.8 4,513.1 5.53
Securities
U.S. Government 10.3 186.1 5.52 14.6 2377 6.13
Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions 39.8 495.1 8.04 38.7 475.9 8.14
Federal Agency 339.2 7,434.2 4.56 567.6 8,551.9 6.64
Other 27.5 404.7 6.80 31.4 409.4 7.68
Trading Account .7 13.6 5.45 9 121 7.35
Total Securities 417.5 8,533.7 4.89 653.2 9,687.0 6.74
Loans and Leases 1,091.7 17,850.5 6.12 1,161.4 16,548.6 7.02
Total Earning Assets $1,734.1  32,041.8 5.41% $2,064.4 30,748.7 6.71%
Reserve for Credit Losses — (162.0}) — — (157.2) —
Cash and Due from Banks —_ 1,536.2 — — 1,421.3 —
Other Assets — 2,208.0 — — 2,030.5 —
Total Assets —  $35,624.0 — —  $34,0433 —
Average Source of Funds
Deposits
Savings and Money Market $ 163.4 §$ 5,753.6 2.84% $ 2068 § 5,203.9 3.97%
Savings Certificates 114.2 2,203.7 5.18 133.0 2,263.3 5.88
Other Time 55.0 1,110.0 4.96 59.1 964.6 6.13
Foreign Offices Time 313.3 8,649.2 3.62 431.4 8,064.5 5.35
Total Deposits 645.9  17,716.5 3.65 830.3 16,496.3 5.03
Federal Funds Purchased 109.8 2,839.0 3.87 167.8 2,644.7 6.34
Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase 58.0 1,474.1 3.93 91.8 1,476.4 6.22
Commercial Paper 5.6 137.5 4.05 8.8 138.3 6.40
Other Borrowings 168.6 3,254.6 5.18 245.2 3,890.0 6.30
Senior Notes 33.4 485.5 6.88 34.4 503.0 6.82
Long-Term Debt 51.4 749.7 6.86 44.8 639.9 7.01
Debt-Floating Rate Capital Securities 13.5 267.7 5.03 19.4 267.6 7.25
Total Interest-Related Funds 1,086.2  26,924.6 4.03 1,442.5 26,056.2 5.54
Interest Rate Spread — — 1.38 — — 1.17
Noninterest-Related Deposits — 4,893.4 — — 4,550.6 —
Other Liabilities — 1,185.8 — — 1,146.8 —
Stockholders’ Equity — 2,620.2 — — 2,289.7 —
Totzal Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity —  $35,624.0 —_ —  $34,043.3 —
MNet Interest Income/Margin $ 647.9 — 2.02% $ 6219 — 2.02%
Net Interest Income/Margin Components
Domestic $ 602.3 $26,363.8 2.29% % 606.0 $26,143.9 2.32%
International 45.6 5,678.0 .80 15.9 4,604.8 .35
Consolidated $ 647.9 $32,041.8 2.02% $ 6219  §$30,748.7 2.02%

Notes—Average volume includes nonaccrual loans.

—Total interest income includes adjustments on loans and securities to a taxable equivalent basis. Such adjustments are based on the
U.S. federal income tax rate (35%) and State of Illinois income tax rate (7.18%). Lease financing receivable balances are reduced by

deferred income. Total taxable equivalent interest adjustments amounted to §52.6 million in 2001, $53.3 million in 2000,
$38.6 million in 1999, $35.9 million in 1998 and $32.7 million in 1997.
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1999 1998 1997

Interest Volume Rate Interest Volume Rate Interest Volume Rate
$ 558 § 1,095.7 509% $ 530 § 967.5 548% $ 459 ¢ 8153 5.63%
164.3 3,562.0 4.61 155.0 2,827.1 5.48 1335 2,574.7 5.18
42 79.6 5.36 2.7 44.1 6.14 3.0 52.6 5.68
2243 4,737.3 4.74 210.7 3,838.7 5.49 182.4 3,442.6 5.30
15.5 285.3 5.43 22.4 374.2 5.99 48.8 822.9 5.94
40.5 497.4 8.15 38.2 434.0 8.81 38.1 408.8 9.32
363.6 6,838.5 5.32 362.1 6,385.0 5.67 281.9 4,890.1 5.77
21.7 322.7 6.72 18.3 265.8 6.87 14.9 243.4 6.11

.8 12.5 6.58 .8 11.8 6.53 7 9.0 7.33
4421 7,956.4 5.56 441.8 7,470.8 5.91 384.4 6,374.2 6.03
940.8 14,547.8 6.47 886.5 13,315.0 6.66 798.7 11,812.9 6.76
$1,607.2 27,2415 5.90% $1,539.0 24,624.5 6.25% $1,365.5 21,629.7 6.32%
— (148.4) — —_ (147.1) — — (148.1) —

— 1,368.0 — — 1,205.7 — — 1,095.4 —

— 1,715.9 —_ —_ 1,507.6 — — 1,474.7 —

—  $30,177.0 — —  $27,190.7 —_ —  $24,051.7 —

§ 1556 § 48453 321% $ 1413 $ 4,263.3 331% $ 1258 § 3,895.4 3.23%
117.3 2,191.0 5.35 122.1 2,144.5 5.69 117.2 2,035.8 5.76
32.7 650.5 5.03 30.6 571.8 5.35 39.4 717.3 5.50
286.3 6,592.1 4.34 286.4 5,781.7 4.95 239.8 4,971.2 4.82
591.9 14,278.9 4.15 580.4 12,761.3 4.55 5222 11,619.7 4.49
161.0 3,226.1 4.99 139.8 2,620.6 5.34 92.4 1,690.2 5.47
95.8 1,954.5 4.90 80.2 1,506.0 5.33 81.7 1,519.9 5.38
7.3 141.0 5.15 8.0 145.9 5.51 7.9 142.7 5.54
109.2 2,177.3 5.02 132.3 2,540.4 5.21 112.4 2,120.9 5.30
30.6 579.5 5.28 36.5 653.3 5.58 30.9 539.3 5.75
37.9 545.3 6.96 31.8 445.8 7.14 32.6 435.8 7.48
16.1 267.5 6.02 16.9 267.4 6.32 14.5 2241 6.49
1,049.8 23,1701 4.53 1,025.9 20,940.7 4.90 894.6 18,292.6 4.89
— — 1.37 — — 1.35 — — 1.43

— 4,086.0 — —_— 3,731.8 — — 3,450.3 —

— 865.2 — —_— 693.6 — — 679.3 —

— 2,055.7 — — 1,824.6 — — 1,629.5 —

—  $30,177.0 — —  $27,190.7 — —  $24,051.7 —

$§ 5574 — 2.05% $ 5131 — 2.08% $§ 4709 — 2.18%
§ 5457  $23,131.3 2.36% $ 502.7 $21,118.7 2.38% § 466.0 $18,492.2 2.52%
11.7 4,110.2 .30 10.4 3,505.8 .30 49 3,137.5 .16

$ 557.4 §27,241.5 2.05% § 513.1  $24,624.5 2.08% $ 4709 §21,629.7 2.18%
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SENIOR OFFICERS

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION
AND THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY

Management Committee
William A, Osborn
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Barry G. Hastings
President and Chief Operating Officer

James J. Mitchell
President—Worldwide Operations and Technology

Perry R.. Pero
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

Peter L. Rossiter
President—Corporate and Institutional Services

Mark Stevens
President—Personal Financial Services

Stephen B. Timbers
President—Northern Trust Global Investments

Kelly R. Welsh
Executive Vice President and General Counsel

Heads of the Corporation’s
Subsidiary Banks and State Offices

David A. Highmark
Northern Trust Bank, N.A.—Arizona

Sherry S. Barrat
Northern Trust of California Corporation

Scott C. Wylie
Northern Trust Bank, N.A.—Colorado

William L. Morrison
Northern Trust of Florida Corporation

Frederick M. Adams, Jr.
Northern Trust Bank, FSB—Michigan

John D. Fumagalli
Northern Trust Bank, FSB—Missouri

Patrick J. Everett
Northern Trust Bank, FSB—Nevada

Robert E. Ross
Northern Trust Bank, FSB—Ohio

Martin J. Weiland
Northern Trust Bank of Texas N.A.

Dennis B. Mitchell
Northern Trust Bank, FSB—Washington

James M. Rauh
Northern Trust Bank, FSB~—Wisconsin

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

Northern Trust Corporation

Other Senior Officers

Orie L. Dudley, Jr.
Executive Vice President and
Chief Investment Officer

John P. Grube
Executive Vice President, Credit Policy

Harry W. Short
Executive Vice President and Controller

Patricia K. Bartler
SeniorVice President and
Chief Compliance Officer

William R. Dodds, Jr.
Senior Vice President, Strategic Planning

David L. Eddy
Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Rose A. Ellis
Corporate Secretary and
Assistant General Counsel

Beverly J. Fleming
Senior Vice President and
Director, Investor Relations

Dan E. Phelps
Senior Vice President and
General Auditor

Catherine J. Treiber
Vice President and
Assistant Corporate Treasurer

The Northern Trust Company

Other Executive Vice Presidents
Gregg D. Behrens

JohnV.N. McClure

Patrick J. McDougal

Timothy P Moen

Lee S. Selander

Jean E. Sheridan

Timothy J. Theriault

Frederick H. Waddell

Alison A. Winter




BOARD OF

William A. Osborn

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Northern Trust Corporation and

The Northern Trust Company (4)

Duane L. Burnham

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Abbott Laboratories

Global diversified health care products

and services company (1, 2, 3)

Dolores E. Cross

President

Morris Brown College
Educational institution (3, 5, 6)

Susan Crown

Vice President

Henry Crown and Company

Company with diversified manufacturing operations,
real estate and securities (1, 2)

Robert S. Hamada

Edward Eagle Brown Distinguished Service
Professor of Finance and Former Dean

Graduate School of Business, University of Chicago
Educational institution;

Chief Executive Officer

Merchants’ Exchange LLC

Electronic exchange trading futures contracts

and options-on-futures (1, 4, 6)

Barry G. Hastings

President and Chief Operating Officer
Northern Trust Corporation and

The Northern Trust Company

Robert A. Helman

Partner

Mayer, Brown, Rowe & Maw
Law firm (5, 6)

Arthur L. Kelly

Managing Partner

KEL Enterprises L.P.

Holding and investment partnership (1, 2, 4, 6)

DIRECTORS

Frederick A. Krehbiel

Co-Chairman

Molex Incorporated

Manufacturer of electrical/electronic
interconnecting products and systems (3, 5, 6)

Robert C. McCormack
Co-Chairman and Maraging Director
Trident Capital, Inc.

Venture capital firm (5, 6)

Edward J. Mooney

Retired Délégué Général-—North America

Suez Lyonnaise des Eaux

Worldwide provider of energy, water, waste

and communications services;

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Nalco Chemical Company

Manufacturer of specialized service chemicals (1, 2)

Harold B. Smith

Chairman of the Executive Committee

Illinois Tool Works Inc.

Manufacturer and marketer of engineered components
and industrial systems and consumables (2, 3, 4, 5)

William D. Smithburg

Retired Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

The Quaker Oats Company
Worldwide manufacturer and marketer of
beverages and grain-based products (2, 3, 4)

Bide L. Thomas

Retired President

Commonwealth Edison Company

Company engaged in production, distribution
and sale of electric energy (1, 2, 5)

Honorary Director
Edward Byron Smith
Honorary Chairman
Northern Trust Corporation

Board Committees

Audit Committee

. Compensation and Benefits Committee
. Corporate Governance Committee

. Executive Committee

. Business Risk Committee

. Business Strategy Committee
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION
50 South La Salle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60675
(312) 630-6000

Principal Subsidiary

The Northern Trust Company
50 South La Salle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60675

120 East Oak Street, Chicago, Illinois 60611

201 East Huron Street, Chicago, Illinois 60611

125 South Wacker Drive, Chicago, llinois 60675

2814 West Fullerton Avenue, Chicago, Ilinois 60647
7801 South State Street, Chicago, Illinois 60619

8501 West Higgins Road, Chicago, Illinois 60631

770 W. Northwest Highway, Barrington, Illinois 60010
2550 Waukegan Road, Glenview, Illinois 60025

579 Central Avenue, Highland Park, Illinois 60035

4 North Washington Street, Hinsdale, Illinois 60521
120 East Scranton Avenue, Lake Bluff, Illinois 60044
265 Deerpath Road, Lake Forest, [llinois 60045

959 South Waukegan R oad, Lake Forest, Hlinois 60045
701 South McKinley Road, Lake Forest, Illinois 60045
400 East Diehl Road, Naperville, Illinois 60563

One Qakbrook Terrace, Oakbrook Terrace, [llinois 60181
1501 Woodfield R oad, Schaumburg, Illinois 60173

62 Green Bay Road, Winnetka, [llinois 60093

London Branch
155 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 3XS, United Kingdom

Cayman Islands Branch
P.O. Box 501, Georgetown, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies

Singapore Branch
80 Raffles Place 46th Floor, UOB Plaza 1,
Singapore 048624

Subsidiaries of The Northern Trust Company

The Northern Trust

International Banking Corporation
40 Broad Street, 10th Floor

New York, New York 10004

The Northern Trust Company
of Hong Kong Limited

Suite 703-4 One Pacific Place
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

Northern Trust Trade Services Limited
7/F CITIC Tower,1 Tim Mei Avenue,
Central, Hong Kong

Northern Trust Fund Managers {lreland) Limited
George’s Quay House

43 Townsend Street

Dublin 2, Ireland

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

Northern Trust Global Investments (Europe) Limited
6 Devonshire Square
London, EC2A 4YE, United Kingdom

Northern Trust (ireland) Limited
Northern Trust Investor Services (lreland) Limited
Northern Trust Custodial Services (lreland) Limited
Northern Trust Fund Services {Ireland) Limited
George’s Quay House
43 Townsend Street
Dublin 2, Ireland

Northern Trust Investments, Inc.
50 South La Salle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60675

Norlease, Inc.
50 South La Salle Street, Chicago, lilinois 60675

The Northern Trust Company, Canada
161 Bay Street, Suite 4540, B.C.E. Place
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5]J 251

NTG Services LLC
155 Bishopsgate, London
EC2M 3XS§, United Kingdom

NT Mortgage Holdings LLC
50 South La Salle Street
Chicago, Hllinois 60675

Other Subsidiaries of the Corporation

Northern Trust Bank of Florida N.A.

700 Brickell Avenue, Miami, Florida 33131
595 Biltmore Way, Coral Gables, Florida 33134
328 Crandon Boulevard, Suite 101,
Key Biscayne, Florida 33149
3001 Aventura Boulevard, Aventura, Florida 33180
8600 N'W 17th Street, Suite 120, Miami, Florida 33126
1100 East Las Olas Boulevard,
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
2601 East Oakland Park Boulevard,
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306
2300 Weston Road, Weston, Florida 33326
301 Yamato Road, Boca Raton, Florida 33431
770 East Atlantic Avenue, Delray Beach, Florida 33483
440 Royal Palm Way, Palm Beach, Florida 33480
11301 U.S. Highway 1, Suite 100,
North Palm Beach, Florida 33408
2201 S.E. Kingswood Terrace, Monterey Commons,
Stuart, Florida 34996
755 Beachland Boulevard, Vero Beach, Florida 32963
1440 South A1A,Vero Beach, Florida 32963
4001 Tamiami Trail North, Naples, Florida 34103
375 Fifth Avenue South, Naples, Florida 34102
26790 South Tamiami Trail, Bonita Springs, Florida 34134
8060 College Parkway S.W., Fort Myers, Florida 33919
1515 Ringling Boulevard, Sarasota, Florida 34236




CORPORATE STRUCTURE

901 Venetia Bay Boulevard, Suite 100, Venice, Florida 34292
540 Bay Isles Road, Longboat Key, Florida 34228

233 15th Street West, Bradenton, Florida 34205

6320 Venture Drive, Suite 100, Bradenton, Florida 34202
525 Indian Rocks Road, Belleair Bluffs, Florida 33770

100 Second Avenue South, St. Petersburg, Florida 33701
425 North Florida Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33602

Northern Trust Cayman International, Ltd.
P.O. Box 1586, Georgetown, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands, British West Indies

Northern Trust Bank, N.A.

2398 East Camelback Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85016
7600 E. Doubletree Ranch Road, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258
7501 East Thompson Peak Parkway,

Scottsdale, Arizona 85255
8525 East Pinnacle Peak Road, Scottsdale, Arizona 85255
10220 West Bell Road, Sun City, Arizona 85351
10015 West Royal Oak Road, Sun City, Arizona 85351
19432 R.. H. Johnson Boulevard,

Sun City West, Arizona 85375
1525 South Greenfield Road, Mesa, Arizona 85206
23714 South Alma School Road, Sun Lakes, Arizona 85248
6373 East Tanque Verde R oad, Tucson, Arizona 85715
3450 East Sunrise Drive, Tucson, Arizona 85718
16 Market Square, 1573 Market Street, Denver, Colorado 80202

Northern Trust Bank of California N.A.

355 South Grand Avenue, Suite 2600,
Los Angeles, California 90071
16 Corporate Plaza, Newport Beach, California 92660
4370 La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 1000,
San Diego, California 92122
1125 Wall Street, La Jolla, California 92037
206 East Anapamu Street,
Santa Barbara, California 93101
1485 East Valley Road, (Montecito),
Santa Barbara, California 93108
580 California Street, Suite 1800,
San Francisco, California 94104
575 Redwood Highway, Mill Valley, California 94941
10877 Wilshire Boulevard (Westwood),
Los Angeles, California 90024
74-900 Highway 111, Suite 121,
Indian Wells, California 92210
300 Third Street, Suite 11,
Los Altos, California 94022

Northern Trust Bank of Texas N.A.

2020 Ross Avenue, Dallas, Texas 75201

5540 Preston Road, Dallas, Texas 75205

16475 Dallas Parkway, Addison, Texas 75001
2701 Kirby Drive, Houston, Texas 77098

600 Bering Drive, Houston, Texas 77057
10000 Memorial Drive, Houston, Texas 77024
600 Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701

Northern Trust Bank, FSB

Michigan

40701 Woodward Avenue, Suite 110,
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304

161 Ottawa Avenue, Northwest, Suites 111 and 114,
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

16980 Kercheval, Grosse Pointe, Michigan 48230

Missouri
190 Carondelet Plaza, St. Louis, Missouri 63105

Nevada
7251 West Lake Mead Boulevard, 3rd Floor,
LasVegas, Nevada 89128

Ohio
127 Public Square, Suite 5150, Cleveland, Ohio 44114

Washington
1414 Fourth Avenue, Seattle, Washington 98101

Wisconsin
526 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Northern Trust Global Advisors, Inc.
300 Atlantic Street, Suite 400,
Stamford, Connecticut 06901

The Northern Trust Company of Connecticut
300 Atlantic Street, Suite 400, Stamford, Connecticut 06901

NT Global Advisors, Inc.
161 Bay Street, Suite 4540, B.C.E. Place,
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5] 2§81

NT Fund Advisors of Quebec, Inc.
770 Sherbrooke Street West, Suite 1420,
Montreal, Quebec, Canada H3A 1G1

Northern Trust Global Advisors, Limited
155 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 3XS8, United Kingdom

The Northern Trust Company of New York
40 Broad Street, New York, New York 10004

Northern Trust Securities, Inc.
50 South La Salle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60675

Northern Trust Retirement Consulting LLC
3003 Summit Boulevard, Suite 100,
Atlanta, Georgia 30319
20020 120th Avenue Northeast, Suite 200,
Bothell, Washington 98011

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

99



100

CORPORATE

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held on Tuesday,
April 16, at 10:30 a.m. (Central Daylight Time) at 50 South
La Salle Street, Chicago, lllinois.

Stock Listing

The common stock of Northern Trust Corporation is traded on
the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol NTRS.

Stock Transfer Agent, Registrar and
Dividend Disbursing Agent

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

P.O. Box 64854

St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-0854
Phone: 1-800-468-9716

E-mail: stocktransfer@wellsfargo.com

10-K Report

Copies of the Corporation’s 2001 10-K Report filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission will be available by the
end of March 2002 and will be mailed to stockholders and other
interested persons upon written request to:

Rose A. Ellis, Corporate Secretary
Northern Trust Corporation

50 South La Salle Street

Chicago, Illinois 60675

Quarterly Earnings Releases

Copies of the Corporation’s quarterly earnings releases
may be obtained by accessing Northern’s Web site at
www.northerntrust.com or by calling the Public Relations
Department at (312) 444-4272.

NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION

INFORMATION

Investor Relations

Investor Relations inquiries should be directed to Beverly J.
Fleming, Director of Investor Relations, at (312) 444-7811
or irf@northerntrust.com.

www.northerntrust.com

Information about the Corporation, including Northern’s
financial performance and products and services, is available on
Northern Trust’s Web site at www.northerntrust.com.

NTGI

Northern Trust Corporation uses the name Northerrn Trust
Global Investments to identify the investment management
business, including portfolio management, research and trading,
carried on by several of its affiliates, including The Northern
Trust Company, Northern Trust Global Advisors and Northern
Trust Investments.
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